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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of
investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally
small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sino-
Life Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of
the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose
of giving information with regard to the Company.

The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading, and there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or in
this report misleading.
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Chairman’s

| am pleased to present the results of Sino-Life Group Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (“Year 2018") on behalf
of the Board of Directors (the “Board”).

In 2018, with continued slowdown in PRC economic growth
and the presence of adversity caused by U.S.-China trade
friction, the PRC government has directed a shift from
export-driven to domestic consumption-driven economic
growth, leading to the rising prominence of the mass market
consumption model. Despite the presence of downward
pressure on the PRC economy, the aforementioned factors have
mitigated the impact on the Group’s funeral services business.

During the year, the Group’s turnover increased compared to
the previous year, benefiting from ongoing population ageing
in China and growth in its population’s purchasing power,
inducing growing need for funeral services and heightened
demand for quality service. Owing to traditional Chinese beliefs
and customs, the PRC is the largest market in the world for
funeral services. It is expected that there will be increasing
demand for funeral services in the PRC market, and even keener
demand for quality send-off solutions.

The Directors closely monitors the Group’s business operations.
Despite experiencing turnover growth in recent vyears, its
business is subject to relevant administrative regulations,
encumbering development and limiting growth, which, together
with increasing operating costs, has led to losses recorded over
the years. The Board noticed that biotechnology and healthcare
businesses have developed rapidly in recent years, and believes
that the Group should grasp the opportunity to diversify its
business. During the year, the Group has established a wholly
owned subsidiary and entered into an agency agreement.
It is hoped that this will allow expedited entry into the
biotechnology and healthcare markets, promoting business
development and making a positive contribution to future
performance.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

The Directors anticipate that there will be sustained growth in
the Group's funeral services business in 2019, while revenue
under the agency agreement could be expected to deliver solid
returns.

; «~ On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank the Group’s
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entire management and staff for their efforts and contributions.
I would also like to take this opportunity to express heartfelt
thanks to the Company’s shareholders and business partners
for their longtime support and trust.

Chairman
Xu Jianchun

27 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE R A

BUSINESS REVIEW

In Year 2018, benefiting from rising consumption and ongoing
population ageing in the PRC, the Group recorded an increase
in its business in the PRC over last year, while its performance
in markets located in other regions were less than satisfactory,
including declines recorded in the Hong Kong, Taiwan and
Vietnam markets. The elderly care business recently established
in Taiwan has been sluggish, while business development
in Vietnam has also been impacted by delays in graveyard
construction.

The revenue and performance of the Group’s segments for the
Year 2018 are as follows:

The PRC — Funeral services

Funeral business in the PRC continues to be the major source
of income of our operations. Revenue derived from funeral
business in the PRC market was approximately RMB58,760,000
(2017: RMB56,933,000), representing an increase of
approximately 3.2% compared to last year and accounted for
approximately 93.8% of the Group’s total revenue.

Hong Kong — Funeral services

The funeral services in the Hong Kong market generated an
approximate revenue of RMB942,000 (2017: RMB1,012,000),
representing a decrease of approximately 6.9% compared to
last year and accounted for approximately 1.5% of the Group’s
total revenue.

Taiwan — Funeral services

The funeral services in the Taiwan market generated an
approximate revenue of RMB2,630,000 (2017: RMB2,175,000),
representing an increase of approximately 20.9% compared to
last year and accounted for approximately 4.2% of the Group’s
total revenue.

Vietnam — Funeral services

Revenue derived from the sales of cemeteries in Vietnam was
approximately RMB335,000 (2017: RMB462,000), representing
a decrease of approximately 27.5% and accounted for
approximately 0.5% of the Group's total revenue.
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis

m N AT

related consultancy
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Taiwan —
services
During the year, no revenue was recorded for the elderly
care and relevant consultancy services in Taiwan (2017:
RMB127,000).

Elderly care and

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s total revenue arising from principal activities
for the year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately
RMB62,667,000 (2017: RMB60,709,000), representing an
increase of approximately RMB1,958,000 or approximately
3.2% as compared to 2017. The revenue generated from the
funeral services and cremation services provided in the funeral
parlour and funeral service centres managed by the Group
was approximately RMB58,760,000 (2017: RMB55,641,000),
representing an increase of approximately 5.6%. The aggregate
revenue generated from funeral arrangement services and
funeral related consultancy services was approximately
RMB3,572,000 (2017: RMB4,479,000), representing an increase
of approximately 20.3%. The revenue decrease of the services
described above was mainly due to the increase in the
number funeral services provided for the year from 2,183 in
the previous year to 2,218. At the same time, the average
spending per service increased from approximately RMB19,721
in the previous year to approximately RMB20,738. The number
of additional cremation services provided slightly decreased
from 9,298 in the previous year to 9,164, while the average
spending per service slightly increased from approximately
RMB1,354 to approximately RMB1,480. Under the funeral
parlour management agreement and funeral service centre
management agreements, the Group is entitled to all income
and is responsible for all liabilities and all expenses incurred
in the funeral parlour and funeral service centres under the
Group’s management.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EIEE

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit for the year was approximately RMB27,889,000
(2017: RMB30,598,000), and gross profit margin decreased
approximately 5.9% to approximately 44.5% (2017: 50.4%).
The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due to increase
in cost of sales.

The Group's cost of sales primarily consists of costs directly
attributable to the provision of its services, which mainly
include: (i) direct labour and staff cost for the funeral services
provided by individuals during the funeral ceremony held
in a funeral parlour or a funeral service centre managed by
the Group; (i) subcontracting charges for services provided
by the subcontractors in Taiwan; (iii) commission expenses
from the recognition of commission paid to sales agents for
funeral services deeds at the point when the services of the
funeral services deeds are provided; (iv) the management
fee and operating lease charges for hire of funeral parlours
and funeral service centres, and (v) materials used for funeral
ceremonies and cremation services such as fresh flowers, fuel
for the cremation furnace and cost of the goods sold in the
funeral parlour and funeral service centres under the Group's
management in the PRC.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling expenses for the year was approximately RMB5,567,000
(2017: RMB6,770,000), representing an decrease of
approximately 17.8%, which was mainly due to the decrease
in the number of sales staff and cutting down expenditures.
The proportion of selling expenses to revenue was
approximately 8.9% (2017: 11.2%). Administrative expenses
was approximately RMB24,797,000 (2017: RMB26,016,000),
accounting for approximately 39.6% (2017: 47.8%) of revenue.
Administrative expenses decreased by approximately 4.7% over
last year, as a result of continuing the efforts in expense control.

K o3 A

EFMREF=E

AEEEFLHAREE27,889,0000(=ZF —
+F: AR #¥30,598,0007T) © E | E T %
495.9% E4944.5% (ZE—+ 4 : 50.4%) °
FEMETHEETERNEER AL IFTE -

AEEZHERATEZBREREHRBZE
BEEERA  TE2EREOEARTEEER
ZRBEEIABEREPLETHEEER
TREBEERECEXRS T RETRA:
(B ERRERBHDEER (NN
REHEBEREZONREFHERNTE
BRERODHEERE2AEMELZ2AS
X (WERBEREMBEREPLZE
BEMEEZHER  RVEZEEARAL
MISFAE R 2 B IE - AL IE B
ARAREERFEMEENBEENBRE
RBPLHEEMIKA

HERITHEAX
KAFEEHERMI L AREKS5670005T (=
T — 4 AR¥6,770,0007T) F B H
178% - T ZHNEEABR D REL
MY HERAIGRENENOA
89% (ZZT—+F:11.2%)c THHEZH
AR#24,797000L (ZFE—+F: AR
29,016,0007T) * fh U &= B9 L ) 49 539.6%
—+F:478%) - TR L EFR
LHAT% TIRFBETEFIRA KR

TELETEEERLAR —E-N\FFER

““

')/

09



< 1)

10

Management Discussion and Analysis

BB R S oA

Due to the significant decrease in impairment and provision,
other operating expenses was approximately RMB4,441,000
(2017: RMB14,874,000), representing a significant decrease
of approximately 70.1%. Finance costs slightly increased to
approximately RMB279,000 (2017: RMB197,000). Income tax
expense was mainly incurred by operations in the PRC, which
was approximately RMB1,108,000 (2017: RMB1,513,000) for the
year, representing a decrease of approximately RMB405,000 or
approximately 26.8%.

Impairment of Goodwiill

In 2016, the Group completed the acquisition of Bu Lao Lin
Limited, a company which provides elderly care and relevant
consultant services in Taiwan. Since the business operation has
not achieved the expected goals, the management provided
a further goodwill impairment allowance which amounted
to RMB2,868,000 (2017: nil), after considering the business
prospects. Together with the impairment allowance provided
in 2016, the carrying amount of goodwill incurred from the
relevant item is fully impaired.

Loss for the year

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the Year 2018
was approximately RMB8,352,000 (2017: RMB19,334,000). The
decrease in loss was mainly due to (i) increase in revenue; (ii)
increase in other income; and (iii) decreases in administrative
expenses and other operating costs.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018

HABERBEREBRD  EMEEmt
BHANREAAL 000 (ZE—+HF AR
#514,874,0007T) + A E B L #4970.1% -
BB BIZINE K A R#279,0007T (=
T— 44 ARK197,0007T) » FTEFFEX
FEATPRAKEEBMES  AFETIR
HARE1,108,000 (ZE—tF: ARK
1,513,0007T) @ J& 4 49 A R #405,0007T 3%
4926.8% °

(R RRE
AEBR-_ZF-—R"ETRKREEEERSE
R EE MR BARSE O EZMED
BRATF - HREHEEREERALE
R EEELEREEBANRR RAFE
BRFHREZREEENHAR2868,000
(2T —tF 8 ER-F—"F5f
REBEERE HERBELEZHENKR
HEEZHAEE-

FEEIE

RZZE-N\FE  ARRIHBAEGLER
4B ARG 352,000 (ZE—+F AR
#19,334,00070) - EEB AL EFERE AG)
W 2 38 0N+ (i) We A B8 00 ¢ Rz (i) T B B
ST REMSERI R DM -



Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE R A

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group maintains a stable financial position. As at
31 December 2018, the Group had cash and bank balances
of approximately RMB103,467,000 (2017: RMB98,186,000),
while short and long term bank borrowings were approximately
RMB1,267,000 and approximately RMB8,037,000 respectively
(2017: RMB1,059,000 and RMB9,071,000). All bank loans
were denominated in New Taiwan Dollars, at prevailing market
interest. During the year, the Group did not use any financial
instruments for hedging purposes. As at 31 December 2018,
the gearing ratio representing the ratio of total borrowing to the
total assets of the Group remained to be 3.9% (2017: 4.4%),
a number reflecting that the Group did not solely depend
on loans and borrowings to maintain its operations, thus the
Group’s lending risk was very low.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE
RATES

During the vyear, the Group’s major operations were still
geographically based in the PRC, and only a portion was
diversified across Taiwan, Hong Kong and Vietnam. The
revenue derived from Taiwan, Hong Kong and Vietnam only
accounted for 4.7% (2017: approximately 6.2%) of the total
revenue. The Group’s financial statements are denominated in
Renminbi, except for certain incomes and expenses which are
denominated in United States Dollar, New Taiwan Dollar, Hong
Kong Dollar and Vietnamese Dong. It is possible that the value
of Renminbi may fluctuate against that of United States Dollar,
New Taiwan Dollar, Hong Kong Dollar and Vietnamese Dong.
The Group’s operating results and financial position may be
affected by changes in the exchange rates of Renminbi against
United States Dollar, New Taiwan Dollar, Hong Kong Dollar and
Vietnamese Dong, the denominating currencies of the Group's
revenue and expenses. As at 31 December 2018, the Group
did not have any bank liabilities, foreign exchange contracts,
interest or currency swaps or other financial derivatives for
hedging purpose. Therefore, the Group is not exposed to any
material interest and exchange risks.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB R S oA

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL
OF INVESTMENTS

In 2018, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which, it disposed 40% of equity interests in
Bau Shan Life Science Technology Co., Ltd., its wholly-owned
subsidiary in Taiwan to an independent third party at a
consideration of NTD62,700,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB13,996,000). Due to the time needed for processing the
relevant registration, the disposal is expected to be completed
in around May 2019.

The Group has not acquired or disposed of any material
investment, save as disclosed above.

THE NUMBER AND REMUNERATION OF
EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed approximately
169 employees (2017: 209 employees). The Group determines
staff remuneration in accordance with prevailing market salary
scales, individual qualifications and performance. Remuneration
packages including performance bonuses and entitlements to
share options are reviewed on regular basis.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment pledged as security for the Group's
bank borrowings was approximately RMB19,455,000 (2017:
RMB18,877,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any
contingent liabilities (2017: Nil).

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the year ended 31 December 2018, capital expenditure
of the Group for property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately RMB1,545,000 (2017: RMB1,325,000).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided for in the financial
statements amounting to approximately RMB6,523,000 (2017:
RMB6,523,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE R A

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects would be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties including business risks, operational risks and
financial management risks.

The key business and operations risk exposure by the Group
are summarized as follows:

(i)  Slowing down of the economy and customer spending;
(i) Deterioration of market competition;

(iii)  Increasing life expectancy and decline in the number of
deceased persons;

(ivy  Non-compliance with any relevant rules and regulations
in the PRC by the owners of funeral parlour and funeral
service centres in the PRC, and;

(v)  Reliance on qualified and skilled employees as the
business operations of the Group are service-oriented,;

The financial risk management policies and practices of the
Group are shown in note 32 to the financial statements.

There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those
mentioned above which are not known to the Group or which
may not be material now but could turn out to be material in
the future.

ENVIRONMENTAL
PERFORMANCE

POLICY AND

The Group emphasises on environmental conservation.
Although the Group does not establish a formal environmental
policy, various measures have been implemented to encourage
compliance with environmental legislation and promote
awareness towards environmental protection to the employees.
It implements green office practices such as double-sided
printing and copying, promoting using recycled paper and
reducing energy consumption by switching off idle lightings
and electrical appliances. To conserve the environment, the
Company encourages staff to maintain electronic records in
order to reduce paper consumption. The Group will review
its environmental practices periodically and will consider
implementing further eco-friendly measures and practices in the
operation of the Group’s businesses.
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LAWS AND REGULATIONS OF OUR
BUSINESS

As far as the Board of Directors and management are aware,
the Group has complied in material respects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Group. During the year ended
31 December 2018, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group establishes good working relationship with
employees. The quality of the employer-employee relationship
affects each employee’s morale, productivity and ultimately,
the Company’s profitability. Each employee’s ideal work
environment varies and the expectations include a relationship
that is mutually respect, encourages open communication and
is free of hostile working conditions. Certain employees have
worked for the Group for over 15 years.

The Group has built a solid track record for providing reliable
and cost competitive funeral services and has a good reputation
with the customers. The Group has also conducted survey of
customers’ opinion on its services with regard to the types of
services which had been provided to the customers and their
comments on the quality of the services provided.

The Group puts strong emphasis on the reliability of suppliers
to meet the needs of our customers. The Group’s practice to
make prompt payment to suppliers benefited the Group from
negotiating a better price and maintaining long term relation
with the suppliers.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there were no

material and significant dispute between the Group and its
employees, suppliers and/or customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES

WITH ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

An analysis comparing the business objectives as stated in the
Prospectus and the announcement (the “Announcement”) of
the Company on 8 December 2015 with the Group’s actual
business progress for the period from 9 September 2009 (the
“Listing Date”) to 31 December 2018 is set out below:

Business objectives for the period from the
Listing Date to 31 December 2018 as stated in
the Prospectus and the Announcement
BREEBRZAEMELTHRE
—F¥-N\NE+-A=+—-BHHEMEBBEE

BIEE N AT
REEERREREERLE

ARz HBREREN-_ZE—AF+=A
NAZAE(ZAEDFEBKBZEHER
SEE-_TTNFNANAB(LTHEEBDE
EZFE - )\FF+ZA=F+—HLHEER
EBEREABNITEH N T

Actual business progress up to 31 December
2018
BE-_F-N\FE+-A=Z+—-HWEREBER

1. Expand funeral services network in other
major cities by entering into funeral-services
agreement
BRI BERBGHE  BAEMEIEHMH
B &R A

2.  Purchase of funeral
facilities

BEBRERGRBERIE

service equipment and

The Group has implemented two of the memoranda
of understanding (the “MQOU") disclosed in the “Future
Plan and Prospects” section of the Prospectus.
AEEBETHERERIARKFT S RAIR] -8 #E
B E R R R ok ([ER AR = 81 ) o

The Group is in the process of negotiating the terms
with the owners of remaining funeral parlours and
new funeral service centres.
AEEFEERBEREITEEREROEEAE
PR K o

The Group has also signed other
subcontracting agreements during 2010.
REENRER_ZE—ZFITHMMOFTABRWRE °

two new

The Group has commenced business in Vietnam
during 2013. The graveyard currently under
construction is expected to be commissioned in 2020.
REFER_Z—=FRBBRAIER BEER
CEBRBEHENR_Z_TFEEKMA -

The Group has completed the purchase of advanced
equipment and facilities designated for funeral.

AEBEERBEABEMRNEERERRE -

As disclosed in the Announcement, the Board resolved
to change the application of the remaining net
proceeds of the Placing as points 5 and 6 below.

HMZAEMBEE EFGHRUTINEIERFEE
B2 A BN ERFMFEFRARENRE -
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Business objectives for the period from the
Listing Date to 31 December 2018 as stated in
the Prospectus and the Announcement
BRERBRZAEMELTAHE
—E-N\E+-A=+—-BHEMEBHEHE

Actual business progress up to 31 December
2018
BE-_F-/\E+-A=Z1+—-HHEREBER

3. Refurbishment of new and existing service
centres

KEHLBRBORSF O

4.  Expansion of marketing network
BRMISHEREAR

5. Consideration for the Acquisition

WEER ZR(E

6. Expansion of the business into the market on
the golden-ager and elderly care

TRREGNREZEABEEBZTS

According to the changes to the use of proceeds as disclosed

The Group has completed the decoration and
improvement of funeral parlour and services centres.

AEBCABEERREREEMRBEHL -

The Group has completed the establishment of the
website and organized and sponsored a forum and
research on the funeral industry.
AEBERMRBEIRUEARERRENERABEESE
2B R -

The Group has completed the Acquisition on
31 March 20176.
AEEBERZE—AR"F-A=+—HEXKEEE -

The Group has started the acquisition of related
property, plant and equipment. However, due to the
business development not achieving expected results,
resource allocation is ceased.
AEBEFRBEEBRYE BEMRE  HREER
ERAERH BEFLEEREK -

REZASHEBEEBREEMSHERE

in the Announcement, save for the outstanding RMB7,370,000
that is planned for the expansion of the markets of golden-
ager and elderly care business, the proceeds from the issue
of new shares of the Company have been fully utilized in
accordance with the plan disclosed in the Prospectus and
the Announcement. The Directors are actively reviewing its
future business development seeking out appropriate business
opportunities. It is expected that no further resources will
be allocated for the expansion of golden-ager and elderly
care businesses, and the use of proceeds will be modified
according to the GEM Listing Rules announcement before the
implementation of the desirable project

As at 31 December 2018, all remaining proceeds are deposited
in banks as interest bearing deposits.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and the code provisions as set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The principles adopted
by the Company emphasis a quality board, transparency and
accountability to shareholders. In the opinion of the Board,
the Company has complied with the Code for the year ended
31 December 2018, with the exception for the following
deviation:

Certain independent non-executive Directors, for the time when
the general meeting was held in year 2018, had other business
engagements and thus, were not able to attend the general
meeting held in year 2018. In this regard, the compliance officer
and Company Secretary had reminded the relevant independent
non-executive Directors as well as the current independent non-
executive Directors and other non-executive Director to attend
general meetings of the Company in future, for compliance of
code provision A.6.7 as set out in the Code.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of
all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with such code of conduct throughout the year
ended 31 December 2018.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A)

Board Composition
For the year ended 31 December 2018 and until the date
of this report, the Board comprises members as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Xu Jianchun
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai

Non-executive Director
Dr. Xu Qiang
(Appointed on 1 March 2019)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chai Chung Wai
Mr. Sun Fei

(Appointed on 23 January 2018)

Mr. Wang Jun

(Appointed on 17 April 2018)
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu

(Resigned on 23 January 2018)
Mr. Lee Koon Hung

(Resigned on 17 April 2018)

The composition of the Board is well balanced with
each Director having sound industry knowledge,
extensive corporate and strategic planning experience
and/or expertise relevant to the business of the Group.
Pursuant to the Code Provision, the Board adopted a
board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”).
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
diversity of Board members. While all Board appointments
will continue to be made on a merit basis, the Company
will ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
needs of the Company’s business. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. Changes in the Board
during the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to
the date of this report are disclosed as above. The
biographical details of the Directors and the relationship
among the members of the Board, if any, are set out in
the “Directors and Senior Management” on pages from
37 to 41 of this annual report.
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Role and Function

The Board is responsible for formulating the strategic
business development, reviewing and monitoring
the business performance of the Group, as well as
preparing and approving financial statements. The
Directors, collectively and individually, are aware of their
responsibilities to the Shareholders, for the manner
in which the affairs of the Group are managed and
operated. As and when necessary, the Directors can
access to the advice and services of the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”), and in
the appropriate circumstances, seeking of independent
professional advice at the Group’s expense to ensure
that the Board procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

The Board gives clear directions as to the powers
delegated to the management for the management and
administration functions of the Group, in particular,
with respect to the circumstances where management
should report back and obtain prior approval from the
Board before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Group. The Board fully
supports the senior management to discharge its duties
and responsibilities in all circumstances. The Board will
review those arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure
that they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.
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The Board normally should schedule four meetings a year
at quarterly intervals and meets as and when required
to discuss the overall business, development strategy,
operations and financial reporting of the Company. For
the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board held seven
meetings. The Directors can attend meetings in person
or through other means of electronic communication in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association
(the "Articles of Association”). The Directors will receive
agenda and details of items for decision in advance
of each board meeting. The following table shows the
attendance of individual Directors at the Board meetings
and general meetings held during the year:

Executive Directors BITESE

Mr. Xu Jianchun (Chairman) HREFE)

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai 2R e

Independent non-executive BIAFPITES
Directors

Mr. Chai Chung Wai EREEE

Mr. Sun FeiNete ! & M Es

Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biuNete 2 B—gaEn

Mr. Wang Junnete 3 T oigsp A
Mr. Lee Koon Hunghee 4 2 5 ot g A

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to the Code A.2.1, the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
clearly established and set out in writing.
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The positions of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer (“CEO”) of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2018 are performed by Mr. Xu Jianchun and Mr.
Liu Tien-Tsai, respectively.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the vyear, the Board complies at all times with
the requirement of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least 3 independent non-executive directors
presenting at least one-third of the Board with at least one of
them has appropriate professional qualifications of accounting
or related financial management expertise. The Company has
received from each independent non-executive Director an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the Code Provision A.6.5, all directors should
participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed
and relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging
and funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of the Directors.

During the year and up to the date of this report, all Directors
have participated in continuous professional development by
attending training course or reading relevant materials on the
topics related to roles, functions and duties of a listed company
director.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has also established the following committees with
defined terms of reference:

Audit Committee

Remuneration Committee

Nomination Committee

Each Board committee makes decisions on matters within its
terms of reference and applicable limits of authority. The terms
of reference as well as the structure and membership of each
committee will be reviewed from time to time.

A)

Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”) with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing
Rules which consists of three independent non-executive
Directors.

Composition and Meeting Record of the Audit
Committee

For the year ended 31 December 2018, five meetings
were held. The following table shows the attendance of
individual Directors at the meetings held during the year:

Mr. Sun FeiNee ' (Chairman)
Mr. Chai Chung Wai

Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biuNet 2
Mr. Wang Junhote 3

Mr. Lee Koon Hunghet 4

Role and Function
The major responsibilities of the Audit Committee include,
among others, the followings:

i. making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of
external auditor;

ii. reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard;

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018

<

EEERTE
EEETHITIEEE T RELBR
wE:

REFREQHAMBERERE N ERE
RAZEEFELRE - ARAHTHEE
FELREGCHBERE RBRKE -

A) BREEE

ARRERYEBERZES([BERE
Bg ) WREGEM LM BI55.28%
S33MGHIFTEEMBEREGE - He
—EBAUFERITEFAN

ERZESRERSEICHE
BE-—ZT—N\E+-A=+—ALE ¢
B EBSAREE - TRESIER ‘Jf/
FERFALFEEZZ2BR:

B OREER(EE) 5/5
=R A 5/5

1e— Rk 0/0

T Hop g 3/3

ZS 5t A e 2/2
AR
EZLZEG T ERERE(ESS
FE)ATN&IE

MONEZEA 2 ZE - EFZ
FRESNEZSIREEBS
8

i. REBEEAFRERIRERINE
B R B M R E B M M
BB L



B)

Corporate Governance Report

iii.  monitoring the integrity of the Group’s financial
statements, annual reports and accounts, half-yearly
report and, quarterly reports;

/A\ RYRVE A#r N

EXRE

i. BERAREZHBEHREK FE
BELKE FFERERST
BEREZTEMNE:

#&m

iv.  liaising with the Board and the senior management v. HEZERaRAETEEBER
and to meet with the auditor; HiZEMmER

v.  overviewing the Group’s financial controls, internal v. EEBEAREKEZBBE %ll
control and risk management systems; and ZEHERBRERRS

vi.  reviewing the financial and accounting policies and vii BEAEEZBBREGTIHE
practices of the Group. WA R AE ) o

During the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed RERN - BEREZEGERFE - ¥F

the quarterly, half-yearly and annual reports before
submission to the Board. The Audit Committee focused
not only on the impact of the changes in accounting
policies and practices but also on the compliance with
accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules and the legal

ERFEREREEECNAEEH
B TIE BERZESEERLEER
WEE - - FFERFEHRSH@NE
Eﬁ;‘fﬁé%ﬁﬁﬁz%&'If'i‘fﬁll*ﬁﬁiﬂkﬁ}zaﬁ
2 JAEFEEesrER - GEM LT

requirements in the review of the Group's quarterly, half- AR ifi%ﬁmﬁ’]é%ﬁ ED
yearly and annual reports.
Remuneration Committee B) ¥MZEST

The Company has established a remuneration committee
(the "Remuneration Committee”) according to the
relevant provision of the GEM Listing Rules with written
terms of reference which consists of three independent
non-executive Directors.

Composition and Meeting Record of the
Remuneration Committee

ARRIERYFHEE G (HMEE
AJ)]I?FE%FGEMLH?%EE'MH?WM&?U%U
FIEEEBERE  HRa=%%F
%ﬂ.ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁk

YWEZEERERERTH

For the year ended 31 December 2018, three meetings HEZZT—\F+_A=+—HIEF
were held. The following table shows the attendance of E Egﬁi‘ﬁ— R&% o TREHIER
individual Directors at the meetings held during the year: EEFAREERZBR:

Mr. Chai Chung Wai (Chairman) BREEE(FE) 3/3
Mr. Sun Feitete ! B OmEL™ 2/2
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biuNete 2 B—gaEr 0/0
Mr. Wang Junhete 3 T BHEE® 0/0
Mr. Lee Koon Hunghete4 25k g A 2/2
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Role and Function
The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include, among others, the followings:

#&r:

i. making recommendations to the Board on the
Company'’s policy and structure for all remuneration
of Directors and senior management;

ii. determining the specific remuneration packages of
all executive directors and senior management;

iii.  reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;
and

iv.  reviewing and approving the compensation payable
to executive directors and senior management
in connection with any loss or termination of
their office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is determined in accordance
with relevant contractual terms and that such
compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive
for the Company.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has
reviewed the remuneration package of the Board
members and the senior management of the Company.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee
(the "Nomination Committee”) in August 2009
with written terms of reference in accordance with
requirements of the Stock Exchange which consists of
three independent non-executive Directors.

Composition and Meeting Record of the
Nomination Committee

For the year ended 31 December 2018, three meetings
were held. The following table shows the attendance of
individual Directors at the meetings held during the year:

Mr. Wang Jun (Chairman)hete 3
Mr. Chai Chung Wai

Mr. Sun FejNote !

Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biuNete 2
Mr. Lee Koon Hunghet 4
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Role and Function
The major responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include, among others, the followings:

Vi.

reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board on a regular basis and making
recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed changes;

identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and making recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships;

assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors;

making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors, in particular the chairman and the
chief executive officer;

making recommendations to the Board on the
policy concerning the diversity of Board members;
and

giving full consideration to the Board’s policy
concerning diversity of Board members adopted
from time to time.

The summary of work performed by the Nomination
Committee during 2018 is as follows:

To review the existing Board’'s structure, size,
composition, and diversity;

To review the member of the board diversity policy;
To review the nomination policy;

To review and assess the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors; and

To make recommendations on the retiring Directors
at the 2018 AGM of the Company.
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Board Nomination Policy

The Company adopted a nomination policy, which
establishes written guidelines to the Nomination
Committee to identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships with reference to the formulated criteria.
The Board is ultimately responsible for selection and
appointment of new Directors.

The Board, through the delegation of its authority to
the Nomination Committee, has used its best efforts to
ensure that Directors appointed to the Board possess
the relevant background, experience and knowledge in
business, finance and management skills critical to the
Group’s business to enable the Board to make sound
and well considered decisions. Collectively, they have
competencies in areas which are relevant and valuable to
the Group.

Nomination Process

The Nomination Committee shall assess whether any
vacancy on the Board has been created or is expected
on a regular basis or as required.

The Nomination Committee utilizes various methods
for identifying director candidates, including
recommendations from Board members, management,
and professional search firms. All director candidates,
including incumbents and candidates nominated by
Shareholders are evaluated by the Nomination Committee
based upon the director qualifications. While director
candidates will be evaluated on the same criteria through
review of resume, personal interview and performance of
background checks. The Nomination Committee retains
the discretion to establish the relative weighting of such
criteria, which may vary based on the composition, skill
sets, age, gender and experiences of the collective Board
rather than on the individual candidate for the purpose
of diversity perspectives appropriate to the requirement
of the Company’s business.
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Selection Criteria

The Nomination Committee will take into account
whether a candidate has the qualifications, skills,
experience and gender diversity that add to and
complement the range of skills, experience and
background of existing Directors by considering the
highest personal and professional ethics and integrity
of the director candidates, proven achievement and
competence in the nominee’s field and the ability
to exercise sound business judgment, skills that are
complementary to those of the existing Board, the ability
to assist and support management and make significant
contributions to the Company’s success and such other
factors as it may deem are in the best interests of the
Company and the Shareholders.

The Company shall review and reassess the nomination
policy and its effectiveness on a regular basis or as
required.

Board Diversity Policy

The composition of the Board is reviewed on an annual
basis by the Nomination Committee to ensure that
the Board has the appropriate mix of expertise and
experience, and collectively possesses the necessary core
competence for informed decision-making and effective
functioning. The Company adopted its own board
diversity policy and recognises the benefits of having
diversity in the composition of the Board.

The Company noted that people from different
background and with different professional and life
experience are likely to approach problems in different
ways and accordingly, members of the Board with
diverse background will bring different concerns and
guestions to the table, and allow the Board to consider a
wider range of options and solutions when deciding on
corporate issues and formulating policies for the Group.
In determining the Board’s composition and selection
of candidates to the Board, the Nomination Committee
will consider factors including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, industry knowledge and
length of service.
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All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against the selection
criteria, having regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board, the business model and specific needs of the
Group. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

Composition of the Diversified Board

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
six Directors. The following table further illustrate the
composition and diversity of the Board in terms of age,
length of service with the Group, educational background
and professional experience as of the date of this annual
report:

Fﬁﬁ%%@éfﬂ%ﬁ#ﬁﬁ/\ﬂ&ﬁ%"

A WimsEREZERREAN EF

ﬁ%J“q%%/\ﬁX,@\ym{t%ﬁém &

BEBRAKRABIR  ZRERE

BRIABREAZBHEBAES
ERNERE -

BEZnftBzESE2EK

RAFHAY  EFgh UESA
e TRE-FRREFEEFI
MAORKERGH  BESRRER
KRBT EZEKEREZTEREE

Age Group Length of Service
FitE R %5 £ #A
less than more than

Name of Director 35 to 49 50 to 64 5 years 5 years
Esna 3558 495k  505% E645% 5T 5L L
Mr. Xu Jianchun v v
ARERAE
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai v
R E
Dr. Xu Qiang v v
f* ®wEL
Mr. Chai Chung Wai v
EREAE
Mr. Sun Fei v v
7’ OmEE
Mr. Wang Jun v v
T BE4E
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Professional Experience

SEER BXER
Accounting
Name of Director Science Accountancy Others Science and Finance Management
ESKE B2 L Hith e B R &R EB
Mr. Xu Jianchun v/ v/ v/
HEREEE
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai v/ v
e bt
Dr. Xu Qiang v/ v/ 4
fr ®BEL
Mr. Chai Chung Wai v/ v/ v/
BRERE
Mr. Sun Fei v/ v/
B OREL
Mr. Wang Jun v/ v/
T B%4%
Notes: 1. Mr. Sun Fei was appointed on 23 January 2018 #Z:01 BRAEER=ZZT—N\F—A
Z+=-HEZF
2. Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu resigned on 2. B-—REER_ZT—N\F—
23 January 2018 A-+=0#&F
3. Mr. Wang Jun was appointed on 17 April 2018 3. FHEER=ZT-N\FNA
TEREZAE
4. Mr. Lee Koon Hung resigned on 17 April 2018 4. FEAEEER-_ZT-N\FN
A+tRH#E

APPOINTMENT,
REMOVAL

RE-ELECTION AND

Under Code A.4.1, all the non-executive Directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. At present,
each of Mr. Chai Chung Wai, Mr. Sun Fei and Mr. Wang Jun,
the independent non-executive Directors, and Dr. Xu Qiang,
the non-executive Director have been appointed for a specific
term of three years.

According to the requirements of article 16.18 of the Articles
of Association, one-third of the Directors are required to retire
from office at each annual general meeting, provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
in every three years. The Directors to retire every year shall be
those appointed by the Board during the year and those who
have been longest in office since their last re-election.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

#&m

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the remuneration
paid to the auditor, Elite Partners CPA Limited in respect of
audit services amounted to approximately RMB716,000 (2017:
approximately RMB1,040,000).

DIRECTORS" AND AUDITOR'S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for each financial period
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flows for the period. In
preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year,
the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgements and estimates
that are prudent, fair and reasonable and on a going concern
basis. The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Having made appropriate enquiries, the Board is not aware
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
which may cast significant doubt over the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. It is the auditor’s responsibility to
form an independent opinion, based on their audit, on those
consolidated financial statements and to report their opinion
solely to the Shareholders, as a body, and for no other purpose.
They do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of the auditor’s report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Wing Sum Steven is the current Company Secretary. His
current primary contact person with the Company is Mr. Xu
Jianchun, the Chairman and an executive Director. According
to Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Mr. Li has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the year
ended 31 December 2018.
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INTERNAL

CONTROL

(a)

the process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks;

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification — Identifies risks that may potentially
affect the Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment — (i) Assesses the risks identified by using
the assessment criteria developed by the management;
and (i) Considers the impact and consequence on the
business and the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response — (i) Prioritises the risks by comparing the
results of the risk assessment; and (ii) Determines the risk
management strategies and internal control processes to
prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting — (i) Performs ongoing
and periodic monitoring of the risk and ensures that
appropriate internal control processes are in place; (ii)
Revises the risk management strategies and internal
control processes in case of any significant change of
situation; and (iii) Reports the results of risk monitoring
to the management and the Board regularly.

the main features of the risk management and internal
control systems

Control procedures have been designed to safeguard
assets against misappropriation and disposition; ensure
compliance with relevant laws, rules and regulations;
ensure proper maintenance of accounting records for
provision of reliable financial information used within the
business or for publication; and to provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement, loss or fraud.
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an acknowledgement by the board that it is responsible
for the risk management and internal control systems
and reviewing their effectiveness. It should also explain
that such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss

The Board is responsible for the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company and reviewing
their effectiveness. The Board oversees the overall risk
management of the Group and endeavours to identify,
control impact of the identified risks and facilitate
implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The
risk management and internal control systems of the
Company are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failures to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

the process used to review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

The Company has engaged Elite Partners Risk Advisory
Services Limited as its risk management and internal
control review adviser (“the Adviser”) to conduct the
annual review of the risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 December 2018.
Such review is conducted annually and cycles reviewed are
under rotation basis. The scope of review was previously
determined and approved by the Board. The Adviser
has reported findings and areas for improvement to the
Audit Committee and management. The Board/Audit
Committee are of the view that there are no material
internal control defeats noted. All recommendations from
the Adviser are properly followed up by the Group to
ensure that they are implemented within a reasonable
period of time. The Board therefore considered that
the risk management and internal control systems are
effective and adequate.
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(e)  the procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

An information disclosure policy is in place to ensure
potential inside information being captured and
confidentiality of such information being maintained until
consistent and timely disclosure are made in accordance
with the GEM Listing Rules. The policy regulates the
handling and dissemination of inside information, which
includes: (i) Designated reporting channels from different
operations informing any potential inside information
to designated departments; (i) Designated persons
and departments to determine further escalation and
disclosure as required; and (i) Designated persons
authorised to act as spokespersons and respond to
external enquiries.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting
Pursuant to article 12.3 of the Articles of Association,
extraordinary general meetings of the Company (the "EGM(s)"”)
shall also be convened on the requisition of two or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Directors or the Company
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within three months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty one days
of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s), as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting enquiries to the Board

To ensure effective communication between the Board and
the Shareholders, the Company has adopted a Shareholders’
communication policy (the “Policy”). Under the Policy,
the Company’s information shall be communicated to the
Shareholders mainly through general meetings, including annual
general meetings, the Group’s financial reports (quarterly
report, half-yearly reports and annual reports), and its corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange website.
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Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available.
Any such questions shall be first directed to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office and principal place of
business in Hong Kong or the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar and transfer office.

ﬂﬁm

Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meeting
The number of Shareholders necessary for a requisition for
putting forward a proposal at a Shareholders’ meeting shall be
any number of Shareholders representing not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings at the date of the requisition.

Shareholders or investors can enquire by putting their proposals
with the Company through the following means:

Unit 1303, 13/F., Austin Tower,
22-26 Austin Avenue,

Tsim Sha Tsui,

Kowloon, Hong Kong

By post:

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS INSURANCE

Appropriate insurance covers on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
have been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the
Group from their risk exposure arising from the business of the
Group.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 17.47(4) of the GEM Listing Rules, any vote
of shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll
except where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a
resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative
matter to be voted on by a show of hands.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established a range of communication
channels between itself and its shareholders, and investors.
These include the publication of annual, half-yearly and
quarterly reports, notices, announcements and circulars, the
Company’s website at www.sinolifegroup.com and meetings
with investors and analysts.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a policy on payment of dividends
(the "Dividend Policy”) in March 2019, which establishes an
appropriate procedure on declaring and recommending the
dividend payment of the Company.

The Company will declare and/or recommend the payment of
dividends to the Shareholders after considering the Company’s
ability to pay dividends, which will depend on a number of
factors, including but not limited to:

(i) the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;
(i) the Group’s expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future expansion

plans;

(iii)  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

(iv)  the Group's liquidity position;
(v)  the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business

or financial performance and position of the Group; and

(vi) any other factors that the Board deems relevant.
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The Board has complete discretion on whether to pay a
dividend, subject to Shareholders’ approval, where applicable.
Even if the Board decides to recommend and pay dividends, the
form, frequency and amount will depend upon the operations
and earnings, capital requirements and surplus, general financial
condition, contractual restrictions and other factors of and
affecting the Group. The Board may also consider declaring
interim dividends from time to time.

The Company shall review and reassess the Dividend Policy and
its effectiveness on a regular basis or as required.
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Directors and Senior Management
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As as the date of this report, the biographical information of
the Group’s Directors and senior management are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Jianchun (¥ %), aged 40, was appointed on
22 December 2017 as the Chairman of the Board. Mr. Xu
holds a doctorate degree in economics from Renmin University
of China. Mr. Xu has many years of investment experience in
the biotechnology sector. He has extensive experience in the
biotechnology investment and operation field.

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (2|7 Bf), aged 61, was appointed on
24 February 2005. Mr. Liu is responsible for the overall
corporate strategies, planning, overall operational management
and business development of the Group. Mr. Liu is a director
of all subsidiaries of the Group (including Bau Shan Life
Science Technology Co., Ltd (ZLATREBRMHERA
al) ("Bau Shan”). Mr. Liu founded Bau Shan and became
its controlling shareholder in 1998, and has since then been
continuously expanding its management team. Mr. Liu is also
the team head of the funeral services deed team. Since the
Group's establishment, Mr. Liu has played an active role in
training its team. Mr. Liu obtained certificates in Non-Profit
Making Organisation Management and Mortuary Science and
Funeral Service Management from Nanhua University (EJ 2 X
E)in 2000 and 2001 respectively. Having over 10 years of
managerial, corporate and business experience, Mr. Liu began
his career in funeral business since 1998. Mr. Liu has been a
member of Japan Environmental Zhai Yuan Association (B 7%
IR 1% €) , the National Funeral Director Association of
the United States and the FIAT-IFTA of Holland, and a council
member of Society of Chinese Funeral Education (FFZE R 7 2¢
HAEEZE) and Chinese Society of Life and Death Studies (Ff %
ASLE®) . Mr. Liu had also been a lecturer holding seminars
on the skills of being a ceremonial master and cosmetology at
the Continuing Education Centre, Ling Tung College (485 £ 1if
EpEE B EH S B0 in Taiwan. Mr. Liu is currently an
honorary member of the China Funeral Association (/3 B 7& 2&
# &) in the PRC.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Xu Qiang (#R3#), aged 41, was appointed on 1 March
2019. Dr. Xu obtained his master’s degree in Materials
Physics and Chemistry from Tsinghua University in 2003. In
2008, he has obtained a doctorate’s degree in Quantitative
Electron Diffraction from Delft University of Technology in
the Netherlands. Since 2012, Dr. Xu has served successively
as Product Manager, Director of Application and is now the
Vice President of Business Development in a nanotechnology
company, focusing on the development of electron microscope
related products, in the Netherlands.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chai Chung Wai (B8 &), aged 52, was appointed on
16 February 2009. Mr. Chai obtained his master degree of
Accounting from Jinan University on 6 January 2004 and of
business administration from the University of Manchester in
December 2006. Mr. Chai is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an associate of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and
a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Chai
has extensive experience of over 20 years in the accounting
and financial field. Mr. Chai has been the company secretary
of Ping Shan Tea Group Limited. He is currently independent
non-executive directors of Asia Coal Limited (a company listed
in Hong Kong, stock code: 835) and Sino Energy International
Holdings Group Limited (a company listed in Hong Kong, stock
code: 1096).
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Mr. Sun Fei (&), aged 39, was appointed on 23 January
2018. Mr. Sun obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in
biophysics from the Department for Intensive Instruction of
Science and Arts of Nanjing University in 2001, and obtained
a doctorate degree in biophysics from the School of Medicine,
Tsinghua University in 2006. Since 2006, he has been a
researcher at the Institute of Biophysics of the Chinese Academy
of Sciences, conducting an independent research on biophysics
and structural biology. Since 2012, he has served as the
director of the Center for Biological Imaging of the Institute
of Biophysics of the Chinese Academy of Sciences, leading the
establishment and operation of the international-class Center
for Biological Imaging. Since 2015, he has been appointed as
professor at the University of Chinese Academy of Sciences,
teaching graduate and undergraduate students. He has
extensive research experience in biophysical technology, cryo-
electron microscopy, biological macromolecular structure and
biological imaging, and has extensive management experience
in the operation and maintenance of research platforms.
In 2009, Mr. Sun was awarded the Shizhang Bei Prize in
Biophysics. In 2013, he was chosen to participate as a teenage
talent in the National Special Support Program for High-Level
Talents, the “Ten Thousand Talent Program”. In 2017, Mr. Sun
was awarded the Outstanding Contribution Award for his
contributions to cryo-electron microscopy in China. In 2017, he
was elected as the managing director of the Biophysical Society
of China and the vice-chairman of the Cryo-electron Microscopy
Branch of the Biophysical Society of China.
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Mr. Wang Jun (E%]), aged 47, was appointed on 17 April
2018. He received his Bachelor of Science in Chemistry and Cell
Biology in 1993 and a Doctor in Polymer Chemistry and Physics
in 1999 from College of Chemistry and Molecular Sciences,
Wuhan University. From 1999 to 2004, he has worked as a
postdoctoral fellow at Johns Hopkins Singapore Pte Ltd (%%
ET & ML AB R A A*) and the School of Medicine
at Johns Hopkins University. From 2004 to 2016, he has been
a professor and a doctoral tutor at the University of Science
and Technology of China. Since 2016, he has been a professor
and a doctoral tutor of School of Medicine, Institutes for Life
Sciences, South China University of Technology. He has excellent
research experiences in biomedical polymers, nanobiomaterials
and nanomedicine. He was awarded the “Hundred Talents
Program” by the Chinese Academy of Sciences in 2005, and
was granted the National Science Fund for Distinguished Young
Scholars in 2011. He was selected as a member of “Young and
Middle — Aged Industrial Leaders of Science and Technology”
by Ministry of Science and Technology of the People’s Republic
of China in 2014, and was selected as one of the scientific and
technological innovation leaders in “The Plan for Ten Thousand
Talents” (8 A&t2l), the National Plan for the Special Support
of High-level Talents in 2016. In 2016, he was selected as a
fellow of the Royal Society of Chemistry. Currently, he serves
as a fellow of the council of Chinese Society for Biomaterials.

* for identification purposes only

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018

EYRE 4T - RTE-N\FHEAT+L
HEZT - —AN=ZFAREERKEKX
B EmE,TREBE  ELEHENM
famBEEEREELEN: — A AAEW
REBXERREABLBES, FRES
o - Eeo FIBEYBEXFELTBM:
—NNANFEZTTNFLEERENGET
& H7 57 00 3 AL A B BR A A1 * (Johns Hopkins
Singapore Pte Ltd) - N EL T ASEE
BREYEFHLERRIE —ETNFE
ZE-AFAFBERERMTRAEHER B
THEER: - NFRIEFREIAS

BEk LwNMERRARBELELLE
B - EEMBRED T AREYH A

MAKBRZEAGAELENMELR - N
T RFAEPEBBERAAGE]
—TE-—FEGERGLEFREES
T -MFEANEREAREFMBER 2 M
BIHEFRRBIHEEAL] ZF—RF
AEBERSERATHERIFAEEA
BRI RAIFIEETAL ZT—RFAE
EHERIILEBELg* (The Royal Society of
Chemistry) 8 & &+ - BRIEPE LM E

* EHHE

St



Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Chang Hui-Lan (38 B 8), aged 52, graduated from the
National Sun Yat-sen University (B 37 & [ K &), Taiwan with
a master degree of Executive MBA program in 2012 and joined
the Group in 2012 as Department Head of Head Management
Office. Ms. Chang also serves as a director of Jing Run Limited.
Ms. Chang has also obtained the certificate of IPMA Level D,
Certificated Project Management Associate issued by Taiwan
Project Management Association in 2009. As head of the
Department Head of Head Management Office and also the
general manager of Chongging Xibao and Chongging Xizhou,
Ms. Chang is responsible for the implementation of the Group's
objectives and business development, in particular overseeing
of personnel, business analysis and internal audit function of
all funeral parlours and funeral service centres in the PRC and
the Group. Ms. Chang is also the team head of the internal
compliance team. She also has over 9 years of experience in
management in respect of the business and operation in funeral
industry.

Ms. Pan Hsiu-Ying (8% &), aged 41, graduated from the
Ming Chuan University (85 {8 X2) with a bachelor degree of
Management in 2001 and joined the Group in June 2001 as
an administrative assistant. Ms. Pan Hsiu-Ying has since served
the Group to the present in various capacities. Ms. Pan also
serves as a director of Jing Run Limited and Baoshan. Ms.
Pan has a thorough knowledge and understanding of the
Group’s business and operations, and has developed a high
level of proficiency and management ability with respect to her
work with the Group. As head of the funeral services deed
department, Ms. Pan is responsible for marketing and attaining
the sale of funeral services deeds. Ms. Pan has over 15 years of
experience in management in respect of the Group’s business
and operation.
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Mr. Li Wing Sum Steven (ZFE XK FE), aged 62, joined our
Company in January 2018 as company secretary. He is a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Having over 35 years of
experience in auditing, accounting, taxation, and in the
company secretarial and financial management fields, Mr. Li
has worked in an international accounting firm and served
as the executive director of a company listed on the Main
Board in Hong Kong and the financial controller of various
companies. At present, he is the independent non-executive
director of Xinjiang Xinmin Mining Industry Co., Ltd., Wang On
Properties Limited and Allied Sustainability and Environmental
Consultants Group Limited, and the company secretary of
Shanghai Fudan Microelectronics Group Co., Ltd. and China
National Culture Group Limited. Except for Allied Sustainability
and Environmental Consultants Group Limited, which is listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange, all these companies are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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The Board is here to present the annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements. There were no significant
changes in nature of Group's principal activities during the year.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future developments in the
group’s business, can be found in the Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 7 to 16 of this Annual Report.
This discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 223.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY'’S
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The proceeds from the Company’s issue of new shares at the
time of its listing on GEM of Stock Exchange in September
2009, after deduction of related issuance expenses, amounted
to approximately RMB82.3 million.

On 8 December 2015, the Board has resolved to change the
use of the remaining net proceeds of approximately RMB29.9
million, representing approximately 39.5% of the net proceeds.
Details of movements in use of proceeds during the year are
set out on pages from 14 to 16 of this annual report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Since the Group is principally engaged in the provision of
funeral services, none of its customers accounted for more than
10% of its total turnover during the year. Purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 33% of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to 12%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any material beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Details of segment reporting are set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of movements in investment property of the Group
during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There are no movements in either the Company’s authorised
or issued share capital during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
of the Group during the year are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2018, the Company’'s reserves available
for distribution to owners comprising share premium
account less accumulated losses, amounted to approximately
RMB24,137,000.

DONATIONS

No charitable donations was made by the Group during the
year (2017: Nil).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Xu Jianchun
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai

Non-executive Director
Dr. Xu Qiang
(Appointed on 1 March 2019)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chai Chung Wai
Mr. Sun Fei
(Appointed on 23 January 2018)
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu
(Resigned on 23 January 2018)
Mr. Wang Jun
(Appointed on 17 April 2018)
Mr. Lee Koon Hung
(Resigned on 17 April 2018)

According to the requirements of article 16.2 of the Articles of
Association, the Board shall have power from time to time and
at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so
appointed shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election at that meeting. In accordance with article 16.2 of
the Articles of Association, as Dr. Xu Qiang was appointed after
the last annual general meeting of the Company, he shall be
subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting,
being the AGM, after his appointment.
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According to the requirements of article 16.18 of the Articles of
Association, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years. Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai and Mr. Chai
Chung Wai will retire by rotation in accordance with article
16.18 of the Article of Association, and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election in the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

As at the date of this report, biographical information of the
Directors and senior management of the Group are set out on
pages from 37 to 42 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENT

Executive Director Mr. Xu Jianchun has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 22 December 2017, which continues
thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less than
two months’ notice in writing to the other party.

Executive Director Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 9 September 2009, which continues
thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less than
three months’ notice in writing to the other party.

Non-executive Director Dr. Xu Qiang has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years from
1 March 2019 to 28 February 2022, which can be terminated
by either party giving not less than one month’s notice in
writing to the other party.

Independent non-executive Director Mr. Chai Chung Wai has
re-entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of three years from 9 September 2018 to 8 September
2021, which can be terminated by either party giving not less
than one month’s notice in writing to the other party.
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Independent non-executive Director Mr. Sun Fei has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
three years from 23 January 2018 which can be terminated by
either party giving not less than one month’s notice in writing
to the other party.

Independent non-executive Director Mr. Wang Jun has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
three years from 17 April 2018 which can be terminated by
either party giving not less than one month’s notice in writing
to the other party.

None of the Directors, including those to be re-elected at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting, has a service agreement
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee is set up for reviewing the Group's
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive
to Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are
set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the directors and five individuals
with highest emoluments are set out in note 8 and note 9 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571
under the Laws of Hong Kong (“SFO")), which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any interests and short
positions which they have taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Rules 5.46 to
5.68 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

Aggregate long positions in the Shares
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Approximate
percentage of the

Number of issued share capital

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Shares held of the Company
EERATEBITRE

B 3R & 18 EmHE PR3 8 E Ok R ON=R 74
Hong Kong Gaogi Biological Beneficial 220,475,000 29.69%

Technology Company Limited
EERBEENREERAF EnEA
Note: The Company’s director Mr. Xu Jianchun is also a director of
Hong Kong Gaogi Biological Technology Company Limited in
which he holds 25% equity interest.

Save as disclosed above and the Directors’ interests as disclosed
in “Directors’ Interests in and Short Positions Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or Any Associated
Corporation”, no person had interests in shares or short
positions in the shares of the Company or underlying shares
which are required to be recorded in the register to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance as at 31 December 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, no Director had a material interest in, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the details as disclosed under the heading
“Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or any Associated
Corporation”above, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company and
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors, or their respective spouse or children under 18 years
of age, to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Exempted Continuing Connected Transactions
Trademark License Agreement |

On 1 January 2012, the Company has entered into the
Trademark Licence Agreement (the “Trademark Agreement |”)
with Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (“Mr. Liu”). Pursuant to the Trademark
Agreement |, Mr. Liu has agreed to grant to the Group on an
exclusive basis a licence to use a number of trademarks and
service marks in connection with the Group’s funeral services
business at a consideration of HK$1,000 per year.

Trademark License Agreement I/

On 1 April 2016, BLL has entered into the Trademark Licence
Agreement (the "Trademark Agreement II”) with Mr. Liu Ting
Hsuan (“Mr. TH Liu”), son of Mr. Liu. Pursuant to the Trademark
Agreement Il, Mr. TH Liu has agreed to grant to the Group
on an exclusive basis a licence to use a number of trademarks
and service marks in connection with the Group’s elderly care
services business at a consideration of maximum HK$1,000 per
year.
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Signing of Deed of Trust

On 14 March 2003, a deed of trust (the “Niao Song Deed”)
was entered into between Bau Shan Life Science Technology
Co., ltd (BlIAEHmRHEKRMARAF)("Bau Shan”), a
subsidiary of the Company and Ms. Li Pi Hsia (“Ms. Li") (28
£ ), spouse of Mr. Liu, in relation to the land property situated
in Taiwan at No. 943 in Section Linnei, Niao Song Township,
Kaohsiung County (1= 5 £ & 2 48 #R 1A B2 94310 5%) (the “Niao
Song Property”). Under the Niao Song Deed, Bau Shan agreed
that the Niao Song Property, which is owned by Bau Shan, shall
be registered under the name of and held on trust by Ms. Li
for Bau Shan for a term of ten years commencing on 14 March
2003. Ms. Li has agreed that she shall act in the interest of
Bau Shan in relation to the Niao Song Property during the
term of the Niao Song Deed. On 15 March 2013, a renewal
of Niao Song Deed was entered into for a term of ten years
commencing on 15 March 2013.

The Group entered into a trust arrangement instead of
transferring the Niao Song Property to the Group because, as
advised by the Taiwan legal adviser to the Group, the Niao
Song Property is a piece of agricultural land and the Law of
Agriculture Development of Taiwan does not allow Bau Shan
being a private corporate body, to be registered as an owner of
a piece of agricultural land. Therefore, the Niao Song Property is
held on trust by Ms. Li for Bau Shan. The Taiwan legal adviser
to the Group has advised that the Niao Song Deed complies
with the Trust Act and other relevant laws and regulations in
Taiwan.

Neimen Deed

On 25 March 2016, a deed of trust (the “Neimen Deed”)
was entered into between BLL and Mr. Liu in relation to a
land property situated in Taiwan at No.0300-00001 in Section
Laizikeng, Neimen District, Kaohsiung County, Taiwan (the
“Neimen Property”). Under the Neimen Deed, BLL agreed that
the Neimen Property, which is owned by BLL, shall be registered
under the name of and held on trust by Mr. Liu for BLL. Mr.
Liu has agreed that he shall act in the interest of BLL in relation
to the Neimen Property.
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Licensing of the use of a property in the PRC to
Chongqing Xibao by Mr. Liu

Mr. Liu signed a confirmation letter agreeing the licensee, &
BB R ER AR AR, a subsidiary of the Company, to
lawfully use the property situated at Unit 1404 on Level 14,
Zhongxing Garden, No. 1 Heping Road, Chongging City, the
PRC (the “Licensed Property”) as the registered office without
the payment of rent or licence fee. The signed confirmation
from Mr. Liu authorizing Chongqging Xibao to use the Licensed
Property as its registered office does not limit Mr. Liu’s personal
use, rental and mortgage of the Licensed Property. There was
no revenue or profit contributed by the Licensed Property during
the year as there had been no occupancy of the Licenced
Property during the year.

The property licensing arrangement with Mr. Liu will last until
30 January 2052.

Licensing of the use of a property in the PRC to
Chongqing Xizhou by Mr. Liu

Mr. Liu signed a tenancy agreement agreeing the Group to
lawfully use the property situated at unit 1404 on Level 14,
Zhongxing Garden, No. 1 Heping Road, Chongging City,
the PRC (the "Leased Property”) as the staff dormitory at a
monthly rent of RMB4,000 starting from 1 January 2017 and
the monthly rent is determined annually.

Operating lease commitment of the Group as lessee at
31 December 2018 amounted to RMB48,000.

A new property licensing arrangement was signed between
Chongging Xizhou and Mr. Liu with the same terms and
for the same purpose, which valid from 1 January 2018 to
31 December 2018.

All the transactions fall within Rule 20.74 of the GEM Listing
Rules and each constitutes a de minimis continuing connected
transaction which is exempt from the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Save as disclosed above, the related party transactions are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements. All
the related party transactions did not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules which are
required to comply with any of the reporting, announcement
or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
GEM Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

INTEREST IN A COMPETING

During Year 2018, none of the Directors, or any person who
was (or group of persons who together were) entitled to
exercise or control the exercise of 5% or more of the voting
power at general meetings of the Company and which was
(or were) able, as a practical matter, to direct or influence
the management of the Company or any of their respective
associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) had any
interest in a business, which competed or might compete with
the business of the Group.

BANK BORROWINGS
Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December

2018 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out
in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers
all the independent non-executive Directors to be independent
parties.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.68
of the GEM Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of
all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed that they
had complied with such code of conduct throughout the year
ended 31 December 2018.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders of
the Company dated 24 August 2009, a share option scheme
("Share Option Scheme") was approved and adopted. The major
terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as follows:

(@  The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to eligible participants
who have contributed or may contribute to the Group as
incentive or rewards for their contributions to the Group.

(b)  The participants include (i) any employee or proposed
employee of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which the Group
holds an equity interest, including any executive directors
and any non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of such
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; and (i) any consultants,
advisers, agents, partners or joint-venture partners of the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.
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The exercise price of a share option under the Share
Option Scheme will not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange as
shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the offer date of the particular option, which must
be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing prices
of the shares as shown in the daily quotations sheets of
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date of that particular option; and
(iii) the nominal value of a share on the offer date of the
particular option.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue
on the day on which trading of the Company’s shares
commenced on GEM (“General Scheme Limit”).

The total number of shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme is 74,250,000 representing 10%
of the issued shares of the Company as at the year end
date.

Unless approved by the Company’s shareholders, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to any participants in any twelve-
month period must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue
at the date of the grant of the options.

An offer shall be made to eligible participants in writing
and shall remain open for acceptance by the eligible
participants concerned for a period of 30 days from the
date upon which it is made provided that no such offer
shall be open for acceptance after the 10th anniversary
of the adoption date of the Share Option Scheme
or the termination of the scheme. An offer shall be
deemed to have been accepted by the eligible participant
concerned in respect of all shares which are offered to
such participant when the duplicate letter comprising
acceptance of the offer duly signed by the eligible
participant, together with a non-refundable remittance in
favour of the Company of HK$10 by way of consideration
for the grant thereof is received by the Company, within
such time as may be specified in the offer.
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(g) The exercisable period should be determined by the board
of directors upon grant of the share option but in any
event should not exceed 10 years from the date of grant
of the share option.

(h)  An option shall be exercisable in whole or in part in
the circumstances by giving notice in writing to the
Company stating that the option is thereby exercised
and the number of shares in respect of which it is so
exercised. Each such notice must be accompanied by a
non-refundable remittance for the full amount of the
subscription price for shares in respect of which the notice
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Details of the share options granted and remaining outstanding R-Z—N\F+-_A=+—HEREERHFE
as at 31 December 2018 are as follows: TEzZEREFBEOT:
Number of share options
EREYE
Exercise
Name/category of price At 1 January At 31 December
participants Date of grant per share Exercisable period 2018 Lapsed 2018
=13 RZF-\E RZB-N\%
SHEERE B RHBH fTEE TREE -A—-H BX% +=A=+-H
Continuous contract 11 February 2010 HK$1.18 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 8,028,000 (1,696,000) 6,332,000
employees —E-ZF 18T —ZT-ZFENA+-HBE
EEANER ZRA+-H —ZE-Z2F-A+-H
Consultants 11 February 2010 HK$1.18 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 41,900,000 = 41,900,000
B —T-ZF LgET —ZE-ZFNA+-HBHE
ZRA+-H —ZE-Z2F-A+-H
49,928,000 (1,696,000) 48,232,000

For the options granted in 2010, they are exercisable starting
half year from the grant date. The exercisable period is 10 years
from the date of grant of the share option.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors, chief executives or substantial shareholders of the
Company or their respective associates have been granted share
options under the Share Option Scheme.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association and the laws of Cayman lIslands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Save and except the deviation from the Code A.6.7 as contained
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules, the Company had,
during the year, complied with the Code.

The Group’s compliance with the Code is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report from pages 17 to 36 of this
annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for
Director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in
force for the benefit of the Directors as required by section
470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong
Kong) when the Report of the Board of the Directors prepared
by the Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)
(@) of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong
Kong).

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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AUDITOR

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited, who acted as auditor for last year
resigned as auditor of the Company on 15 August 2018. Elite
Partners CPA Limited was appointed on 15 August 2018 to fill
the casual vacancy. The consolidated financial statements for
the year were audited by Elite Partners CPA Limited, who will
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, shall offer themselves for reappointment.

On behalf of the Board

Xu Jianchun
Chairman and Executive Director

27 March 2019
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elite
< partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
To the members of
Sino-Life Group Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sino-Life Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 66
to 223, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INndependent Auditor's Report

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are the matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

FEEEIR

Valuation of land and buildings

T REFHE

The carrying amount of Group’s land and buildings as at
31 December 2018 was approximately RMB24,831,000.
The land and buildings are stated at re-valuated amount
which was determined based on valuation performed
by independent professional external valuer using the
direct comparison method.

EEEN T M EBEFR-_ZTE-NFT+_A=1+—BH
RAAER¥24,831,0007T » LI REFIUE-HESHEIE -
EfSBDRINEB LB ELERMEREELBOE
ETHNGREETE -

The valuation of land and buildings require the
application of significant judgement and estimation in
determining the appropriate valuation methodology
to be used, use of subjective assumptions and various
unobservable inputs. The valuation is sensitive to
underlying assumptions applied by the valuers such as
market comparable used and the capitalisation rate may
have a significant impact to the valuation.
HEIHWREFCBEERTERERAZESMEHES
ECERIEBRRLRETEZIBEERARESS
EP R ERAE R - EEEEEMERZERD
BR(MPAATSLERER &R BERMEEERKE
HEEEEEATE -
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How the matter was addressed
in our audit

EfPEERAMEENSE

We assessed competency, capability and objectivity
of the independent professional external valuers and
read the terms of engagements of the valuer to
determine whether there were any matters which
might affect their objectivity or impede their scope
of work.
BMEIINBETEREEBEMCENRBIREE
Talfh YEBGEEMZIZEEGR  UEBEERS
BEREMAETEABUEEX G HRIHE
FH-o

We assessed the valuation methodology (direct
comparison method), assumptions and estimates
used against general market practice for similar
property type.
BMEHERE(EELRR)RMATERRE &G
STERBELUREN Y EN — RIS 8O L BT
FE A o

We held discussions with the valuer both with and
without presence of the management to discuss
and understand the valuation process, the valuation
methodology and the significant judgement and
assumptions applied.
BPMEERERS R TESNIE R T &L (ERE
Tatim > AR RTHREERRE  BEHDERMR
EAEXNHEREBR -
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INndependent Auditor's Report

Key audit matter
FHEETEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill
HMERETMS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a goodwill
which relates to the business combination of BLL in prior
year (“CGU"). During the year ended 31 December
2018, the Group recognised impairment loss on
goodwill of approximately RMB 2,868,000.
RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H8 ' BESEHEAFHETE
MOEBEH(ReELELDAENEE - #HEZ
Z-NE+_A=+—RLFE - EEEEER
R #2,868,000t WA EBREERE -

For the purpose of impairment assessment of goodwill,
the Group appointed an independent external valuer to
assess the recoverable amount of CGU at the end of
the reporting period.

REBRENENS BEEEZRET 2B LINE
HEM  AFERBERRNREEELELNATK
Bl &% o

We had identified impairment assessment of goodwill
as a key audit matter because significant management
judgement was required to determine the key
assumptions including estimated future income,
operating margins and discount rate, etc.
BPEREABRENERNSEREFZE  THR
ETEARKNBESIREANEBEHE  BFMG
FEARRBA - BEFMBERFNREE > BSLRNE
B TRERK o
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How the matter was addressed
in our audit

B PEBRERSEENSIE

Our major audit procedures in relation to the
impairment assessment of goodwill included the
following:

B EBaH BB RETELRELEEMNS
HITHAREBAREFEEUATRER:

—  We discussed with management as to whether
there was any indicator of impairment;
HPERERENmED T EERREZT
%

—  We obtained cash flow forecasts relating
to the CGU prepared by management and
approved by the directors of the Company;
HMESHEERERREAEA EAFRERH
ENReEABUNRSRERR

— We discussed with management and

independent external valuer engaged by the
Company in relation to the methodology,
basis and assumptions used in arriving at the
forecasts (e.g. estimated sales growth rate
and discount rate etc.) to see whether the
methodology and assumptions used were
reasonable and appropriate;
BMEEBEERARAARENE LINEEE
A& s i BTRRIR PR A 0% » EERRKRHR
(WA HERRERINREKRE) - UHEHR
RO TERBREERERES

—  We checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy

and reliance of the input data used;
BPEREAEERE AR A SR E®
ERAEE &

— We evaluated the competency of the

independent external valuer taking into
account its experience and qualifications.
BPIEARBILIEHEMNEREEE -
CLEL PR
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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INndependent Auditor's Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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INndependent Auditor's Report

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Yip Kai Yin with Practising
Certificate number P05131.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10/F., 8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

27 March 2019
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Consolioated Statement of Profit or Loss and Oher Comprenensive Incon;\ \

relEm EMERW S

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE=_F

15K

—NFF+ZA=+—BLEFE

2018 2017
—E—-N\EF —+tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 3 AREBTR AREF T
Revenue BEXH 4 62,667 60,709
Cost of sales & KA (34,778) (30,111)
Gross profit E7 27,889 30,598
Fair value gain on investment BEME 2 RN FERZ
property 217 237
Other income H e A 5 2,431 741
Selling expenses #HE X (5,567) (6,770)
Administrative expenses TR X (24,797) (29,016)
Other operating expenses H At 482 5 2 (4,441) (14,874)
Impairment of goodwill EESNEAE (2,868) -
Loss from operations EERBE (7.136) (19,084)
Finance costs A& B AR 6(a) (279) (197)
Loss before taxation B E 6 (7.415) (19,281)
Income tax Fr 15 %t 7 (1,108) (1,513)
Loss for the year EEBE (8,523) (20,794)
Other comprehensive income  FEHME2EKZE
for the year
ltem that will not be reclassified to T2 EFH H B EEFH
profit or loss: HHE .
Surplus on revaluation of land RIEBR I RESF ‘)/
and buildings held for own use ZEHARK 598 243
ltem that may be reclassified HigmgegEamoEs
subsequently to profit or loss: BHE/IER:
Exchange differences on BRERZEARHAMN
translation of financial LASNEERS ([FER B3
statements of operations B2 MK TE
outside the People’s FEHERE:
Republic of China
(“non-PRC operations”):
Exchange differences arising FEERZH
during the year (1,355) 26
Other comprehensive (loss)/ FEHMZE
income for the year, net of (F518) W=
income tax (0B FRBH) 10 (757) 269
Total comprehensive loss for EEZEGREEHR
the year, net of income tax (0B FRIEH) (9,280) (20,525)

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive |ncome

4= A 42

W N E /\

H b2 W a

For the year ended 31 December 2018 %Zﬁ_g NFTZA=+—HBIEHFE

2018 2017
—E—-N\EF —T—+fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5E AREBTR AR¥ET T
Loss attributable to: LTALTREGEE:
Owners of the Company KRG HER A (8,352) (19,334)
Non-controlling interests FEE R AE (171) (1,460)
(8,523) (20,794)
Total comprehensive loss DTALTEEZEERE
attributable to: ki
Owners of the Company ViN/NCIEZ =N (9,338) (19,009)
Non-controlling interests FE1E IR 5 58 (1,516)
(9,280) (20,525)
Loss per share EREE 1 RMB(1.12) cents RMB(2.60) cents
Basic and diluted AR EE ARB@1129 ARE(2.60)5

9

—7 The notes on pages 74 to 223 form part of these financial

statements.

FVAEE2BAEZHMERZAERE
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Gonsohdated Statement of Financial Po&hoq\ )1
e BRI R {

As at 31 December 2018 R==

—N\F+-_A=+—H

2018 2017
—E—-N\F —+t&F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5% AREBTR AR T T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
..J/ Property, plant and equipment Y BEKRFZE 14 32,828 34,670
Investment property "EYHE 16 6,505 6,162
Prepaid lease payments AR HEENK 15 2,737 2,804
Intangible assets BEEE 17 2 499
Deposits for hire of funeral HABEERBEER
parlours and funeral services REFLZEE
centres 1,000 1,000
Goodwill = 19 = 2,869
43,072 48,004
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Financial assets designated at fair 187 &IE QX FEFTA
value through profit or loss BR U BEAE 18 33,320 37,098
Development and formation costs 59 3% F& A% 37 Ak Z< 20 5,230 5,055
Inventories rE 21 1,085 1,112
Tax recoverable Al U B 3% 18 27 = 10
Deposits for hire of funeral HABEERAER
parlours and funeral services BHRLZIEE
centres = 700
Trade and other receivables B Kk EAMEWFKIE 22 50,312 42,099
Prepaid lease payments FEMAERMK 15 67 67
Cash and cash equivalents BehBReEEY 23 103,467 98,186 /
193,481 184,327 )
CURRENT LIABILITIES nRBEE
Trade and other payables B5 Kk EMENKIE 24 15,623 10,447
Receipts in advance SR G ] 25 - 92,432
Contract liabilities AREE 25 96,320 -
Current portion of bank RITEE BT
borrowings 26 1,267 1,059
Current taxation BN HA F¢ 18 27 4,258 4,184
Amount due to a director ERN—R2ESZHIE 33 723 -
Amount due to controlling JEfT— BT Hxﬂxﬁz
shareholder A 33 4,344 =
Provisions BE 28 2,975 2,900
(125,510) (111,022)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥ REBERK
Receipts in advance T8 I 3R I8 25 S 149
Contract liabilities AREE 25 197 -
Bank borrowings RITEE 26 8,037 9,071
(8,234) (9,220)
NET ASSETS EEFE 102,809 112,089

< 1)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

sra ISR

As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE—N\F+_-_A=+—H

-5/ 2018 2017
—F-N\E —E—+F

Note RMB’000 RMB’000 .

Bt & AREBTR ARKET T \

EQUITY B g

Equity attributable to owners FAATHEH AEGHER
of the Company

Share capital [N 29 69,218 69,218
Reserves B 35,997 45,335
105,215 114,553

Non-controlling interests FEIE R (2,406) (2,464)
TOTAL EQUITY HEmEE 102,809 112,089

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors HREFER _-_T-—AF=A-_+tHH#LE

on 27 March 2019. Mg -
Xu Jianchun Liu Tien-Tsai
Chairman and Executive Director Executive Director
TEE 2 7B
TEFEHTEE HITESFE

S 17

The notes on pages 74 to 223 form part of these financial H748 Z223B 2 AZSHRA VKR
statements. RZ—HD e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes
RAMRBEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

N Equﬂx\( 3

EVCE LN
Foreign
Statutory Properties currency Share-based Non-
Share Share Merger  Statutory surplus luati lati i lated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
EERE BRER SEER  URBEER
[:2 R AR EEHE L1 L1 L1 ZHERE RiER BE  ERRER (321
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTRT ARETR ARETR ARETT  ARETR  ARETR ARETT ARETT  ARBTR ARBTR ARETR
At 1 January 2017 Rog-t#
-B-8 69,218 220,633 (16,261) 790 1,550 2,107 (17,857) 7,676 (133,986) 133,870 (1,252) 132,618
Loss for the year FERER - = = = o o o S (19,334) (19334) (1,460) (20,794
Surplus on revaluation of  HfEERTHRET
land and buildings held 2 B & #
for own use - 2 S S 2 m3 2 = S u3 = u3
Bxchange differences on  #EBEHEEEL
translation of financial S RREZ
statements of non-PRC ~ EXZE
operations = = = = = = 8 = = 8 (56) 26
Other comprehensive Ef2mkE/
income/(loss) (B8) = = S > S U3 8 = > 325 (56) 269
Total comprehensive FEE2ENE/
income(loss) for (BRE8
the year = - - - - u3 8 - (1933 (19,009) (1,516) (20,525)
Lapse of share options BREBREAN
granted o . S S . . . (331) 331 S S S
Acquisition of additional W E -2 EHEE
interests in a non- HEARMENME
wholly-owned subsidiary & (¥ #37(0))
(note 37(¢) - - - S = = = = (308) (308) 304 @
At 31 December 2017 RZ%-t&
+ZR=+-H 69,218 220,633 (16,261) 790 1,550 2,350 (17,775) 7345 (153,297) 114,553 (2,464) 112,089
At 1 January 2018 Rog-A%
-A-8 69,218 220,633 (16,261) 79 1,550 2,350 (17,775) 1345 (153,297) 114,553 (2,464) 112,089
Loss for the year REEER S S S S S S - - (8,352) (8,352) () (8,523)
Surplus on revaluation of  HfFERTHRET
land and buildings held 2 EfER#
for own use = = = = = 598 = = = 598 S 598
Exchange differences on  #EFHEEKZ
translation of financial SHRREZ
statements of non-PRC B ZE
operations = = - - - - (1,584) = = (1,584) 29 (1,355)
Other comprehensive B2 ERE/
income/(loss) (58) - - - - - 598 (1,584) - - (986) 229 (757)
Total comprehensive FEERENE/
income(loss) for (BR)#E
the year = & Q2 = & 598 (1,584) 0 (8,352) (9,338) 58 (9,280)
Lapse of share options BREBRER N
granted - - - - - - - (318) 318 - - -
Transfer of properties HEREAERTBR
revaluation reserve to BEBRNEE
accumulated loss upon fhEEER R
disposal of land and BB
building held for own
Use o o o o o (347) & 0 347 - - -
At 31 December 2018 R=%-/\%
+-R=+-8 69,218 220,633 (16,261) 790 1,550 2,601 (19,359) 7,027 (160,984) 105,215 (2,406) 102,809
The notes on pages 74 to 223 form part of these financial S$74E F223B 2k A% EEAMKEHE
statements. 22— &7 o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
e e RER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—F-N\E —E—tF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AREBTR AR T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEET
Loss before taxation B %1 A B 18 (7.415) (19,281)
Adjustments for: R
Amortisation of prepaid lease TE (- 10 & - B 88
payments 6(c) 67 67
Amortisation of intangible mEEE#H
assets 6(c) 497 760
Impairment loss on other H WK IE RL(E
receivables &5 18 6(c) - 4,359
Impairment loss on prepayments A R R E E 1R 6(c) - 2,793
Impairment loss on property, Y- BENREE
plant and equipment B & 1B 6(c) - 401
Write-down of inventories = & 8 6(c) = 245
Impairment loss on goodwill HEREEIE 6(c) 2,868 -
Write-down of development and 5 2% K X 37 AK 2 A 6H
formation costs 6(c) = 1,702
Prepayments written off T8 1~ 20 T # A 6(c) = 7,220
Finance costs & R AR 6(a) 279 197
Deficit/(surplus) on revaluation BIEBRZ LR
of land and buildings held for BFEGHELM
own use (&%) 5 (8) 275
Fair value gain on investment KEWEZRAFE
property g % 16 (217) (237)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BER
plant and equipment B ok 5 (1,366) -
Depreciation e 6(c) 2,298 4,911
Interest income A B WA 5 (314) (686)
Net realised and unrealised gain EEREATFERGA
on financial assets designated BacWBEED
as at fair value through profit B RARER K=
or loss 5 2,792 (697)
Net exchange (gain)/loss HNEE (W zs) B B
R 5 (83) 824
Reverse of impairment of other H b i U 5K I8 B 5
receivable 6(c) 1,494 o
8,307 22,134
892 2,853

H_)/
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows <
meREeERER R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZE—\F+-A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—8-N\E —T—tF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B 5 ARBFR ARET T

CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL %EE £ ST

«J Decrease in inventories 58 R 27 119
Increase in trade and other 25 & H g IAE
receivables 1 10 (8,603) (3,283)
Decrease in financial assets BEBEAFEFTAE
designated as at fair value w2 MBEERD
through profit or loss 1,821 2,923
(Increase)/decrease in development B % K& ik 37 Ak A
and formation costs (3 hn) @ A (4) 297
Increase in trade and other B 5 &k B e 5RIE
payables 3 hn 5,525 1,878
Decrease in receipts in advance T8 W 5% I8 R (92,545) (2,855)
Increase in contract liabilities BHBEEM 94,021 S
Increase in amount due to JE AT 122 R AR 3R SR IR AN
controlling shareholder 4,176 -
Increase in amount due to director &< B % FX IH 42 /0 704 S
5,122 (921)
CASH GENERATED FROM HERBHES
OPERATIONS 6,014 1,932
Income taxes (paid)/refunded B(ZH),/REER
The People’s Republic of China hEARAME
("PRC") ([RED) (1,024) (723)
Taiwan = - 1
(1,024) (722)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM BEXBRE(FR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HWEEHA 4,990 1,210
INVESTING ACTIVITIES B’EEE
Payment for the purchase of HEDE BER
property, plant and equipment B ANES (1,545) (1,325)
Proceeds from disposal of HEME - BERZHE
property, plant and equipment Z BT 508 3,717 4
Interest received B A B 314 686
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING B EEFHFMARLFHE
ACTIVITIES 2,486 (635)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES R &S E
Repayment of bank borrowings BRIETEE 23(b) (1,067) (1,051)
Interest on bank borrowings WITEERE (455) (197)
Payment for acquisition of WiE—fkEERA M
additional interests in a BARIR R INERFT
non-wholly-owned subsidiary XA W FKIE 37(c) - @)

< 1)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

=RVAN L2 B il%
AR SR ER=
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE
A 2018 2017
—F-N\E —E—tF
Note RMB’000

Y 5 ARBFR

RMB'000
ARETFT \

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING RIEZSHFARLEE

ACTIVITIES (1,522) (1,252)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN HeRRE&EEMEM

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (iBi%) %88 5,954 (677)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS WM—A—HZHR&¢ERR$

AT 1 JANUARY %EY 98,186 98,550
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE JMEZEH 2 8&

RATES CHANGES (673) 313
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+Z-HA=+—BzZH &

AT 31 DECEMBER RIEEZEEY 103,467 98,186
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF HeRRELEEYEER

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  ##F

Cash at bank and on hand BTEFHERS 23 103,467 98,186

< 1}

The notes on pages 74 to 223 form part of these financial #7485 £223B VT A S5 A M KR

statements. K2—#m o

““

')/

TELETEEERLAR —E-N\FFER 73



< 17

74

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R I

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sino-Life Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated on 24 February 2005 in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Cayman Islands Companies Law. Its shares are listed on
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 9 September 2009. Its ultimate
controlling party is Mr. Xu Jianchun.

The Company is principally engaged in investment
holding. The subsidiaries are mainly engaged in the
provision of funeral and related services in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), Taiwan and Hong Kong,
sale of burial plots and tombstones and provision of
cemetery maintenance services in Vietnam and provision
of elderly care and related consultancy services in Taiwan.
The Company and its subsidiaries are herein collectively
referred to as the “Group”. The address of the Company’s
registered office and principal place of business are The
Grand Pavilion Commercial Centre, Oleander Way, 802
West Bay Road, P.O. Box 32052, Grand Cayman KY1-
1208, Cayman Islands and Unit 1303, 13/F., Austin Tower,
22-26 Austin Avenue, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
respectively.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the "“GEM Listing Rules”). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

YA 1 =3
B 755 3 2= P =T
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

FEEFHBRER)

(Continued)

(@)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs which are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries.

ltems included in the financial statements of each
entity in the Group are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The functional currency of the Company is United
States dollars (“US$"). The functional currencies of
its subsidiaries are Renminbi (“RMB”), New Taiwan
dollars (“NTD"), US$, Hong Kong dollars ("HK$")
and Vietnamese dong (“VND") for subsidiaries
incorporated/established in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"), Taiwan, Hong Kong and Vietnam
respectively. The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, rounded to the nearest
thousand, except when otherwise indicated, which
is different from the functional currency of the
Company as majority of the Group’s transactions
are denominated in RMB.

(@)

(b)

8 5 2 5 (&)
FEGREAGERME TH
AINRETREEMBREER
(RAEEEZAGHHEERE
ME PR R M) o M iE35E
BRERULEHAT RGBT E
A28 R e BRR 2EM
HEZEHN  ARZEMBER
RERBREBEITRBESE
HEAREEBBERR -

mRUMBHR2EE

BT \&t+t-A=1+—H
LTEEZHEAMBHRREEAN
REAINEMBRTA -

FARKERERYBRER Z
EFENERZIBREKER
BzaEB(NEEBDFE -
ARAZMEEERET - 1
PEARAXMBE(FED . &
- FERMmEEMR KILZ
MBARZHEEE DR RA
RETARE)D #Ha®(Hse
¥D-xx -Br(ETDR
BEE(BEE]D - ARAEE
ARMARBTDAANRKE T E -
AR A M B BRERTIDAARE (B
BEARBZINGEEE TR 2
5 BRARBERIN AEEE
HUEAAEREOTAH -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

YAr = =3
BF 755 3 2= P =T
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

FEETBR(E)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the following assets and liabilities
are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

= investment properties;
= freehold land and buildings; and

- financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

175 ¥ 2R I

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

(Continued)

(@)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability.

TEE

(o)

st BUSR (48)

MEARRFZERES
B AR AAEEZH 2 K
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R I

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE=_F
2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)
(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as an allocation
of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income or loss for the year between non-controlling
interests and the owners of the Company. Total
comprehensive income or loss of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
Loans from holders of non-controlling interests
and other contractual obligations towards these
holders are presented as financial liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

YA 1 =3
B 755 3 2= P =T
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

FEEFHBRER)

(Continued)

(@)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale).

Investment property

Investment property is land and/or building
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is
being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property.

Investment property is stated in the statement of
financial position at fair value, unless they are still
in the course of construction or development at
the end of the reporting period and their fair value
cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain
or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in profit or loss.

(o)

(d)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

YAr = =3
BF 755 3 2= P =T
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

FEETBR(E)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Investment property (Continued)

When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment
property is accounted for as if it were held under
a finance lease, and the same accounting policies
are applied to that interest as are applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases.

Property, plant and equipment

The freehold land and buildings held for own use
are stated in the statement of financial position
at their revalued amount, being their fair value at
the date of the revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed by qualified valuers
with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying
amount of these assets does not differ materially
from that which would be determined using fair
values at the end of the reporting period.

The other property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, are stated in
the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

YA 1 =3
B 755 3 2= P =T
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

FEEFHBRER)

(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties
held for own use are generally dealt with in
other comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the properties revaluation

reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

= when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the amount held in the properties
revaluation reserve in respect of that same
asset immediately prior to the revaluation;
and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit
or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

= freehold land is not depreciated;

- buildings situated on freehold land are
depreciated over their estimated useful life,
being no more than 50 years after the date
of completion;
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and

(Continued)

= buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years after the date

of completion;

equipment

= Leasehold
improvements

3 to 10 years or over
the remaining term
of the lease, if shorter

= Furniture, fixtures 2 to 5 years
and office
equipment

- Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost
may also include transfers from equity of any
gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of
foreign currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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FEEFHBRER)

(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during

the reporting period in which they are incurred.

An asset's carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from
the properties revaluation reserve to accumulated
losses and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Properties, plant and equipment in the course
of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes
professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate categories of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.
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B 5 ¥ 2R I

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE=_F
2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment

(f)

(Continued)

The Group transfers a property from property, plant
and equipment to investment property when there
is a change in use to hold the property to earn
rentals or land for capital appreciation rather than
for own use in the ordinary course of business,
which is evidenced by the commencement of
an operation lease to another party. The Group
accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment” up to the date of change in use.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the
Group
Assets held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases, with the
following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases
that would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property
is classified as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis and, if
classified as an investment property, is
accounted for as if held under a finance
lease; and
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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FEEFHBRER)

(Continued)

(f) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the

Group (Continued)

= land held for own use under an
operating lease, the fair value of which
cannot be measured separately from
the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease,
is accounted for as being held under a
finance lease, unless the building is also
clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of
the lease is the time that the lease was
first entered into by the Group, or taken
over from the previous lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged as expenses
in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease term
except where the property is classified as an
investment property.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE=_F
2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)
(f) Leased assets (Continued)

(iii) Leasehold land for own use

When the Group makes payments for
a property interest which includes both
leasehold land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each
element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is
clear that both elements are operating leases
in which case the entire property is accounted
as an operating lease. Specifically, the
entire consideration (including any lumpsum
upfront payments) are allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and
building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis except for
those that are classified and accounted for
as investment property under the fair value
model. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the leasehold land
and the building elements, the entire property
is generally classified as if the leasehold land
is under finance lease.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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FEEFHBRER)

(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when the Group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 3)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

. the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling;
and
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and subsequent

measurement of financial assets (upon

application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 3) (Continued)

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial
application/initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in
OClI if that equity investment is neither held for
trading nor contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate
a financial asset that are required to be measured
at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £ —
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and subsequent

measurement of financial assets (upon

application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 3) (Continued)

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income
Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost and
debt instruments/receivables subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer
credit impaired.

Impairment of financial assets (upon
application HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 3)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9 (including trade and other
receivables, and financial guarantee contracts.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life
of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12 months
ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon
application HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 3) (Continued)
Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances
and/or collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12 months ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

175 ¥ 2R I

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon
application HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 3) (Continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)
In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment
of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

FEETBR(E)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon
application HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 3) (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)
The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate
to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.

(i)  Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the
Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collaterals held by the
Group). Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that
a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

(iii)  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;
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(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon
application HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 3) (Continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

(Continued)

(¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case
of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon
application HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 3) (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted
by forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group
is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is
guaranteed. Accordingly, the expected losses
is the present value of the expected payments
to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that
it incurs less any amounts that the Group
expects to receive from the holder, the debtor
or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts or
on loan commitments for which the effective
interest rate cannot be determined, the Group
will apply a discount rate that reflects the
current market assessment of the time value
of money and the risks that are specific to the
cash flows but only if, and to the extent that,
the risks are taken into account by adjusting
the discount rate instead of adjusting the cash
shortfalls being discounted.
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(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon

application HKFRS 9 with transitions in

accordance with note 3) (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)
Where ECL is measured on a collective
basis or cater for cases where evidence at
the individual instrument level may not yet
be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on past due analysis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the
Group's trade and other receivables are
each assessed as a separate group;

. Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors;
and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based
on amortised cost of the financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of
the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with IFRS 9; and the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amount of income recognised over
the guarantee period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE=_F
2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)
(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon

application HKFRS 9 with transitions in

accordance with note 3) (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)
Except for investments in debt instruments/
receivables that are measured at FVTOCI, the
Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with
the exception of trade receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a
investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance
is recognised in OCl and accumulated in
the FVTOCI reserve without reducing the
carrying amount of these debt instruments/
receivables.

loss allowance account. For

Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets “at fair value
through profit or loss” (“FVTPL"), “loans and
receivables”. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments other than those
financial assets classified as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group
of financial assets or financial liabilities or
both, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented
risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS
39 Financial Instruments. Recognition and
Measurement permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated
as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in the “other net gain/(loss)” line item
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in note 18.

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not
classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-
maturity investments or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.
The Group designated certain items as AFS financial
assets on initial recognition of financial assets at
FVTPL.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018

(9)

BT AGE)

THEEZTBERAE
B(R=-F-)/\F—HF—HE
HE B EEREI

BI) (48
BAFEFABRSE ZHHBE
7= (&)

MTIIER - A AE (5 ER
HAHAER SN TR S B R
R A T A2

o BBEEHHAAEAD
WA R 2 ER
RABE %

s REAEERERRER
FIRERKERAN— A
MBEERMHAEI®
EEPHOMMBEE -
WA FEEEFHEESE
B -BHBEBEOBENERT
WHREEHATRME L

. PHEEMARPE —HK
INEBRARPTETEZA
HEPIS AR B ST
HEREIRAGF LA F
BRI ERETEL AN

AHEERAFEFAR

<

B

BRVPEFABRZMBEE
TRAVERSE - BEREEZ
ERAREHERREERE R
Hipzm s R Al Embkas,
(BR)FRIBETER - 2F
BT E18 A T AEE -

AHHERBEERL EIEE
RAHRLESLRESER@E
R R EWEIR: () FE B
B i ROBEAFEFAEBRELZ
MBEEZHFTETA - AK
BN Ve R A FEFAR
BmZMBEERERETETHE
ARAHHENBEE -

Bt



-

—

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
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(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that
are classified as AFS financial assets and are traded
in an active market are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Changes in
the carrying amount of AFS monetary financial
assets relating to interest income calculated using
the effective interest method and dividends on
AFS equity investments are recognised in profit
or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount
of AFS financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of investments revaluation reserve. When
the investment is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive
the dividends is established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery
of such unquoted equity investments are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at the
end of each reporting period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables,
cash and bank balances) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment, except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less any impairment.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, bank borrowings and other loan are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis other than financial liabilities classified
as at FVTPL.
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(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group
are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured
at the higher of:

o the amount of the obligation under the
contract, as determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets; and

J the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the revenue
recognition policies.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group continues
to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated liability.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than
in its entirety, the Group allocates the previous
carrying amount of the financial asset between the
part it continues to recognise, and the part it no
longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated
to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no
longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.
A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is allocated between
the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that no longer recognised on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

FEEFHBRER)

(Continued)

(h)

(i)

Intangible assets (Continued)

The following intangible assets with finite useful
lives are amortised from the date they are available
for use and their estimated useful lives are as
follows:

- trademark 5 to 10 years

- computer system 2 to 2.5 years

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognition on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal.

Gains and losses arising from derecognised of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.

Development and formation costs

The development and formation costs represent
development costs incurred for a cemetery site
which will be completed for sale and are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The development costs comprise specifically
identified cost, including the acquisition cost of
land, aggregate cost of development, materials
and supplies, wages and other direct expenses, an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less estimated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred in selling the
burial plots.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE=_F
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

0)

(k)

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost of merchandises for resale and marble stones is
calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Cost of burial plots developed for sale is determined
by an apportionment of the total development costs
(see note 2(j)) attributable to completed but unsold
units.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018

§))

(k)

~NE+ZA=t-BLFE
EETBRER)

ﬁ4z:
77 12 79 BB A B2 7 4 30 5
# b 2 B EH I -

BEEmMmRKREBAZKAAM
BEFHKAAFE - T REA
BERBRA - LBKAREF
EEERURERBEMZ HAM
AN

EREMUHBEE IR AEE
REERHERE LB EG R
BERAAN (R E20) 2088 -

AERFEDRETEGBIZ
2z fh & & B Rl ET 58 AR AR
RIGFTHEMBZIKA °

FELER ZFFEZEKA
BERHERA W 2 B R
RF o AR 17 B MO = ] &
BFECSBERAAFEER
— BRAE OB S B 18 B A ) R
R RFX o E 77 E MR B E
ZER - EFERBEMERER
RBLEER/AIZFES
B o

ReRkREEEY
ReRkBeEEWERTETF
ERe - FRARITEEMSH
g 2 75 BlTF 5% 0 DA SR A] BE R
EmotNeEREBLBE
ANEBEZSHER 2RBARSR
MEKRE MRAEBAK=EH
WNEE - iz AR e RERM
T OREREEREKRAEEH
REEE—ETA SR Z
RITEXMINAREERE
BEWEL D o

W &

Bt



-

—

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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FEEFHBRER)

(Continued)

() Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of other receivables
Investments in equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

= a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

()  Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other receivables
(Continued)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as follows:

- For trade receivables and other
receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (that is the effective
interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

FEEFHBRER)

(Continued)

() Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other receivables
(Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in respect
of trade receivables and other receivables
included within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but
not remote. In this case, the impairment
losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade receivables and other receivables
directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES" 2.

(Continued)

()  Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

= property, plant and equipment (other
than properties carried at revalued
amounts);

- prepaid lease payments;

= intangible assets;

= goodwill;

- deposits and prepayments; and

= investments in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not
yet available for use and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £ —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
Impairment of other assets
(Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (that is a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss whenever the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
amount of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

FEETBR(E)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

()  Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets
(Continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and
impairment
Under the GEM Listing Rules, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial report
in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial
Reporting, every three months. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

175 ¥ 2R I

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination
benefits.

(n) Share-based payments

()

Share options granted to employees
The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in the share-
based compensation reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date using
the Binomial Option Pricing model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the share options, the total estimated fair
value of the share options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE=_F
2.

(Continued)

(n)

Share-based payments (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Share options granted to employees
(Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year
of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share-based compensation reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share-
based compensation reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share-based compensation
reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to accumulated losses).

Share options granted to consultants
Share options issued in exchange for services
are measured at the fair values of the services
received, unless that fair value cannot be
reliably measured, in which case the services
received are measured by reference to the fair
value of the share options granted. The fair
values of the services received are recognised
as expenses, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share-based compensation reserve),
when the counterparties render services,
unless the services qualify for recognition as
assets.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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FEEFHBRER)

(Continued)

(o)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
that those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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FEETBR(E)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(o)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

Where investment properties are carried at their
fair value in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 2(e), the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured using the tax rates that
would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is
depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodies in the property
over time, rather than through sale. In all other
cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised
is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018

(o)

Fri5 %t (48)
BREEHREEMABEZE
REEZBERMSNMNMERBAER
AR EEMEEZZTYE
RER VNITHEIBEIZESR
AN A ERRREN 2 EE
FBEE(EBEBAH 22— HD
AIRRSN - BRI B AR 2R
BRMCERZR(IENBRER
MER  RRRAKE AT
HlEEzKE BEAERZ
R RAKAI G e 2 By = £
FMBAIHRER ARRR
RAEEKRBRZER) -

EREMERBME20MEE
SRR A FEIREREL
MBS BEZMERRER
HEBERAEAEHEZXETEE
MR E - BRIFZDEREBER
ENRU—ERERARTE
MEBHEZFEEBFHEEAM
WIHEZMENERE SR
HZMEZEREEMNED - HH
IERT  EERBERIRRE
ERBERMENTHERERS
BESTA REBEERSHRD
ERHEE FDEMR KRG
E-REERBAEELRAGRHAD
REIRETE -

rEEeESEREHRERN
EEFRBEENREEL RN
BRI SR 59 1 FE SR B i A
DA 30 40 B8 &9 3% 75 ) a8 B S8 4K
FREE - MEMMERRB AL
BRMHERBEN - BRR
mESRED -

RE DR B REEINT B R
BRENEEREZEXTRT
LATERR ©

Bt



-

—

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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FEEFHBRER)

(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

= in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

= the same taxable entity; or

= different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE=_F
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(p)

(@)

Provisions liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

and contingent

Revenue recognition
Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

(i)  Provision of services

Revenue from the provision of cremation
cemetery services, funeral
arrangement services, funeral services in
funeral parlours and funeral service centres
under the Group’s management, elderly care
services and consultancy services is recognised
when the services are rendered.

services,

(i)  Sale of goods including tombstone
Revenue is recognised when goods are
delivered to the customers which is taken to
be the point in time when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts and returns.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018

(p)

(a)

~NE+ZA=t-BLFE
EETBRER)

BERIREEE)

fieh 7 ﬁﬂﬁi&/A%'J/\ZTAb’IET\
7( HEXRA MRS
BRIEABN BN &= foé%
Eﬂ@“iﬁl RAIEHEESER
IRBETURE -EXREER
FERREBHR—AINA LEH
BT A EE 2BREME - BRI
BBRNEENS ZHEEMN
BRI BEBERRAREE -

I %= &2

W tER(—E—NFE—F—
A A7)

WaEE W ERREZ AT
BEitE - ELEBEMEZRABER
AREE - ik s K B A (fis i
RSt ER - EgR
BRAERET:

(i) RBEHR®
AEBER s BEEKIE
1% AR 7% 0 1R A AE BR
% BEERRS - BEZHE
Rk BERDS - #EER
BR#BRARBKE - »
IRERBRRER -

(il HEEMRBRHEEE)
7N

ERP M
AEPEMERNERS
FE1E BE O R B e [0 3 By

R oo R T EEBED K
HMEER - WS MERE
EZHrMEEn -

Bt



-

—

(q)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Sales of burial plots

Revenue from sales of burial plots is
recognised when the contract is signed by
the buyer, a significant amount of deposits
of the contracted value received and the
relevant identified burial plots are delivered to
the buyers. Deposits and instalments received
from buyers prior to meeting the above
criteria for revenue recognition are included
in the consolidated statement of financial
position under “receipts in advance”.

Cemetery maintenance services

Revenue from the provision of cemetery
maintenance services is deferred and
amortised on a straight-line basis over the
remaining estimated service period.

Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of
the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised
as income in the accounting period in which
they are earned.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

(Continued)

(vii) Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right
to receive payment is established. Dividend
income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes
ex-dividend.

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of IFRS 15 in accordance
with transitions in note 2)

Under IFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when “control” of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the
Group's performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’'s performance creates and
enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.
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FEEFHBRER)

(Continued)

(q)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of IFRS 15 in accordance
with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising
from foreign currency borrowings used to hedge
a net investment in a foreign operation which are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE=_F
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(r

Translation of foreign currencies
(Continued)

The results of operations outside PRC (“non-
PRC operations”) are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including
goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 January 2015,
are translated into RMB at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the foreign
currency translation reserve.

On the disposal of a non-PRC operation (that is a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a non-PRC
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a non-PRC operation,
all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit
or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that includes non-PRC operation that
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and is not recognised in profit
or loss.
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FEEFHBRER)

(Continued)

(s)

()

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. XESE:BE(E)

(Continued)
(t) Related parties (Continued) (t) BEEAL(E)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) e FF & T B fa] 16 15 -
..J/ following conditions applies: (Continued) B 8 B K £ B 75 R
(8&)
(i) One entity is an associate or joint (i —M E ‘%Z%%—E
venture of the other entity (or an BHEE N RHE
associate or joint venture of a member &1 %(& s—E
of a group of which the other entity is BRKERFRIZE
a member). @B’_TERE\ATZ
Bt AR EE D
)
(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the iy WMEEEHAER—
same third party. FE=ZFTHEE D
E
(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a vy —HEBRE=H
third entity and the other entity is an EBNEEE
associate of the third entity. i 7':'7 —EBERAZE
“HEBHBEQ
S5
(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit vy, EBEEREAAEHEFH
plan for the benefit of employees of rEBEBEHEZ
either the Group or an entity related to ERMEEENDR
the Group. SR EER R RN E
g -
(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly vi) EBX@FMHNA
controlled by a person identified in (a). TSR ERE
il o
(vij A person identified in (a)(i) has (vii) 72 (a)i) AT 2% Bl }\i
significant influence over the entity or HEBBEAY
is a member of the key management A EHE(XDZ
personnel of the entity (or of a parent ERNGQREE
of the entity). EBEKE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

(Continued)

(t)

(u)

Related parties (Continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Company’s Executive
directors (the chief operating decision maker)
for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group's various
lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Except as described below, t

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers
and the related
Amendments

Foreign Currency
Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Classification and
Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

As part of the Annual
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle

Transfers of Investment
Property

he application of the new

and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance

and positions for the current

and prior years and/or on

the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

3.1

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying
this Standard recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2018. Any difference at
the date of initial application is recognised in the
opening retained profits (or other components
of equity, as appropriate) and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore, in
accordance with the transition provisions in HKFRS
15, the Group has elected to apply the Standard
retrospectively only to contracts that are not
completed at 1 January 2018. Accordingly. Certain
comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under HKAS
18 Revenue and HKAS 11 Construction Contracts
and the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following
major sources which arise from contracts with
customers:

o Funeral service

o Elderly care and related consultancy service

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations and the accounting policies resulting

from application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in notes
5 and 25 respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

3.

(Continued)

3.1

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3. FERAH:IREEIEENS
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG REZER(EEBMBREE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS Al (4&)
("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are AN R ol M A R ETET R K&
mandatorily effective for the current year SIE BB BREELD(E)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 31 BEBEHEIHKEER FI154
Customers (Continued) [REEFEHZ Wz ()
Summary of effects arising from initial HREREBYGHREER
application of HKFRS 15 1558 FTE £ B
The following adjustments were made to the LTAEHR-_ZE—N\E—HA—H
amounts recognised in the consolidated statement SERBRAHRRANERZ S
of financial position at 1 January 2018. Line items BZALE W TIArBREINTEH
that were not affected by the changes have not BRI ENIEE o
been included.
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETFTT AREBFTT ARETT
Current liabilities REB&aE
Receipts in advance SR O] 92,432 (92,432) -
Contract liabilities aHaE = 92,432 92,432
92,432 - 92,432
Non-current liabilities EFBER
Receipts in advance Bk KA 149 (149) -
Contract liabilities aHaE = 149 149
149 - 149

3.2

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
consequential amendments to other HKFRSs.
HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for 1) the
classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, 2) expected credit losses
("ECL") for financial assets and other items (for
example, contract assets, lease receivables and
financial guarantee contracts) and 3) general hedge
accounting.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018

32 BEYUBHEEREIY 2
AT A
RAFE  REBECEASTEH
B EEREIFH I eMTAE IR
BYEHMBESY KR EELNH
BEABEETA - BEMER
LEAEIFRSIANEREE K
cRBEZHERTE DR
EEMEMBEBEMW N : 5HE
E BRESEVBERELD)
MEREEEBER(BEHEES
BHOER3)—ME H AR

;’_EO

5\



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &
3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance
with the transition provisions set out in HKFRS
9, i.e. applied the classification and measurement
requirements (including impairment under ECL
model) retrospectively to instruments that have
not been derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date
of initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already been
derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The difference
between carrying amounts as at 31 December
2017 and the carrying amounts as at 1 January
2018 are recognised in the opening retained profits
and other components of equity, without restating
comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 9 are disclosed in note 2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R I

AN

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9

Classification and measurement of financial
assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into
loan and receivables which subsequently measured
at amortised cost previously. Upon the initial
application of HKFRS 9, the Group’s financial assets
are classified as financial assets at amortised costs
based on the business model under which the
financial assets are managed and its contractual
cash flow characteristics. According, there was no
impact on the amounts recognised in relation to
financial assets from the application of HKFRS 9.

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all
trade receivables.

Except for those which had been determined as
credit impaired under IAS 39, trade receivables
have been assessed individually with outstanding
significant balances, the remaining balances are
grouped based on past due analysis.

ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost,
including restricted bank balances bill receivables,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances, are assessed
on 12 months ECL basis as there had been no
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

As at 1 January 2018, no additional credit loss
allowance has been recognised against accumulated
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

EXMETBEAH

Revenue () &%
Revenue represents the fair value of consideration EEFRERARZTPRRERSE R
received and receivable for the services rendered MEFPEEEmm DM & ER
to customers and goods sold to customers. The LREZAFE FASEE
amount of each significant category of revenue EEBEAN BN T:
during the year is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\E§ —E—+F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETR ARBT T
Funeral services and cremation AEBER I BEER
services provided in funeral TR L 1R
parlous and funeral service 2 BERM R A
centres under the Group's AR 7%
management 58,760 55,641
Funeral arrangement services BiETHERY 2,630 3,187
Funeral related consultancy services 78 {48 8 5% 39 iR 7% 942 1,292
Sale of burial plots HEZE M 242 334
Sale of tombstones SEHIEE 93 128
Elderly care and related consultancy # 2 N 18 B8 7 ) BR 7%
services = 127
62,667 60,709
Segment information (b) D EER

The Group manages its businesses by divisions,
which are organised by a mixture of both business
lines (products and services) and geography.
In @ manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Company’s
executive directors (the “Executive Directors”), the
chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has presented the following five
reportable segments. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

AEBEIBEREER M
DR TR E M 5B (B K R T%)
Rith@m& D ER - REB AR
=l S E R AT LN
REMTESE(RITESDE
TEZERRE)ZHBAMEHR
— B2 25 AT R E A&,
EE e BEREEE DA
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Segment information (Continued)

(i)  Funeral services — Taiwan
Provision of funeral arrangement services to
funeral services deed holders and related
consultancy services in Taiwan.

(ii) Funeral services — Hong Kong
Provision of funeral arrangement services to
both funeral services deed holders and non-
funeral services deed holders in Hong Kong.

(iii) Funeral services — the PRC

Provision of funeral and cremation services in
funeral parlours and funeral service centres
in the PRC under the Group’s management,
pursuant to the respective management
agreements entered into with the owners of
funeral parlours and funeral service centres,
and other related consultancy services.

(iv) Funeral services — Vietnham
Sale of burial plots and tombstones and
provision of cemetery maintenance services in
Vietnam.

(v) Elderly care and related consultancy
services — Taiwan
Provision of elderly care and related
consultancy services in Taiwan.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Executive Directors monitor the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include trade
and other payables, receipts in advance, provisions
and current tax liabilities attributable to the
activities of the individual segments and borrowings
managed directly by the segments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE=_F
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. Z2XiE B9 IEE ()
(Continued)

o EBE R (E)
0) @%%@§ =0 |
NEB AR RRS RO
BAREREEZ RS &
1 B8 &% o AR 75

(i) BERE - FE
REBREERSROR
BANERERG RO
BAREBERRZFERY

(iii) BERBSE — FE
RiE B EE R BERS
hOEBATBNEHE
BiE - AR TERE
EEEENRBBRERES
RGP LIRS R AL
R - AR E MR
B % o

(iv) BERE - BHF
REEEERE REERR
TEﬁ—-'iE;ﬂﬂ//mHEfk

(V) %&fg/ggﬂungﬁﬁﬁ_

=3
éé

REBRRHEE REERE
8 AR %5 -

nEXE BEERRBE
AP SRR R D & E D
RERME  MITEFE T
gz@%%%m&%%ﬂwaz

DHEEBEBRRAREEINZ
FMEEREE BVEERR
HEE - H"HABEEZMER
“*EQ@EZT%&E@@
fT0R - FRWGRIR - BE LA
%mﬁﬁﬁuﬁﬂﬂﬁgﬁﬁ
ZEE -

)



-

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

Notes to the Financial Statements

YA 1 =3
B 755 3 2= P =T
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

EXMETBEHE)

(Continued)

(b)

Segment information (Continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of assets
attributable to those segments.

Segment results represent the earnings and loss of
each segment without allocation of valuation gain/
loss on investment property, other income, central
administration costs, finance costs and
tax. This is the measure reported to the Executive
Directors for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance.

income

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning segment results, the Executive Directors
are provided with segment information concerning
revenue, interest income and expense from cash
balances and borrowings managed directly by the
segments, depreciation and amortisation, loss/gain
on disposal of property, plant and equipment,
write down of development and formation costs
and inventories, impairment loss on goodwill,
impairment loss on prepayments, impairment loss
on property, plant and equipment, impairment
loss on other receivables, prepayments written
off, provision for future costs of delivering funeral
services under funeral services deeds, net realised
and unrealised gain/loss on financial assets
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
income tax expenses, and additions to non-current
segment assets used by the segments in their
operations.

(b)

7 EER (&)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. 2 XiE B9 IMEBE(E)

(Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) 2 EBEFR (&)
Segment results, assets and liabilities T EHEE BEEREE
v (Continued) (#&

FERBE_T-/\FR_-ZF
—tF+-A=+—BLEE
ZERABERFHEDEHRRM
HTESREZAREN B2
BREST

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Executive Directors for
the purposes of resources allocation and assessment
of segment performance for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017 is set out below:

Year ended 31 December 2018
BE-F-\E+-B=+-HLEE

Elderly care
and related
consultancy
Funeral services services
EERER
BERBE EHRE
Taiwan  Hong Kong PRC Vietnam Taiwan Total
B B tE i L @t
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETRE ARETR ARETR ARETRE ARETR
Reportable segment revenue TRENHEEE
- Revenue from external customers -RENREPEEE 2,630 942 58,760 335 = 62,667
Reportable segment (loss)/profit TRESB(BR) /HF (5,801) (307) 8,459 (842) (1,629) (120)
Interest income FlRMA 1 1 312 = - 314
Interest expenses FaRX 279 = = = = 279
Depreciation and amortisation rEEREREH
for the year 250 3 1,254 945 816 3,268
Net realised and unrealised gain on ~ EEBEAFEFARR
financial assets designated as at fair LHBEEZBERR
value through profit or loss RERWHFE 2,792 S S S S 2,792
Income tax expenses MERAX o S 1,108 S S 1,108
Reportable segment assets TRESHEE 170,214 625 37,017 15,366 4,439 227,661
Additions to non-current segment RERFEETD A
assets during the year BE S = = S = =
Reportable segment liabilities TRESHEE 107,223 763 11,808 3,626 398 123,818
There are no inter-segment sales during the year RNEEHMESHHAEE (2T —
(2017: Nil). tEE)
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B 1% Rk 3R MY 5 E
_ For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE
™ 4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. &3 m4#pEl (&)

(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) 2 EEF (&) \
Segment results, assets and liabilities nEHExE BEERERE
(Continued) (#&)

Year ended 31 December 2017
BE-F-tF+-RA=t-BLEE
Elderly care
and related
consultancy
Funeral services services
EERIEH
B R EELS
Taiwan Hong Kong PRC Vietnam Taiwan Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR ARYTRT ARETT ARETR ARETR
Reportable segment revenue ARENHEER
- Revenue from external customers - RESMAEFEXR 2,175 1,012 56,933 462 127 60,709
Reportable segment (loss)/profit ARESH(ER)/HH (8,808) (102) 4,602 (6,876) (1,846) (13,030)
Interest income LY ON 37 = 648 = = 685
Interest expenses kb 197 S S > = 197
Depreciation and amortisation AEEMEREH
for the year 208 6 3,996 242 1,234 5,686
Write down of development and HOR R B R KA R
formation costs and inventories FE - - - 1,947 - 1,947

Impairment loss on property, plant and ~ #1% « BERREZHE

equipment BE = = - 401 - 401
Impairment loss on prepayments BRRERESSR = = - 2793 - 2,793
Impairment loss on other receivables ~ Eft BN EREEE = = 4,359 - - 4,359
Prepayments written off BN AN 7,220 = = = = 7,220

Net realised and unrealised gain on B EARATEHARE
financial assets designated as at fair LHBEEZEERR

value through profit or loss REBUHFE 697 = S = = 697
Income tax expenses FEHRAY = - 1513 - - 1513
Reportable segment assets NRENHEE 140,421 696 35,506 18,815 8,515 203,953
Additions to non-current segment RERNFEXRHHH

assets during the year BE Il - 968 - 286 1,325
Reportable segment liabilities RESHAR 103,958 754 10,560 2,632 m 118,676
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(b)

Segment information (Continued)

Reconciliations of reportable segment
revenue, profit or loss, assets, liabilities

(b)

5 28 1 ()
T 5 AE R - A
HE AERAMELRZY

4. EXHFRITBEHR)

and other items 3
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR AREFT
Revenue BEXxE
Total reportable segment revenue A SRE D EFE EFE AT
and consolidated revenue RirEE % 62,667 60,709
Profit or loss E
Total reportable segment loss AEEINBEFEEZ
derived from Group’s external ARESHEEERE
customers (120) (13,030)
Valuation gains on investment WEMEINFEKRS
property - 237
Other income E At g A 347 741
Finance costs LR DN (279) (197)
Unallocated head office and RO BEHBR AR
corporate expenses
- Depreciation and amortisation — — 31 & & # $5 - (52)
- Auditors’ remuneration - Z BB & (718) (1,040) .
- Legal and professional fee - EEREEER (441) (721) ‘)/
- Staff cost (including directors’ - BILAAN(BEESE
remuneration) <) (2,603) (4,639)
— Operating lease charges: -geRET
minimum lease payments & EHEMNHE (210) (270)
- Others - HAh (3,390) (310)
Consolidated loss before taxation 4R & Br i Bl &5 18 (7,414) (19,281)
Assets BE
Total reportable segment assets ARESHEELE 227,661 203,953
Unallocated head office and RAOBBHRAREE
corporate assets
- Cash and cash equivalents -REMIRESEEY 2,662 28,281
— Other deposits and - Bz e RIBF IR
prepayments 302 96
— Others - Hitp 5,928 1
Consolidated total assets HEEERE 236,553 232,331
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

~ 4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. 2 X R 9B E(E)
(Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) o MEFR(E)

Reconciliations of reportable segment
revenue, profit or loss, assets, liabilities

and other items (Continued)

THE 5 EE R - A
HE AERAMELZY
fE ()

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETTT AREFT
Liabilities Eff
Total reportable segment liabilities 7] 5§ &5 9> &F & (& 42 %8 123,818 118,676
Unallocated head office and KobBBBRARAEE
corporate liabilities 9,926 1,566
Consolidated total liabilities MeEatERes 133,744 120,242
Other items HhIEHE
Interest income F B U A
Reportable segment total AREDHERE 314 685
Unallocated head office and ROBLBEH L AT4REE
corporate total = 1
Consolidated total RE B 314 686
Depreciation and amortisation IrE&E N i
Reportable segment total AmED LR 3,268 5,686
Unallocated head office and ROBLAEIHRAREE
corporate total = 52
Consolidated total e 3,268 5,738
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B % ) 3% B 5
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. Z2XiE B9 IEE ()
(Continued)

4.

(b)

Segment information (Continued)
Geographical information

The following is an analysis of geographical location
of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers;
and (ii) the Group’s property, plant and equipment,
investment property, prepaid lease payments,
intangible assets, goodwill, deposits for hire of
funeral parlours and funeral services centres and
other rental deposit. The geographical location
of customers refers to the location at which the
services were provided or the goods delivered.
The geographical locations of property, plant and
equipment, investment property, prepaid lease
payments, deposits for hire of funeral parlours and
funeral services centres and other rental deposit
are based on the physical location of the assets
under consideration. In the case of intangible assets
and goodwill, it is based on the location of the
operation to these intangible assets are allocated.

(b)

AN

o EBE K (4E)

1 B2 & #

AR T3 B3 () 2 & @ 2%k B 4 52
BPZU2E Ri)VAEEZY
¥ HERREB BEAWE.
ENEERE BFEE B
B HRBREELRBEERET
LREEREMBEERS 2
BERDK - BRPFZFAEME
THEREREHETE R
B BERRE 1BE
W ENEERE HAR
BEERBRERBTLZEER
H &3k S 2 B 3 & A48
MEEMEERUEASEE -
MAaBTEEREE BN
SRZEBEE £HE
MR EE o

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

KEMREEEXHE ¥RHEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-N\E —E—+tF ZB-N\EF —T—tF
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
AREFR ARETT AR%SFTR ARETR
The PRC (place of domicile) A B (FE 1 b Bh) 58,760 56,933 11,865 11,935
Taiwan ag 2,630 2,302 31,142 36,064
Hong Kong &5 942 1,012 2 5
Vietnam M 335 462 62 -
3,907 3,776 31,206 36,069
62,667 60,709 43,071 48,004
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» 4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. ZZHERSIEE (8)
(Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) o MEFR(E) \ :
Revenue from major products and services TEEmRBRBEEFEHE g
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR AR¥ETF T
Funeral services and cremation FEBEREZBRER
services provided in funeral BEREPLREEZ
parlours and funeral service 78 12 AR 75 A b AR 75
centres under the Group's
management 58,760 55,641
Funeral arrangement services BIELT R 2,630 3,187
Funeral related consultancy services 7& 1% 18 78 7% 79 IR 75 942 1,292
Sale of burial plots HEEM 242 334
Sale of tombstones HEE® 93 128

Notes to the Financial Statements

175 ¥ 2R I

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

Elderly care and related consultancy # & X 48 B8 7% : IR 75
services

127

62,667

60,709

Information about major customers

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018,
revenue from any single external customer does not
amount to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.

FEEFEHN

BEZZ—LtFEFT-N\F
+-—A=+—HBL&FE  BMER
BEEME—IIESERPCEER
MAREEEETEI0%I MU E -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

Bt

5. OTHER INCOME 5. HblrA
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
A€ | ARE TR AREFT
- Interest income on bank deposits WAITFR 2B A 314 686

Total interest income on financial assets I JFiZ A FEFFAEZR
not at fair value through profit or loss Z @& EE 2 F B I

N Y- 314 686
Sundry income MIEA 169 82
Rental income from investment property & ¥ 2 & W A 371 320
Gain on disposal of property, plant and L&Y% - RENEZE
equipment 2 W s = =
(Deficit)/surplus on revaluation of land ¥ {EE R~ Lt RIEF
and buildings held for own use ZEG(EBA) Rt = (275)
Net exchange (loss)/gain 5 (E18), Wt $5 83 (824)
Net gain on terminated and lapsed BRI RKH 2z BEER
funeral services deeds HRELHW = FRE S 55
Net realised and unrealised gain on EEERATETFAR
financial assets designated as at fair moUBEEZEE
value through profit or loss R AREE W= FRE = 697
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debt R B # & [0 #5 1,494 -
2,431 741
6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6. BRBiIAIESIE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) B BTE BT &R (5T A) T 5B ‘)/
the followings: Bl E -
2018 2017
—F-N\E S
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBFT
(a) Finance costs (a) MERE
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEZFE 279 197
Total interest expenses on financial W IEARA FEFA
liabilities not at fair value through BaveomasE
profit or loss FBEFX B 279 197
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) EIRE(BIEEE
emoluments) 7 B )
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITEREAM
=Rl 15,678 17,155
Contributions to defined TR FORRET &
contribution retirement plans 3K 2,514 2,333

18,192 19,488

< 17
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6. BRBIAIEE(E)
2018 2017
—F-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR ARBTT
(c) Other items (0 H#IEH
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEHH 497 760
Amortisation of prepaid lease T8 78 & FRIE 8

payments 67 67
Auditors’ remuneration % S1RD B &

- audit services - BE RS 716 1,040
Cost of inventories (note (i)) 7 & B AS (B 3E30)) 5,253 10,629
Gross rental income from investment KEMEHRSWA

property less direct outgoing of BMBERBREZERX

RMB nil (2017: RMB nil) ARBZT

—E—+F:

ARBEETR) (146) (320)
Depreciation e 2,298 4,911
Operating lease charges for ME - BERZB

property, plant and equipment: KEMEX W

minimum lease payments = IEHEEN R

- rented premises -HRYE 177 408

— hire of equipment - HARE - 7

— hire of funeral parlours and - HREEE

funeral service centres & B &R
o 8,203 8,046
Operating lease charges: MEHE W :
contingent rents HAMEE
— hire of funeral parlours and -HABES
funeral service centres N B % R 7%
2RI 621 616
Impairment loss on other E b & W BORUE

receivables* (SR - 4,359
Impairment loss on property, plant N

and equipment* ZRIEEE* = 401
Impairment loss on goodwill AEREEE 2,868 =
Impairment loss on prepayments* TR RIE R A EE* = 2,793
Prepayments written off (note (ii)* T8 5 5% T8 8

(B 3 Gi)) * - 7,220
* Included in “other operating expense” of the consolidated * BREEHGREBERRLEMEERER
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. REEMEERS] -
Note (i): Brata):

Included in the cost of inventories there is a write-down of
development and formation costs and inventories of RMB
nil (2017: RMB1,702,000) and RMB nil (2017: RMB245,000),
respectively.

15 & K 7S o B MR B B R AR SRR AR R
BEAMARBET(ZE—+F AR
#1,702,0000) R ARB T L (ZT—+
F: AR®245,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

6.

\

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6. BRBAIESIE (&)
Note (ii): B 37 (i) -
During the year ended 31 December 2018, prepaid commission HE-_T-—\F+_A=+—HILHF
to agents of the Group amounting to approximately RMB nil E - HOARBZEZT(ZE—LtF - AR%K
(2017: RMB7,220,000) were written off because the agents went 7,220,00070) 2 A EEEM PN A2 E M
into bankruptcy or the Group lost the contact of the agents and He RARAZFINEBREXAEEER
accordingly the Group can no longer enjoy the agency services BEXLABENASBERALEEZR=EE
nor have the refund from the agents. FORBITEERPNABIFRER
INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. SZG&8EHRZHEH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
2018 2017
—¥-0\E —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETT AR T T
Current tax: BV EA 7% 18 -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FEDEEH
(note (c)) (B 3% ()
Current period 7N EA 1,108 1,513
Total mEt 1,108 1,513
Notes: B i -

(a) No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group has no assessable profits in Hong Kong for
both years.

(b)  The Group is not subject to any taxation under the
jurisdiction of the Cayman Islands, Samoa and the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI") for both years.

(€ The subsidiaries operating in the PRC are subject to
Enterprise Income Tax rate at 25% (2017: 25%) in
accordance with the Law of the People's Republic of
China on Enterprises Income Tax (FFZ A R £ F1E 1 %
FT1S74%) except that Chongging Xizhou Funeral Service
Company Limited (“Chongging Xizhou”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, is entitled to
a preferential tax rate of 15% (2017: 15%) in accordance
with 78 30 K 5 8 1 3 PTG B @ =, which is applied to
Chongging Xizhou since January 2011 and, provided that
the conditions precedent to entitlement of preferential
tax rate are fulfilled by Chongging Xizhou in each of
subsequent years, the preferential tax rate can be applied
to Chongging Xizhou up to December 2020. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, Chongging Xizhou is subject
to enterprise income tax rate at 15% (2017: 15%).

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018

(@) HRFAEERMEFEREELEE
EEEMERT OGN - ML EEL
FEAENMGHEE -

(b)) AKERMEFEHHEEBMNRES
HE BEDRABREZES (X
BREABEBDAEER ZEMB
H o

(0 RHABREEZHBARZARES
BEARLMBE D EMERIEIE25%
(ZE—+F 25%) 2 P EREH
R EMARB 2 BEEE2EH
BAREEHAREREERAR
(EEHADAREABARE R
E¥FBRERIRIS% (ZT—tF:
15%) 2 BEBEME - MERESR
HExg-—Z——F—HAREARE
BEHE MHEEHRARERSS
BEXNZBEBREZ LREH -
REEHEAT—BHERERAHREE
—ECEFF A cREE=ZE—
NE+-ZA=+—HLEFE EE
BEEEIS% (CTE—+F: 15%)
ZEEMEBHMEMNT -

)



Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt % g 2% BT 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. &Z8ESRZHEB(E)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) et () \

(d)  Bau Shan Life Science Technology Co., Ltd. (“Bau Shan”), d) ARREEWNBART LAGER
a direct subsidiary of the Company, Bao De Life Enterprise BROHBERIG(E LD REABMN
Co., Ltd. (“Bau De”) and Bu Lao Lin Limited (“BLL"), both MEENB AR EEETEERY
of which are indirect subsidiaries of the Company, are ERABI(EEZDRTIENRERA
subject to Taiwan Enterprise Income Tax at 17% (2017: A TEM])ERBEREMEH X
17%) on taxable profits determined in accordance with REMBREER  RERTEF A
the Income Tax Act and other relevant laws in Taiwan. 17% (ZE—tF :17% BMaE
No provision for Taiwan Enterprise Income Tax has been REMED - AN E ILMIESFER
made as Bau Shan has accumulated tax losses brought AWM EFGHIBEBRBAESER
forward which exceed the estimated assessable profits for Bad BEERTEMREAFEE
the year, and Bau De and BLL have no assessable profits HEERTORHN - U EABE R
for both years. EFTISBIE D B -

(e)  Bao Son Life Company Limited (“Bao Son Life”) and Hoan () AprzHEIZ2ERBHNER
Loc Viet Duc Hoa Corporation (“HLV Duc Hoa"), indirect ABLEREEAERARTEL
non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, are 4 @5l) Hoan Loc Viet Duc Hoa
subject to Vietnam Corporate Income Tax at 20% (2017: Corporation ([HLV Duc Hoal) Z& &t
20%) on taxable profits determined in accordance with REMEABEEREREE 2
the relevant laws and regulations in Vietnam. No provision FERR B s FlR20% (ZE— &«
for Vietnam Corporate Income Tax has been made as Bao 20%) 2 RGN B EREH o
Son Life and HLV Duc Hoa have no assessable profits for R B LA w5 & HLV Duc Hoai i
both years. BEEHEEBRTEF - S &R

MECEMERIELRE -

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting loss at RERER RN E R EE T Re SR

applicable tax rates: W

2018 2017

—EF-N\E —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETT

Loss before taxation R 75 A1 18 (7,415) (19,281)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, calculated %48 BA®: 75 8] 54 1 @ @ B i
at the rates applicable to loss in the tax EHBRBABETE R

jurisdictions concerned P IE (1,556) (3,464)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TAMBRE 2 RBTE 3,138 8,189

Tax effect of non-taxable income BAEARBBA R BT E (1,122) (3,693)

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERMBBE BB E 648 731

Tax effect of utilisation of unused tax losses B @ EFERER KRS H

not recognised in prior years ZBRIBEEB BT R - (198)

Others Hib - (52)

Actual tax expense ERMIEMXZ 1,108 1,513

H_)/
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZE—\F+-A=+—HILFE

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8. EEF
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 1B & & B(R 7 & BI) E383(1) 1§ &
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part (RAI(BRBEEFNEERDROIDE
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about 2R EAETHBECESHMU T :
_ Benefits of Directors) Regulation is as follows:
-J/ 2018
5-0\%E
Salaries Retirement
and benefit
allowances Discretionary scheme
Name of directors ESkE Fees (note ) bonuses  contributions Total
HEREH BHEH
e (Kt 3ED) BB FHEIf R @t
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
M ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Executive directors HiTEZE
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai £ it 1,901 m 55 - 2,728
Mr. Kim Eun Back SEBLAE (i) - - - - -
Mr. Xu Jianchun TRELE (i) 1,266 - - - 1,266
Independent non-executive  EVHHTEE
directors
Mr. Chai Chung Wai BRELE 59 S S S 59
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu ~ B— %% 4% (iv) 4 - - - 4
Mr. Lee Koon Hung TELEE (vi) 18 - - - 18
Mr. Sun Fei BR%EE v) 48 - - - 48
Mr. Wang Jun THEE (vil) 36 = = > 36
3,332 172 55 = 4,159
2017
“E—tF
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and  Discretionary scheme
Name of directors e Fees allowances bonuses  contributions Total
RAKET
e HakEE BBt HEE @t
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
W AREFR ARETR AREFT AREFT ARET:R
Executive directors HITEZE
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai BN bt 1,653 1,034 15 - 2,702
Mr. Kim Eun Back SEBEA (i) 150 116 23 - 289
Mr. Xu Jianchun HRELE (i) 36 - - - 36
Independent non-executive  EVHHTEE
directors
Mr. Chai Chung Wai BREEE 61 = = = 61
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu ~ B— %% 4% (iv) 61 - - - 61
Mr. Lee Koon Hung FRMEE (vi) 61 = = = 61
Mr. Sun Fei BRESE (V) - - - - -
Mr. Wang Jun THEE (vl - - - - -
2,022 1,150 38 = 3,210

< 1)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 8. EE bl (4)
Notes: oz
() Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind paid to or the (i) INATEENT S  EZUREY
executive director are generally emoluments paid or ME—BHAINZEALTRAR
receivable in respect of those persons’ other services in AR EMEAASEIREHATIE M
connection with the management of the affairs of the WEMRFME - s bt /\tfg
Company and its subsidiaries. WE & -
(i) Appointed on 22 December 2017. Gy MRZE—+F+-_A-+_-_HEZ
£ o
(i) Resigned on 22 December 2017. (i) RZE—LtF+-_A=-+=-HE
T -
(iv)  Resigned on 23 January 2018. vy, RZE-NF-—AZT=BEE-
(vy  Appointed on 23 January 2018. v) RZE-N\F—AZT+=HEZ{F -
(vi)  Appointed on 17 April 2018. vy RZZE-NFOA+ELREEME-
(vi)  Resigned on 17 April 2018. (vi) R —NFEHA+TEHEE -
No directors of the Company waived any emoluments RREEE  ARRAMEESEHER
and no emoluments were paid or payable by the Group M AEETHERERESSE
to any of the directors as an inducement to join or upon 2k A B B VB & B0 A S R N AR
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office SER B IERBEBEE -
for both years.
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the director held RZE—N\FRZTE—tF+=A=
share options under the Company’s share option scheme. +—B EERBEAQREREE
The details of the share options are disclosed in note 38. HETHERE - BREZFIBRM
FE38HWE o
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9. BE&EHAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, hEEeFALTBERE(ZE—+
two (2017: two) are directors of the Company whose F WMB)ARAESE E%ﬁ@\bﬂ 5]
emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of ST HH{B -—R(ZE—tF: =
the emoluments of the remaining three (2017: three) B)EEFALTZEHMARENT
individuals are as follows:
2018 2017
—E—-N\EF —+tF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETR ARBTT
Salaries, allowances and other benefits & & -~ 3285 & H it 1E 7 1,143 1,465
Discretionary bonuses 15 TE AL 13 92
Contributions to retirement benefit RIKAE T BT B 5K
scheme 25 30
1,181 1,587
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE
9. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9.

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The emoluments of the three (2017: three) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the following

man AT (&)

=HR(CE—LEF ZR)REFAL
ZHMNFTIEE

band:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —ZT—LF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A& AN
Nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to % %1,000,0007 7T
RMB844,210 (2017: RMB866,700)) (FB&E R AR®S844,210
T(ZE—tF  ARKE
866,7007T)) 3 3

No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to
any of the 3 (2017: three) highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for both years.

10. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

There was no tax effect on each component of the other
comprehensive income for both years.

11. LOSS PER SHARE

(@) Basic loss per share
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to owners of the Company
of RMB8,352,000 (2017: RMB19,334,000) and the
weighted average number of 742,500,000 ordinary
shares (2017: 742,500,000 ordinary shares) in issue
during the year.

(b) Diluted loss per share

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss
per share amounts presented for the year ended
31 December 2018 and 2017 as the impact of the
share options had anti-dilutive effect on the basic
loss per share amounts presented. Therefore, the
calculation of the diluted loss per share is based
on the loss attributable to owners of the Company
of RMB8,352,000 (2017: RMB19,334,000) and the
weighted average number of 742,500,000 ordinary
shares (2017: 742,500,000 ordinary shares) in issue
during the year.
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1.

RREFEAR  KEEHERIMN=
F(ZEBE—LHF ZR)REFALX
BEZINE S I T NV IVN
RIMAR SR B2 E) - RIEQRER

B 1 -
Hip 2@ A

RREFEER  E0HBLEREME
mRERIREEE -

BIREHE

(@ BREXEIE
ERERNBEDDREAERAARA
ABEBEABRBEBBRARYE
8,352,000t (ZE—+tF : AR
#19,334,0007T) M F N B # 17
38 F% 00 4 15 #(742,500,000
A% (== —+4 : 742,500,000/%
LTHlR)ETHE -

(b) ER#EEEE
HE_Z—)/\FEZFT—LtF
+-A=+—BIFE" 2
NZzEREABESBIL EE
HEE BABREZVEY
23 z8RERAEEeEA
RESERE - Bt - SREE
BEDBEARNBEESAEN
&5 18 A R 8,352,000 (= =
— -+ F: A R #19,334,0007T)
MFERE BT8R nE TS
£742,500,000 (ZZF—+4F :
742,500,000% L@ A%) 5T & -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
RMB Nil).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Employees of the Group’s PRC and Vietnam subsidiaries
are required to participate in a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme administrated and operated
by the local municipal government. The Group’s PRC and
Vietnam subsidiaries are required to make contributions
to scheme based on certain percentage of the relevant
portion of the payroll of all qualifying employees in
accordance with the relevant regulations in the PRC and
Vietnam respectively. The contributions are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group is also required to participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes administered
and operated by Bureau of Labour Insurance of Taiwan
for employees employed in Taiwan. Under the scheme,
the employers are required to make contributions to
the scheme at 6% of the employees’ relevant income.
Contributions to the schemes vest immediately.

The Group has arranged its Hong Kong employees to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement
plan managed by independent trustees. Under the
MPF Scheme, each of the Group (the employer) and its
employees makes monthly contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ earning as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
contributions from each of the employer and employees
are subject to a cap of HK$2,500 per month and
thereafter contributions are voluntary. Contributions to
the plan vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the
payment of retirement benefits associated with the
retirement benefit schemes beyond the contribution
described above.

12.

13.

iz B

BEETEEMRBE_Z-—/\F+A
=T HEFERNETARE(ZF
—tF 8-

1B K 48 I 51 51

AEETELBEMNBEARZEER
SEAMTTRAEEREEZE
BUERARBAEE - AEEZHE
K B P B8 R ] 7B 0 BRI R B %
MARRIRD] - IRE A A B E B FH M
HERs 2 E T A YR8 H
Koo RFERRERSBERTHE -

AEETARRAERAZERES A
HEEETRBRAEELKEZER
HHERARBATE - REFTE B
TARREERBWRA Z6%RF SIE

HER - SHEIHRARERS -

REEDZRBEBRBEIKN 284
ERBESERGHEAE S EIE
PIZBEFERAZEEREEMAR
FlENTEETE((RESTED - &
BeitglATHEETERARASE - BB
VERATE - BRiERESHE - B
Bl ERESFEIEAEEANEE (E
IIREEESAEASEREBRA
Z5% M Z AT EEH R - BEERE
BT AHRZKIA2,5008TA LR - B0
TEE R - FrEIERBNEES -

B bt RSN - A5 B 3 AE ] E
BRI FET IR 2 BRIKE
MERZERNRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

14. MI% - BERRE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(a) (a)
Land and
buildings Furniture,
held for own fixtures
use carried at Leasehold  and office Motor Construction
fair value improvements  equipment vehicles in progress Total
#EER
TRATE
SR & KER
ThREF HERE BAZRB RE  EEIR @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:R
Cost or valuation RAGHE
At 1 January 2017 RZE-t5-f-H 26,377 14,557 12,299 5,467 2,586 61,286
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences JMEERZE 25 % 415 26 (66) (115) 14 274
Additions RE - 124 760 Il S 955
Construction expenditure capitalised BEEAZIRRX - - - - 370 370
Transfers 8 = 1,045 1625 = (2,670) =
Transfer to investment property ERZRENE
(Note 16) (& 16) (380) S S S S (380)
Disposals hE - - )] 48) - (49)
Deficit on revaluation BB (32) - - - - (32)
Less: Elimination of accumulated B EHNEHS
depreciation (191) = = = - (191)
At 31 December 2017 RZE-t&+ZA=+-H 26,189 15,752 14,617 5375 300 62,233
Representing: 0
Cost s - 15,752 14,617 5,375 300 36,044
Valuation - 2017 —E-tEfE 26,189 = = = = 26,189
26,189 15,752 14,617 5375 300 62,233
At 1 January 2018 R-Z2-\E-F-H 26,189 15,752 14,617 5375 300 62,233
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences JMEEHZZE 72 584 102 119 85 2 892
Additions "E N 232 826 161 305 1,545
Disposals HE (2,107) - (716) (237) = (3,060)
Deficit on revaluation EHE4 606 = = = = 606
Less: Elimination of accumulated W EHREHS
depreciation (462) = = = = (462)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+ZA=1+-H 24,831 16,086 14,846 5,384 607 61,754
Representing: B
Cost KA - 16,086 14,846 5384 607 36,923
Valuation - 2018 “E-N\EfhE 24,831 S S S = 24,831
24,831 16,086 14,846 5,384 607 61,754
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vAr & A
B 755 3 2= P =T
_ For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE
J/ 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. M1% - BERRE(E)

(Continued)
(@) (Continued) (@ (&) \ :
Land and
buildings Furniture,
held for own fixtures
use carried at Leasehold  and office Motor  Construction
fair value improvements  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
KfeER
LHATE
] 4 Gl RER
THREF BEKE HBAZHE RE  EBIR @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTT ARETn ARETR ARETn ARETR
Accumulated depreciation and RAFERAEER
impairment loss
At 1 January 2017 R-E-+%£-HF-H - 9,817 8,729 4,148 - 22,694
Effect of foreign currency exchange NEERERZ TS
differences 2 (24) 73) (108) = (207)
Charge for the year FRY M 193 2,065 2,132 521 - 4911
Impairment loss REEE S S 117 284 S 401
Elimination on disposals HE R E - - (1) (44) - (45)
Elimination on revaluation BHEHHE (191) = = = = (191)
At 31 December 2017 RZE-t+&+ZA=1-H - 11,858 10,904 4,801 - 27,563
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\§-f—-H - 11,858 10,904 4,801 - 27,563
Effect of foreign currency exchange NEERERI 2
differences 3 68 85 82 - 238
Charge for the year FRZM 459 806 755 278 = 2,98
Elimination on disposals 5 8 - - (474) (237) - (1)
Elimination on revaluation BHEYHE (462) = = = = (462)
At 31 December 2018 RZF-NETZA=1-A - 1273 11,270 4924 = 28,926
Carrying amounts REfE
At 31 December 2018 R-E-\E+-A=1-H 24,831 3,354 3,576 460 607 32,828
At 31 December 2017 R=F-tf+-A=1-AH 26,189 3,894 3713 574 300 34,670
(b) Had the revalued land and buildings held for (b) WHIEERZ2KEM L RE
own use been carried at cost less accumulated FHAKAER B ITETER -
depreciation, the carrying amounts would have REE/NT
been:
2018 2017
—E—N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTR ARBT T
Land and buildings T REF 19,812 21,949
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of properties
(i)  Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s properties measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, that is,
unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, that is, observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

..Jj 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥ - B ERREH (&)
(Continued)
() Fair value measurement of properties (0 MEZAFEITTZ(E)
(Continued)
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) () RFEERGE
. Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured . FE=-EHE - UNEE
using significant unobservable inputs FORNEIR: RN |
FEAFYE
Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 31 December 2018 categorised into
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZ¥-N\% R-ZF¥-N\E+-RA=1+-H
+=A=+-H ZATHENERER
ZA¥E - $-E BB
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Recurring fair value GRMATHENE
measurement
Freehold land and buildings ~ KA EE T REF
- Taiwan - B 23,348 = = 23,348
Buildings - The PRC BF -4 1,483 - - 1,483
24,831 = = 24,831
Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 31 December 2017 categorised into
2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-F—t# R-F-—tF+-A=1-H
+-ZA=+—8” ZATFEHERER
20%E  %-B  E-E  ZF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFTT AREFT ARETT ARBTR
Recurring fair value BREATENE
measurement
Freehold land and buildings KAERLHRET
- Taiwan -RE 24,780 S S 24,780
Buildings - The PRC BF - HE 1,409 = S 1,409
26,189 - - 26,189
During the years ended 31 December 2018 REBEZZE-—N\EFR_ZF
and 2017, there were no transfers between —+F+=-_A=+—81t
Level 1 and Level 2, and Level 3. The Group's FE - FE-FZEK
policy is to recognise transfers into/out of fair FoEBBTEER - K
value hierarchy levels as of the date of event SECBRERREHREH
1 or change in circumstances that caused the REHERELE ZIERH
'7 transfer. BB - ERRTERE

MHBANEL -

TELETEEERLAR —E-N\FFER
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Fair value measurement of properties

(Continued)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
All of the Group’'s freehold land and
buildings held for own use were revalued as
at 31 December 2018. The valuations were
carried out by APAC Appraisal and Consulting
Limited for the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017, an independent firm of
chartered surveyors with recent experience
in the location and category of properties
being valued. The Group’s directors have
discussed with the surveyors on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the
valuation are performed at each interim and
annual reporting date.

Valuation techniques

fHERH

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

14. YM% - BERHREE)

(0 MEZLXFETEGE)

(i)

Unobservable input

FUBRRGAE

NFEERE
RZE—NF+ZA=+
—B EAEEHEHIER
RZKAEETHREF
HEEMR REBEE-_ZT—
NER-_ZFT—+F+—-A
—t+—HBIEE (HEH
¥ EEEYEME R
WEER AR EELR
RV oo | B N
BHERIBET  ES
ErSEFEREEHE
TEER  AEEE=EE
SR 2w AERR
HELER -

Range

il
2018 2017
“§-N\f -—T-+t%

)

Freehold land and buildings — Taiwan  Direct comparison approach Property-specific adjusting rate

KAREIHRET - 82 ERNLBE

Buildings - The PRC
BF - hHE ERLEBE

The fair value of properties held for own use
located in Taiwan and the PRC is determined
using direct comparison approach by
reference to the market price of comparable
properties and adjusted for building quality,
location of the properties and timing of the
reference transactions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

- 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y -RERREE)
(Continued)
() Fair value measurement of properties (0 MEZAFEITTZ(E)
(Continued)
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value (il BEEE=ELFETEZE
measurements (Continued) ZER (&
The movements during the period in BA - FlRE=EQAFAE
the balances of these Level 3 fair value ArEABRESHHT
measurements are as follows:
Freehold
land and
buildings - Buildings -
Taiwan The PRC Total
KRERE
T REF -Ed
- | - $E st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTR
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+t%—F—H 24,277 2,100 26,377
Transfer to investment property BRERERENE = (380) (380)
Depreciation charge for the year AEBIERY (157) (36) (193)
Effect of foreign currency exchange NEERZENTE
differences 417 = 417
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation AR/ (BB
- recognised in other comprehensive - REMEHEREER -
income, included in “properties FAMEERERE]
revaluation reserve” 243 = 243
- recognised in profit or loss, - RERER
included in “other income” FEATE A 25 = (275) (275)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+E+=-A=+—H 24,780 1,409 26,189
At 1 January 2018 RZE—-NF—HF—H 24,780 1,409 26,189
Addition RE 21 - 21
Disposal hE (2,106) = (2,106)
Depreciation charge for the year AEEHERS (166) (297) (463)
Effect of foreign currency exchange NEEREZENTE
differences 584 = 584
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation BEHAH%/(ER)
- recognised in other comprehensive - REMEZEREER
income, included in “properties HAMESREE]
revaluation reserve” 235 371 606
At 31 December 2018 R—Z2-N\F+=-A=+—H 23,348 1,483 24,831
Effect of foreign currency exchange BIEEBRMYE 2 N TE
differences of properties held for own use are HEENTERIE LG
recognised in other comprehensive income in 1T 2 H A2 TE IR
17 “foreign currency translation reserve”. R e
TEEGEBERAT —ZT-N\FFRK
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B % ) 3% B 5
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

The carrying amount of freehold land and
buildings pledged as security for the Group's
bank borrowings were RMB19,455,000 (2017:
RMB18,877,000) (note 26) as at 31 December
2018.

Impairment loss
There was no impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment has been provided for the year ended
31 December 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
directors of the Company conducted a review of
the Group’s property, plant and equipment and
determined that certain of the Group’s furniture,
fixtures and office equipment and motor vehicles
are specially identified to be impaired because the
segments for which these assets are used, mainly the
Funeral Service — Vietnam, sustained continuing loss
and in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
these items have no or little commercial value.
Accordingly, an impairment loss of RMB401,000
in respect of these furniture, fixtures and office
equipment and motor vehicles have been recognised
during the year.

During the year, the Group’s freehold land
amounting to RMB1,644,000 (2017: RMB1,602,000)
was under trust arrangements.
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(d)
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R—_E—NE+_A=+—
B - EHEBEAERNEBRRET
BEEERFRMZKAERET
WEEFHEREAARE
19,455,000 (=& — £ F : A
R #18,877,0007T) (Bt 3£ 26) °
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15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

16.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

15. ERHEEMNR

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AREBTR AREEFT

At 1 January m—H—H 2,871 3,589

Amortisation charge for the year RNEEHIHER (67) (67)

Transfer to investment property (note 16) E & =& B %

(g 3316) S (651)

At 31 December RN+=-—HA=+—8H 2,804 2,871
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEMEMDITA:

Current assets MEEE 67 67

Non-current assets EREBEE 2,737 2,804

2,804 2,871

The amortisation charge for the year is included in
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

AER#HIHEBEANGEBRERIAIT
BF] -

16. HEYE

2018 2017
—E-N\E ZTE—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTR ARKET T
At fair value ERAFE
At 1 January R—H—H 6,162 4,812
Transfer from property, plant and EEAME BER
equipment (note 14)* & (M sE14) - 380
Transfer from prepaid lease payment ERaRMNESENK
(note 15)* (HFsE15) * - 651
Effect of foreign currency exchange INEERZENTE
differences, included in “foreign (FATE LEHED
currency translation reserve” 126 82
Fair value adjustment to profit or loss FTAEZ 2 A FEFE 217 237
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 6,505 6,162

* For the year ended 31 December 2017, a property
originally held for own use has changed the use to
lease out for rental income and for capital appreciation.
Consequently, the related portions of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payment were transferred
to investment property, at the far value of such property
which is approximated to the carrying amounts at the

date of change in use.

HE-_FT—+tF+-A=+—HI
FE - —HARBEEANDED
BRo2FEAANEERNESK
ARBMER - At ME - BE
MEEAREMFAERBEN GBI
SEEBINRENME  BZVED
AFE(HEASEEFEIHNEEE
HEEIANER -

TELETEEERLAR —E-N\FFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment property

()

(ii)

(iii)

Fair value hierarchy
The investment property is measured at Level 3
valuation.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there
were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and
Level 3.

The Group's investment property was revalued as
at 31 December 2018. The valuations for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 were carried
out by an independent firm of surveyors, APAC
Appraisal and Consulting Limited, an independent
firm of chartered surveyors with recent experience
in the location and category of property being
valued. The Group’s directors have discussed with
the surveyors on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results when the valuation is performed
at each interim and annual reporting date.

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements

Valuation techniques

B H

16. REME(E)

RE
()

(i)

Unobservable input

FUBRRGAE

WE >R TFENE
A F 6 ER

REWMERE-_EMHENE -

REE-F—N\E+=A=+—
AILFRE £ 8 Z-ERE
SEzHLEESR -

KEBZIEEMERZZT—N
F+-—A=Z+—HETEH - R
HE_Z—)\FEFT—LtF
+ZA=+—RHLLFE ' HEMR
B R 2R KRR 5
BRAREIT HE EiifHE
YIS R EERGII
HELR ESEFRBEERFE
WEBBETHER  ~EE
EErHEASMTwmEERD
FEEER -

EHE=FELAFETEZE

Range

e
2018 2017
ZE-N\f CZIT—tF

Freehold land - Taiwan Direct comparison approach

KAEELH - B4 BEELRE
Land and buildings - The PRC Direct comparison approach
THREF - HE ERLEBE

The fair value of investment property is determined
using direct comparison approach by reference to
the market price of comparable properties and
adjusted for location and size of the properties.

During the vyear, the Group’s investment
property amounting to RMB4,895,000
(2017: RMB4,895,000) was held under trust
arrangements.
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Property-specific adjusting rate

NERTHEX

Property-specific adjusting rate

NERTHEE

(iif)

(15%) to 15%
(15%) £15%
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(15%)E(5%)

(20%) to 24%
(20%) £ 24%
(10%) to (5%)
(10%)Z(5%)

REWEZRAFEDERER
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17. B & E

Computer
Trademark system Total
[i:f ERR% @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
AR®ET T ARBF T ARBT T
Cost 3%
At 1 January 2017 RZTE—+tF—HA—H 19 1,750 1,769
Effect of foreign currency INEEHEZREZZE
exchange differences = 21 21
At 31 December 2017 and RZTE—+F
1 January 2018 +TZA=+—BK
—Z-N\¥—H—H 19 1,771 1,790
Effect of foreign currency NEENREZH2EE
exchange differences 1 12 13
At 31 December 2018 RZT—NF
+=—A=+—8 20 1,783 1,803
Accumulated amortisation Rty
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+tF—A—H 17 515 532
Charge for the year NEEEH = 760 760
Effect of foreign currency INBEEHZEZBITE
exchange differences - (1) M
At 31 December 2017 and RZZE—+t4F
1 January 2018 +ZA=+—BXK
—Z-N\¥—H—H 17 1,274 1,291
Charge for the year NEEHH - 497 497
Effect of foreign currency NEEREZH2EE
exchange differences 1 12 13
At 31 December 2018 RZT—-NF
+ZA=+—H 18 1,783 1,801
Carrying value ARE &
At 31 December 2018 R-T—)\%F
+-—A=+—H 2 o 2
At 31 December 2017 R-ZTB—+tF
+TZA=+—H 2 497 499
The amortisation charge for the year is included in “cost REEHBEENGEAEZERAGTA
of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. [ 85 &R A o
Y
TEEGEBERAT —ZT-N\FFRK
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE=_F

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

AN

—NFF+ZA=+—BLEFE

18. EEBZAFEEITAERZ
MEEE

%3

2018 2017
—E—-N\E —+tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREBTR AR T T
Mutual funds/unit trusts, BEEHS BAEFEZ
at fair value ~NEE
Established in Taiwan (note (i)) B & Bk S (B 5 () 33,320 37,098

According to the Mortuary Service Administration
Act (BBZEIRIEH]) in Taiwan, which was first
promulgated on 17 July 2002 and further amended
on 1 July 2003 and 4 July 2007, the Group has to
deposit 75% of the gross receipt of each funeral
services deed entered into after 31 July 2003 in
financial institutions in Taiwan as trust monies.

The trust monies have been invested, in mutual
funds and unit trusts in Taiwan, which were
managed by fund managers of these financial
institutions in Taiwan. The mutual funds and unit
trusts comprise a basket of financial assets including
local and foreign currencies bank deposits, bonds
and equity securities listed in Taiwan and other
foreign stock markets.

Financial assets designated at FVTPL are presented
within “operating activities” as part of changes
in working capital in the consolidated statement
of cash flows. The Group has obtained a net
realised and unrealised loss of RMB2,792,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: gain of
RMB697,000). The net realised and unrealised gain
of the above financial assets are recorded in “other
income” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

The financial assets above offer the Group the
opportunity for return through fair value gain. They
have no fixed maturity and coupon rate.

The fair value of the above financial assets is based
on their current bid prices in an active market.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

o 19. GOODWILL 19. A
2018 2017 i
—E-N\E —TtF \ _
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREBTR AREEFT
Cost: B
At 1 January R—H—8 18,258 18,051
Effect of foreign currency exchange INEEREZERE 2 EE
difference 471 207
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 18,729 18,258
Accumulated impairment losses: 2 AR B B R
At 1 January Hn—A—H 15,389 15,230
Impairment loss B E & B 2,868 =
Effect of foreign currency exchange INEERER B
difference 472 159
At 31 December R+=ZR=+— 18,729 15,389
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HZKHEE S 2,869

Goodwill was arising from the Group obtained control
of BLL through the acquisition of 100% equity voting
interests in BLL which is engaged in provision of elderly
care and related consultancy services. The primary reason
for the business combination is to enable the Group to
develop the business for the golden-ager and further
penetrate the elderly care market through (a) provision of
nursery services to the elderly and (b) consultancy services
to other service providers in the elderly care market by
means of:

(i)  establishment and/or hire of day-care centres; and

(i) establishment and/or hire of elderly homes; and

(iii)  provision of on-site nursery service at elderly’s
premises.

BEDREAKEEBRERGLS
h{é%&ﬁ@m@%%mT%M
Z100% Fff 5 % 5% 42 1 AU 4 21
BT IEHIHE - T ﬁ%%ﬁ
AN TI2EARABE@QARER
B & R K (b) 7 & & T 35 H b AR
BREBRHEAREENSEF
BREKET UARBEB TR
E—TEAEZXRHTNS:

() RBIRk/HEAAREEREFRL
&
(i) BRI ZEARER: R

iy REREZEBRESRHEESR

o

% 3

H_)/
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

19.

GOODWILL (Continued)

However, no consulting service income was generated
by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: RMB127,000) which was far beyond the Group's
expectation. In prior year, The Group has negotiation with
various owners of elderly home and day-care centres.
However, the negotiation was not positive and the
management of the Group decided not to allocate further
resource to the provision of elderly services. Accordingly,
the Group provided full impairment of RMB2,868,000
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to a cash-
generating unit (“CGU") as follows:

19.

i (|)

R BE_ZE—\F+ZA=+—
BLEFE AEEBTELZHARS
BREMBEACE—LE: ARKE
127,0007T) * RIERAEEEH - B
FFE AEFATRZER RAME
EREPLERBERMER - Am - E
EERWTIER  AEBERERT
TEAMEIINERTREEERS -
At REBREE-_Z—N\F+=
A=+ —RALEFERZHARARE
2,868,000 T Z R 1B °

BEHECREELBEUNRE
i
HEZEAESEIRZEATHRS
EfEM(REELEM])

2018 2017
—F-N\E —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBETR AREFT
Provision of elderly care and related R R AE R AR S
consultancy services = 2,869

The key assumptions, long-term growth rate and discount
rate used in the value-in-use calculations for the business
of providing elderly care and related consultancy services
are as follows:

SHEIR Gt 2 RIS R % ‘)/

BRNEREBEMAZEIERR
HBRERMIRELT:

2018 2017

—F-)\f —E—+F

- Gross margin - ERE N/AFERA  from 46% to
52%

46% £E52%

- Long term growth rate - REEEX N/AZ i# 3%
— Pre-tax discount rate - R ATEL IR X N/AZ i 17.4%

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

19. GOODWILL (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the elderly care and related
consultancy services business CGU was based on its
value in use and was determined with the assistance of
APAC Appraisal and Consulting Limited, an independent
professional qualified valuer not connected with the
Group.

The value-in-use calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the
estimated growth rates. The growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the business in
which the CGU operates.

19. BE (&)

EEZEMHBEERARBEBRESESL
B 2 EFIBREEEAEE
e YHEEARERBEZHUE
EAERMGEMTSAFTHEHEREAR
RAWHB TEE °

ZEEREBEMENAERERE
BEEAMERERFHRRANMEREDN
MARESARERR BBEFHME
MBS RETIE R T XAHIEEHE
RERMER - BRXTBBRECELE
MNAEEXBHNFHRBBREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —\F+_A=+—HLFE
20. DEVELOPMENT AND FORMATION 20. B3 REII KA

21.

COSTS

2018 2017
—F-N\£f§ ZTE—+F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBFT

Development and formation costs f 8% & K 37 K AR

— burial plots under development -UHEECEREN

for sale 5,230 5,055

The development and formation costs represent
development costs incurred for burial plots construction
in a cemetery site which will be completed for sale by
burial plot and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

The write down of development and formation costs
recognised as an expense and included in “cost of sales”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss amounted
to RMB nil (2017: RMB1,702,000), as the costs of the
burial plots under development for sale were higher than
their net realisable value.

FRBELKIAAERR -—REBES
TERFFHEZE M ZFERA Wi
AR AR FEMERZBREED
E\E o

BRAEAX TR EEGREEEARIH
BRI Rz 8 R &R S AR AR
BARBZET(ZE—+F: ARK
1,702,0007T) - AR BHFERE M 2K
AEBREAERFEE-

INVENTORIES 21. &8
2018 2017
—E-)\EF —ET—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARET T
Merchandises for resale BEEn 348 385
Completed burial plots BExIEH 667 655
Marble stones REAR 70 72
1,085 1,112

The carrying amount of inventories sold and write
down of inventories (mainly the completed burial plots)
recognised as an expense and included in “cost of sales”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss amounted
to RMB nil (2017 RMB8,682,000) and RMB nil (2017:
RMB245,000) respectively. The write down of inventories
is due to the costs of the completed burial plots were
higher than their net realisable value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2. BES RHEMEBWKRIE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+fF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETTT
Trade receivables (note (c) and (g)) Z 5 e W sk T8 (M 52 (0) & (g) 1,275 251
Other receivables (note (d)) H b e U FIE (M 7)) 10,272 7,429

Less: loss allowance for ECL (note (e)) i : TEEfZE EE 18 2 K18
B fE (Kt 3£ (e) (3,156) (4,650)
7,116 2,779
Loans and receivables BEREERFIE 8,391 3,030
Deposits and prepayments (note (f)) & & & 78 {~F 2 18 (Fff 5 () 42,921 40,769
51,312 43,799

Representing: ¥

Current B HA 50,312 42,799
Non-current JE BN ER 1,000 1,000
51,312 43,799

Note:

(a) All of the loans and receivables are expected to be

Wit

recovered within one year and prepayments are expected
to be recognised as expense within one year or in its

normal operating cycle.

(b)  The carrying amounts of loans and

approximate to their fair values.

(@] No loss allowance for ECL was recorded for both years.

Trade receivables with the following aging analysis by age
presented based on the invoice date as at the end of the

reporting period:

receivables (b)

@ FMEERRERFEBEEMN —F

ARE - AN RBRRAR —FA
INEFLERAMRRAZ -

EXREEFEZZ ERERAELR
FEBE -

© RPrREFESESSABEEER

ZEREE - UTRARBMEHRRE
SERWFBEREZAMET 2 RER
D

2018 2017

—F-N\E —ZET—+F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETT

0 to 180 days 0£180H 1,007 126
181 to 365 days 1812 365H 116 7
1 year to 2 years 1225 152 118
1,275 251
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. B RHMEWRIE(E)
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(9]

(Continued)

The average credit period for funeral arrangement services
granted to non-funeral services deed customers is 45 days
(2017: 45 days).

For sale of burial plots, the customers can elect to make
payment on a lump sum basis or settle the contract sum
by up to a maximum of 48 monthly instalments. The
instalment receivables will be discounted at an appropriate
effective interest rate.

There is no credit period granted to customers for the
other service rendered by the Group.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

Further details on the Group's credit policy are set out in
note 32(a).

Other receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
as it relates to a wide range of debtors for whom there
was no recent history of default. Management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of the non-impaired balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable.
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MR REEBRM KR -

A& B mpt iR 2 R M
EFPRLEESY-

AEBEWELZSERFAETAR
i o

ERAEEEZEBRME—PFHD
R FE32(0) ©

5L 4 18 A SOR (B 2 E i B W ROR
Ty BRI T M R AL 2 R RER
AEH - EBERRBBJTRZER
BMESRELDRERE RERRE
EERYEBEALE  MRFHER
DR R BRKE -



Notes to the Financial Statements

7AT SO
B 1% Rk 3R MY 5 E
_ For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE
U™  22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. B5 R HE i FEWSIE (&)

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) B et (8) \
(e)  Impairment loss of other receivables () HiEKRFKREZREBE

Impairment loss of other receivables are recorded using
an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment losses are written off against other receivables

Hith FEUTRIB Z WA BB T) &
BB - EHARBEAZR
I8 2 AT Bl R A R BR AN - Rk 1
AT REBBESEXEEMBER

directly. RIEMEE
Movements in the allowance for impairment loss BMEBBERES
2018 2017
—¥-0F —EF-LF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR ARBT T
At 1 January n—HA—H 4,650 291
Impairment loss recognised R EEE - 4,359
Reversal of allowance for doubtful R AR B O B
debt (1,494) =
At 31 December WR+=ZA=+—H 3,156 4,650

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no other
receivables of the Group were individually determined to
be impaired (2017: RMB4,359,000).

(f) Included in deposits and prepayments are deposits
paid for funeral parlours and funeral services centres,
prepaid hire charge of funeral parlours and funeral
services centres, prepaid agency commission for funeral
services and prepayment for purchase of marble stones
of RMB1,000,000 (2017: RMB1,700,000), RMB8,131,000
(2017 RMB8,003,000), RMB22,687,000 (2017:
RMB15,977,000), and RMB nil (2017: RMB12,080,000),
respectively.

RBE-ZTE—-N\F+=ZA=+—8
LIEFE - NS B 4 AT A E B UK
RERENECLEREREZT—
+F: AR ®4,359,0007T) °

FARS REMREASRIREE
ERBERERLINZES &
BERBEEREFLZBENHEAY
HARERBEEREZBNRER
SRBENBERERARZERAR
#1,000,000(ZE—+tF: AR
#1,700,0007T) « A R 38,131,000
TE(ZZE —+F: AR ¥8,003,000
7o) A R #22,687,0007T (= & —
+ F: A B #15,977,0007T) * &
ARBZT(ZE—EF ARK
12,080,0007T) ©

H_)/
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. B RHMEWRIE(E)
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(f)

(Continued)

A commission is paid to the agents when the service
deeds amounts were received by the Group. The
commission is fully refundable according to the agency
agreements if the Group are not required to perform the
funeral.

Impairment loss on prepayments of RMB nil (2017:
RMB2,793,000) was made to the prepayment for purchase
of marble stones.

Trade receivables that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are
as follows:

(f)

#rat - (%)

(&)

7R 52 [ W ER AR 75 2 4 SR B 8 A (R
ExNAe MASEESRHEE
HIRTS - MEMSARERERS
DRRE o

MEEREBAEMNREIRRES
BARBZET(ZE—+F: AR¥E
2,793,0007T) ©

I RE 2 R E 5 R

I EE R KRR R REZ ER
BHRRZBRROTMT

2018 2017

—E—-\E —E—tF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARE TR ARBF T

Neither past due nor impaired NP 4% 16 HA SR (B 63 27
Past due but not impaired i BB RO (E

Less than 1 month past due wmELR—E A 762 89

1 to 3 months past due BH—EAAZE=EA 17 4

Over 3 months past due mHIE B =E A 433 131

1,212 224

1,275 251

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to various customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE
23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 23. & RIS EEBYREMIE

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION EREH
(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (@) BReLBR2EEVRE:
2018 2017
—E—-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTR ARETF T
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERE 103,467 98,186
Cash and cash equivalents in FEMBRRERRES
the consolidated statement BensrhNzHle ik
of financial position and the REeEEEY
consolidated statement of cash
flows 103,467 98,186

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates.

At 31 December 2018, cash at bank and on
hand of the Group of RMB11,362,000 (2017:
RMB11,187,000) were denominated in RMB and
placed with banks in the PRC. Conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations.

RITHSRBEEARITEHR
JEEEP L ETER

RZE—NF+=-A=+—8"
AEEBZRORFERS A
A B 811,362,000t (Z & —+
£ AR#11,187,0007T) * A A
REFELTFHRAPEZRIT -
A R 48 N B AR 4 AR B S
P E 15 5] & 4508 - S B K A
& IR AR E T ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE
23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

OTHER CASH FLOW

(Continued)

(@) (Continued)

INFORMATION

The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash at bank

23.

BarRBeXBYhRAMER
EREAHE)

(a)

(&)

AEBZBROIRFBRERE 2K

W,

)

and on hand are denominated in the following AENATIE®EE:
currencies:

2018 2017
—EB-N\=E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR F T
us$ ETT 1,102 283
HK$ BT 1,982 28,510
RMB AR 11,362 11,187
NTD e 88,816 58,118
VND M A 205 88
103,467 98,186

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities

(b)

REZTBFEREEYR

Bank

borrowings

RITER

RMB'000

ARET T

At 1 January 2018 W-E—N\E—H—8 10,130
Changes from financing cash flows RERSTED

Repayment of bank loans BERITEXR (1,059)

Total changes from financing cash flows MERERNEHET 9,071

Exchange adjustments [E & 3 & 233

At 31 December 2018 RZZE—-N\F+=ZRA=+—8H 9,304

< 17
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

Y

- 24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2. B RHEMEMRIE

2018 2017 | !
“E-N\NE —ZT—+tF Y,
RMB’000 RMB'000 (
AREBTR ARET T
Trade payables (note (c)) Z 5 e 5E (K ) 2,994 1,267
Accruals and other payables FE 5T 3R I8 Fo Bt JE 5 RIE 12,629 9,180
Financial liabilities measured at RBENAGTEZ
amortised cost g asE 15,623 10,447
Notes: B & -
(@) All of the trade and other payables are expected to be @ FBEESRAEMENREBRBER

settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

—FREERRRA -

(b)  The carrying amounts of trade and other payables (b) BERHEMEMNKIAZREEHEAR
approximate to their fair values. NTEEE -
()  The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables, © UTARBEMARESEMNRIEBER
based on the invoice date, at the end of the reporting BEAMZRER DN
period:
2018 2017
—E-N\E Tt F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREF T
0 to 30 days 0Z30H 144 690
31 days to 90 days 31HZE90H 23 139
Over 90 days 90H M E 2,827 438
2,994 1,267

H_)/
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

25. RECEIPTS

IN ADVANCE/CONTRACT 25. fAlksIE SYAE

LIABILITIES
2018 2017
—EB-N\%E —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARETT
Contract liabilities/Advance payments A% 8E / EF R T H&E
from customers for: < T FE
— funeral service deeds (note (a)) - BERBREZY
(M 3% @@)) 94,160 90,302
— burial plots under development -HAEPEHRER
and tombstones (note (b)) (Bt 3£ (b)) 2,357 2,128
— deferred maintenance income - BERERBHA - 151
96,517 92,581
Analysed as: DA
Current BN EA 96,320 92,432
Non-current 3E BN &8 197 149
96,517 92,581

Notes:

Bau Shan and Sino-Life (Hong Kong) Limited (“Sino-Life
(HK)"), subsidiaries of the Company, sold funeral services
deeds to customers (“Deed Holders”). The funeral services
deeds are prepaid funeral services packages which mainly
comprise particular types of funeral services at the choice
of the customers to be arranged in future. The Deed
Holders can elect to make payment on a lump sum basis
or settle the outstanding amount of the funeral services
deeds by up to a maximum of 120 monthly instalments.
The Group determines the pricing of the funeral services
deeds by adding a margin to the estimated costs of
delivering these services, after having taking into account
of major factors including the timing of the instruction
of the Deed Holders. Amounts received from funeral
services deeds sold are recorded as receipts in advance.
When the Deed Holders have defaulted payment for two
months and do not pay back the defaulted amounts
after the Group’s not less than 30-day’s demand notice,
the funeral services deeds would be regarded as lapsed
and a minimum of 20% of the total sum of the funeral
services deeds or the instalments paid, whichever is
lower, will be forfeited as income. The Deed Holders
can request for funeral services or terminate the funeral
services deeds at any time after the funeral services deeds
are sold. Accordingly, receipts in advance is classified as
current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZEZ %
25. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE (Continued)

Notes. (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

According to the Mortuary Service Administration Act
(FEZEE IR 1) in Taiwan, which was first promulgated
on 17 July 2002 and further amended on 1 July 2003
and 4 July 2007, the Group has to deposit 75% of the
gross receipt of each funeral services deed entered into
after 31 July 2003 in financial institutions in Taiwan as
trust monies. As at 31 December 2018, the Group has
deposited RMB29,963,000 (2017: RMB31,650,000) in
three financial institutions in Taiwan.

The Group recognised a net gain on termination/lapse
of funeral services deeds of RMB nil (2017: net gain
of RMB55,000) in
statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2018.

“other income” in the consolidated

It is principally arising from the sales of burial plots and
tombstones under instalment plans and such amount

—NF+ZA=+—BHLFE

25. AW RRIA (4])

B it - (&)

(a)

(&)

BER-_ZT-_F+A+LtHEE
Eh Iﬁé_ggfitﬂ A&
TR F L ANBE—FBIZ
REBERERIEL  AEBEEER
RZTEE=F+tA=+—HEZ
2 &N & IR IS R 4 BT LR A
BEZTS%FERREEZ @ REE
eBiEEE N-ZT—N\E+_-A
=+—H XAEEER%ZE=-MA
2 © B % 8 17 A R 29,963,000

T(ZF -4 ARK31,650,000
7T °
AEERBE_T-N\F+ZA=

+—BLEFEZHREBERPIE
fib I A | — T8 37 48 TR 3 AR T R AR
I/ RBpER(CE—F: F
F%8 AR #55,0000T) °

Ex%ﬂﬁi%éi@%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁi T
MEM P EREE - M BB

will be recognised as revenue when the relevant revenue ERAHEBREEREHFRER
recognition criteria are met. R E -
BANK BORROWINGS 26. SRITHEE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥ET T
Bank borrowings, secured RITHEE BEA
Current liabilities MEBAR
— Portion of term loan from bank due - R—FREIHAEEN
for repayment within 1 year RITEHERILD 1,267 1,059
Non-current liabilities FRBBEE
— Portion of term loan from bank due - R—F & FHEERN
for repayment after 1 year RITEHERS Y 8,037 9,071
Total # st 9,304 10,130
THEHEMERAT —F-NEEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE=_F

—NFF+ZA=+—BLEFE

)

demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants and is up to date with the scheduled
repayments of the term loans. Further details of the
Group’s liquidity risk are set out in note 32(b). As at
31 December 2018, none of the covenants relating to
drawn down facilities had been breached (2017: nil).

All of the bank borrowings are carried at amortised cost.

None of the bank borrowings due for repayment after one
year contain a repayment on demand clause and hence
these balances are not expected to be settled within one
year and are classified as a non-current liability.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018

26. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 26. SRITIEE (&)
At 31 December 2018, bank borrowings were due for RZZE—N\F+-_A=+—8"  E17
repayment, which are based on the scheduled repayment BEARTIHMEDEREEER
dates as stipulated in the respective loan agreements, as WEANMTANBEEEERRAE
follows: BE:
2018 2017
—E—-N\EF —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AR®ETF T
Within 1 year —FR 1,267 1,059
After 1 year but within 2 years R—FRBERRERN 1,268 1,079
After 2 years but within 5 years RAFERERTEA 3,802 3,359
After 5 years RAF & 2,967 4,633
8,037 9,071
9,304 10,130
All of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of FIERITEERTBITREMER -
covenants. If the Group were in breach of the covenants, WAKBERRE CHANEE
the drawn down facilities would become repayable on %E/,\EAEIH—ME}&

AEETHERERETZEE:
FERETHAHESETHER - K
SERDECRRBRNE—THFEHR
RHE32(0) c RZE—NF+ZA=

TR AEEYEEREHEHAE
ERENRE(CE—LF H)-

PRBERITEREREHKASE -

C—FRIMEENRITEEHRE
HERZREEGS Bt %54
HREHRR —FABKRES AR
RIERBARE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

J™  26. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 26. SRITIEE (&)
At 31 December 2018, the banking facilities of the Group A—E—N\F+-_A=1+—H X%£H
were secured by a personal guarantee to the extent of ZIRTREZEFMAERARIEES \
RMB34,394,000 (equivalent to US$5,000,000) (2017: AHEETRREDRBEZERAA
RMB32,567,000 (equivalent to US$5,000,000) from Mr. IR #34,394,0007T (48 & 75,000,000
Liu Tien-Tsai (“Mr. Liu”), a director of the Company. Such EN)ZBEABERCCE—LEF AR
banking facilities were not utilized for both years. #32,567,0007T (48 & 55,000,000
7)) c ZERITHERMEFEHIL
KEpA o

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the effective interest RZE—N\EER-_TE—+&+-A=
rates of the bank borrowings were as follows: +—H  BITEECERFERNT:

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —T—+tF

Variable-rate F B K 1.62-2.29% 1.62-2.29%
Bank borrowings of RMB6,413,000 (2017: BITHEE ARK6413,000L(=ZE
RMB10,130,000) denominated in NTD were secured —+t F: A R ¥10,130,0007T) T3 JA
by the freehold land and buildings in Taiwan with HakEHE YHUARAEBEZKAE
total carrying amount of RMB19,455,000 (2017: BT HMEEFREEEAARE
RMB18,877,000) (note 14(d)). Of the total bank 19,455,000 (ZF — £ H: AR
borrowings, RMB2,892,000 (2017: RMB3,168,000) is 18,877,0007T) 1€ & # (Kt 5214(d)) -
guaranteed by Mr. Liu. AR¥2,892,000(ZE—EF: A

R #3,168,0007T) A BI L £ EIR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

27. INCOME TAX
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of

IN THE CONSOLIDATED 27.

EEMBRARANZAEB

(a) HAFHMRAKAZBEHIA

financial position represents: &
2018 2017
—F-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREBFR AR T
At 1 January Rn—HA—H 4,174 3,383
Provision for the year FEEE
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax - PR EREM 1,108 1,513
Income tax paid during the year FRAENAEM (1,024) (723)
Income tax refunded during the year F A E R [E TS - 1
At 31 December W+—A=+—H 4,258 4,174
Representing: f5:
Tax recoverable AT Y B 7 I8 = (10)
Tax payable B BiIR 4,258 4,184
4,258 4174

(b) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of PRC with
effect from 1 January 2008 onwards, non-resident
enterprises without an establishment or place of
business in the PRC or which have an establishment
or place of business but the relevant income is not
effectively connected with the establishment or a
place of business in the PRC, will be subject to
withholding income tax at the rate up to 10% on
various types of passive income such as dividends
derived from sources in the PRC. For investors
incorporated in Hong Kong, a preferential rate of
5% is applied. On 22 February 2008, the State
Administration of Taxation approved Caishui (2008)
No. 1, pursuant to which dividend distributions
out of retained earnings of foreign investment
December 2007 will be

enterprises prior to 31
exempted from withholding income tax.
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27. FEMBRARAZAEB

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

(Continued)

As all of the Group’s foreign-invested enterprises
in the PRC are directly and wholly owned by Hong
Kong incorporated subsidiaries, a rate of 5% is
applicable to the calculation of this withholding
tax. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of
the tax that would be payable on the distribution
of the retained profits of RMB14,196,000 (2017:
RMB5,731,000) as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that these profits will
not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

In Taiwan, under Article 42 of the Income Tax Act
of Republic of China, the net dividend or net surplus
earning received by a profit-seeking enterprise
organised as a company from its investment in
another domestic profit-seeking enterprise shall not
be included in its taxable income. Such exemption
is not applicable for investment in foreign profit-
seeking enterprise, which is subject to income tax
at the rate of 17%.

As one of the Group’s subsidiaries, being a foreign
profit-seeking enterprise, is directly and wholly
owned by a subsidiary incorporated in Taiwan,
a rate of 17% is applicable to the calculation
of the income tax. Deferred taxation has not
been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of the retained profits
of RMB17,540,000 (2017: RMB13,352,000) as
the Company controls the dividend policy of this
subsidiary and it has been determined that it is
probable that these profits will not be distributed
in the foreseeable future.

(%)

(b)

ARBERELEH EEE
(#&)
ENAEERTRZFTAINE
EHHERBEFMA LN
BAREEZEHEA HEH
TENM @B B E A% - A
RARARIEHZENBRAZ
BB SR - O HE T % R
FRAERATRLREDIR - 8§
WA REEE B RERLDIRR
BEMBEATINZELERE
AR #14,196,000t(ZF — +
& AR #5,731,0007T) /£ H #
f& o
BE BEPERBMEH
ELBERG URREREA
MEFTCERARERE S —
MEFTCEMESHRE FE
SEBHAFFE HAFAMRE
RBEBA - BEERR L TEB
RENEEFCENRE %
ERENMBHRMERIT% o

ARAEEH+A R EAF
BINEEFIDE  WR—EEA
EEMK IR B AR EE S
EE FERMGHROERM
KENT% ° BRI B HIl 3% M
BRARIZBRBEKE  WEHE
ZE R TNRATRERN A B AR KRS
& R AR A SRR B
DIRRERFEFEATIMN B
i IE A R #17,540,0007T (=
T—+F: AR¥13,352,0007T)
TEH B -
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27. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b)

(o)

Deferred tax liabilities not
(Continued)

In Taiwan, under Article 4 of Standards of
Withholding Rates for Various Incomes issued by
Ministry of Finance of Republic of China, the net
dividends or profit distributed to a profit seeking
enterprise having its head office outside the
territory of the Republic of China from investment
in an enterprise within the territory of the Republic
of China shall be withheld at a rate of 20% of the
amount distributed.

recognised

As one of the Group’s subsidiary operates within
the territory of the Republic of China having its
head office outside the territory of the Republic of
China, a rate of 20% is applicable to the calculation
of this withholding tax. Deferred taxation has not
been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
and 2017 as the subsidiary has no retained profit
that can be distributed.

Deferred tax assets not recognised

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has unused tax
losses of RMB26,438,000 (2017: RMB22,731,000)
available for offset against future profits. Other
than tax losses amounting to RMB17,446,000 (2017:
RMB14,943,000) that would be expiring from 5
years to 10 years pursuant to the relevant rules and
regulations in the PRC, Vietnam and Taiwan, the
remainder at the end of the reporting period can be
carried forward indefinitely. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
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™ 28. PROVISIONS 28. 1%
2018 2017 | '
—E—-N\E —E—LtF \ /

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFR AR®TT

Provision for future costs of REBFHERRFEZ

delivering funeral services IR AR A1
At 1 January ®n—H—H 2,900 2,851
Exchange adjustment M H 8 B 75 49
At 31 December R+T-_A=+t—H 2,975 2,900
The Group determines the pricing of the funeral services REBEERETZR=(BIEZOF
deeds by adding a margin to the estimated cost of BAZERERE FBHRKRXK
delivering funeral services in future, after taking into REBERSE 2 AR &R
account of major factors including the timing of the ME hETBEREROZE
instruction of the Deed Holders. & o
This estimate is based on the sub-contracting fee payable ZEGFDERRSHECRITHEE
to the sub-contractor for each funeral service deed RERAENSBEEH2HBRER - ]
performed, the current market conditions and the price FmEMARARZOBRET - B
of deeds. Management reassesses these estimates at the EBREgmERRERTEZFMET
end of each reporting period to estimate if the receipts in N ZEBERBRELEKRRIE
advance for funeral service deeds can cover the estimated EERUINREHBERE 2K X
future costs of delivering funeral services and determine BEREN TEFETEEEREEY
the need of making a provision in the consolidated &P IELEE -

financial statements.
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. &K
No. of shares Amount
k&8 &8
RMB'000
AR¥EFTT
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SRAEBEBIB T2 EBR
At 1 January 2017, 31 December RZZE—+tF—H—1"
2017 and 31 December 2018 —E—+tH+=H
=F—HERZZE-NF
+—-—A=+—H 10,000,000,000 881,541
Ordinary shares, issued and ERTRHBELER:
fully paid:
At 1 January 2017, 31 December RZZE—+t&F—H—1"
2017 and 31 December 2018 —E—t+F+=A
=+-AR=Z-NF
+=-—A=+—H 742,500,000 69,218

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s

residual assets.
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30. &6

™ 30. RESERVES

(a) The reconciliation between the opening and (@) XEEHGeaRDZEBH FH)
closing balances of each component of the HERGEHRIHREN AR
Group's consolidated equity is set out in the HEEFK - ARAFESLS
consolidated statement of changes in equity. ZEVRERZEHFIFHT
Details of the changes in the Company’s R
individual components of reserves between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:

Foreign
currency  Share-based
Share  translation compensation  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
MR BERE
3 i B ERfkiE  2HERE 5y @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARET:
At 1 January 2017 RZZ-+%-f—A 220,633 (12,560) 7,676 (159,488) 56,261
Loss for the year AEEER = = = (23,475) (23,475)
Exchange differences on MENBRREEZEN
translation of financial R
statements = (7,480) = = (7,480)
Total comprehensive loss for  AFE 2 EE B AH
the year = (7,480) = (23,475) (30,955)
Lapse of share options BRmBRERK
granted - - (331) 331 -
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+%
+-A=+-H 220,633 (20,040) 7,345 (182,632) 25,306
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\F—HA—-AH 220,633 (20,040) 7,345 (182,632) 25,306
Loss for the year AEEER - - - (5,122) (5,122)
Exchange differences on BENBRREEZEL
translation of financial R
statements - 3,953 - - 3,953
Total comprehensive loss for AFE2 A EAH
the year S 3,953 - (5,122) (1,169)
Lapse of share options BEREEREXK
granted = = (318) 318 =
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
(16,087) 7,027 (187,436) 24,137

1 +-A=+-8 220,633
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30. RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves

()

(i)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the Company’s share
premium account are distributable to the
shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve arose from the business
combination under common control in
relation to the acquisition of Bau Shan during
the group reorganisation in 2007. The merger
reserve of the Group represents the difference
between aggregate net asset value of Bau
Shan acquired and the consideration paid for
the acquisition of Bau Shan pursuant to the
group reorganisation.

(iii) Statutory reserve

According to the applicable laws and
regulations in Taiwan, the Group’s Taiwan
subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of
their net profits after taxation, as determined
under the relevant accounting principles and
financial regulations applicable to companies
established in Taiwan, to a non-distributable
reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches
the registered capital of the respective
enterprises. The transfer to this reserve must
be made before the distribution of a dividend
to owners but after offset the previous years’
losses, if any.
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30. f# (&)
(b) BEMERFARGE)

30. RESERVES (Continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)
(iv) Statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations,
PRC subsidiaries in the Group are required
to appropriate at least 10% of their profit
after tax, as determined under the relevant
accounting principles and financial regulations
applicable to companies established in the
PRC, to a non-distributable reserve fund until
such reserve reaches 50% of the registered
capital of the respective enterprises. The
transfer to this reserve must be made before
the distribution of dividends to owners. The
non-distributable reserve fund can be used
to offset the previous years' losses, if any,
expand the existing operations or convert into
additional capital of the subsidiaries, provided
that the balance after such issue is not less
than 25% of its registered capital. The non-
distributable reserve fund is non-distributable
other than upon liquidation.

According to the Vietnam Enterprise Law,
Vietnam subsidiaries in the Group can set
their reserve fund according to the respective
Charter. Under the Charter of the Vietnam
subsidiaries, they are required to transfer
5% to 15% of profit after tax to set up the
reserve fund until such reserve reaches 10%
of the registered capital of the respective
enterprises.

(iv)

ZEEEGEE
WEPEERERE &
EHENBEARABSHE
BEEARPEKZZA
AlzB@EEHRA LG
RTET 2B EMN&
D10% B = A9k (7 1
T HEERERRESESE
A ZFMERS0% A
IF - MZREHESERVAE
KRR AR K B R#E
17 TRAIDIKFEEE A
RIEEAEFBB(WOH) -
BrRRAEEBIEBE
MEB AR ZEINEDR -
AR BB ERITERE &
BRIABERREZMELRZ
25% ° BRIBASN + AT
KEEHEETBOIR -

BEMBEARE  AN&EH
ZBERBARIRES
BERNRARERRILGEE
& REMBEWEB QA
WARIER  HEEER
5% E15% 2 b i 1% 4 A
BUfEES EZE@ER
HoERBLE 2 AME
K10% &Lk -
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30. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature

and purpose of reserves

(Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Properties revaluation reserve

The properties revaluation reserve has been
set up and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted for freehold
land and buildings held for own use in note
2(f) and is not distributable.

Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial
statements of non-PRC operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(s).

Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve
comprises the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to eligible participants of
the Group recognised in accordance with
accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(o).
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30. R (4E)

30. RESERVES (Continued)

(@)

Capital Management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
owners and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to owners, return capital to owners, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with other companies in the industry,
the Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio which is total liabilities divided by total
assets. The Group aims to maintain the gearing
ratio at a reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at
31 December 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

(o)

EXRERE
AEBEERERNZBRERER
AEERBFELE  LEHMA
BAANGRE R N E AR
By ESRMNE  LHRFER
BAREBURDELRARAK o

REFRIABEARER A&
l@*ﬂﬁ%EA§HZkE
TR O REERATHAAN %

TFRMNSIEEEENRDE
g .

MEMBEQR K A£H
NEERBLERETEAM

HE- ﬁ%ﬁﬁm*ﬁﬂéﬁ
RUAREBEEFE - AEBEEHE
hé?ﬁﬁ%T%%ﬁ A K
FoRZB-N\FR-_F—LF
tZR=+— EZﬁEEﬁm
= (I

2018 2017

—E—-N\E —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARBTT

Total liabilities A& 133,744 120,242

Total assets REE 236,553 232,331

Gearing ratio BEAGLEE 56.54% 51.75%
There were no changes in the Group’s approach to HBATFELE®R  AEEHE

capital management compared with previous years.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

KREBZ AR EEE - XD
7] B H T ] Bt B & B9 N 2 oh
HEHEZERNRERS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE
31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 31. ZERE9Z2HEITA

CATEGORIES
2018 2017
—F-N\E —E—LF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREBETR AR T
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets designated as at BEREATEFAER
fair value through profit or loss ZHMBEE 33,320 37,098
Loans and receivables (including cash B Ft N JfE Uk 3038 (B2 35 38
and cash equivalents) e REZEEM) 122,182 101,216
Financial liabilities MBAR
Amortised cost B R 29,994 20,577

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The Group has exposure to the credit risk, liquidity risk
and market risk arising from financial instruments. The
Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risk are described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations resulting
in financial loss to the Group. The Group has
adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral,
where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the
risk of financial loss from defaults.

(i) In respect of trade receivables from funeral
services, the credit risk is relatively low as
the receivable for each individual customer is
not significant and the Group generally offer
credit period of 45 days to customers. The
Group does not obtain collateral in respect of
its financial assets.
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32. MBEMERRMBIRLZ

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

In respect of other receivables, the Group's
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each debtor.
At the end of the reporting period, the
Group had certain concentrations of credit
risk as 12% (2017: 40%) of the total loans
and receivables (excluding cash and cash
equivalents) is due from a funeral parlour.

In order to minimise risk, the management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Ongoing credit evaluation
is performed on the financial condition of
customers. These evaluations focus on the
debtor’s current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the
debtor as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the debtor operates.
The Group does not require collateral in
respect of its financial assets.

The majority of the Group’s investments
are financial assets designated as at FVTPL
which include mutual funds and unit trusts
established in Taiwan. Given the high credit
standing of investment counterparties,
management does not expect any investment
counterparties to fail to meet their
obligations.

AFEE)

(a)
(ii)

(iii)

=& =R (&)

FhE AL RURR S - A
SEEHSZEER I
EREEBAZMERIE
TE o NMEHK $§%
B 5 & R R R IR AR
(T@Tﬁfﬁui&fﬁ S
M) 212% (ZF—+ 5
O%)Z%KEH&Z—FE?ET{%%
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ERE -

AERERERK  EEE
Eﬁmﬁfﬁ PN
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ﬁ@%ﬁZéﬂ KEE

BERREVBEER
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RBERAFEAABGEZY
BEE BRERBERIL
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. MEEREERMEIAZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(iv)  The credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with
good credit rating.

(v)  The Group does not provide any guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables are set out in note 22.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to parent company’s board
approval. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants to ensure that it maintains
sufficient amount of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following tables set out the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on current
rates at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group is required to pay.
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_ For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE
™  32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. MEREAKEERMETAZ

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL AFEEHE)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued) \ .
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBESRER(E)
The maturity analysis for the bank borrowings is RITEBEENINBHBE TR
prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates. EMEEFHRR -
2018
—¥-0\E
More than ~ More than Total
1 year but 2 years but contractual
Within less than less than ~ More than  undiscounted Carrying
On demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
Blé-5 BAWE AHRERES
BRER  R-£R PEOREE ELREE  RBEE REAHE REE
RMB'000  RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBFRT AREFR ARETR AREFRT ARETR ARETR ARETR

Non-derivative financial FITEHEAE

liabilities
Trade payables EREHER - 2,994 - - - 2,994 2,994
Accruals and other payables &3 38 &
E AN 115,122 s S o S 115,122 115,122
Bank borrowings ROTEE - 1,267 1,268 3,802 2,967 9,304 9,304
115,122 4,261 1,268 3,802 2,967 127,420 127,420
2017
ZEtF
More than More than
1 year but less 2 years but Total contractual
Within than less than ~ More than  undiscounted Carrying
On demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
BBE—F BB ANRERER S
REX R—FR EBIREF BIRREF BBRF mELR REME
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTL ARETR AR¥TRT ARETR ARET: ARETL ARBTR

Non-derivative financial FITEHBRE

liabilities
Trade payables EREHER = 1,267 S = S 1,267 1,267
Accruals and other payables f& 5 708 |t

Hf e TR 9,180 S S = = 9,180 9,180

Bank borrowings RITEE - 1,236 1,236 3,707 4,800 10,979 10,130

9,180 2,503 1,236 3,707 4,800 21,426 20,577
The amounts included above for variable interest WMEBERERERERRE
1 rate instruments for non-derivative financial FE 2GR EANR - £ g3k
v liabilities are subject to change if changes in variable MTEMBEEEEIASFAZ

\ 7 interest rates differ from those estimates of interest THEENEES -

rates determined at the end of the reporting period.
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. MEEREERMEIAZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL AFEE)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

() Interest rate risk () FIZ=[E b
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate AEEAAZBERZEEE
risk in relation to borrowings at variable rates. The REMEFERER - XEBE W
Group did not use derivative financial instruments EERITEMBTAENERE
to hedge its debt obligations. BEAEE -
The Group's cash flow interest rate risk mainly rEEZREREMNERRE
concentrates on fluctuation of market interest rate EERRAEBEBREAZT
arise from the Group’s borrowings. B BEEE o
Bank balances are carried at low interest rates and RITABIRENEETE » 3t
the interest income thereon is not significant. EENNBERALTERK -
(i) The following table details the interest rate (i) TRHAFAEENRFHEH

profile of the Group’s borrowings at the end RKOEBEFEHNBR -

of the reporting period.

2018 2017
—%-0\E S o3
Effective Effective
interest interest

Note RMB'000 rate (%) RMB'000 rate (%)

- E LIE )/

Wi ARETR (%) ARBTRT (%)
Variable rate borrowings FEEE
1.62%- 1.62%-
Bank borrowings RITEE 26 2.29% 10,130 2.29%
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) SREE W
The Executive Directors performed sensitivity MITESUAGHF BT
analysis with estimation of a general increase/ R 10018 £ B 1T
decrease of 100 basis points. BURRE DT -

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
At 31 December 2017, it is estimated that
a general increase/decrease of 100 basis
points in interest rates for variable-rate
borrowings, with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased
the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated
losses by approximately RMB66,000
(2017: RMB84,000). Other components of
consolidated equity would not change in
response to the general increase/decrease in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analyses above have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. A 100 basis points (2017: 100
basis points) increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2017.

(d) Currency risk
The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the Executive
Directors monitor the Group’s foreign currency
exposures and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposures should the need arises.

(i)  Exposure to currency risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk
primarily through bank deposit denominated
in a foreign currency that is a currency other
than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. The currency giving rise
to this risk is USD, RMB and HK$. The Group's
policy is to ensure that its net exposure is
kept to an acceptable level by buying or
selling foreign currencies at spot values when
necessary to address short-term imbalances.

32. B

/A

()

(d)

BEMREZERUABIAZ
FEE&E)

= & b ()

(i) BEEE 77 (&)
R_ZE—tE+=-_A=+
—H  WEBEERZH
KR FFT 1001 E
o MATEEMEHERE

~E o AEET AR B 2 B
Fifg BB B i S8 A
R #66,000(Z & —
F: AR¥84,0005T) - H
i e =IO TE AE
BFEEFTEmMERE
Ej) o

FSRE D TTIIRE R
& HA R B ¥ 2 B K 2 f
EFE o mESTERERN
W¢%$$$F2%ﬁl
ERBEFEHLREE -
FWE EEABANIR
= F =R F AR
100MEER (=T — 45!
100MEEE) (EE - ERE
ﬂ?%ﬂﬁﬂTT%ﬁﬁ

i)ﬂiﬂ%ﬁﬂ%&i@ﬁ’ﬁ
#r

B R R

& B B AT E SN S R
ARl AITEFERELRE

BzoERERE  YHERERFE

R B3 E AN AR (E L

iT/¢

() FrE#HzE%EE
AEBEAZHEKRRE
ZREUINE ST ERETT
GRENBEBEEBM IR
HITHREE B AN EHE) o
SIBUtLIER RS A
T ARBRET &K~E
EREEE SR ER
BREBEREEEXREEI
B DAREAR A5 R B (B 4
AR XA KFE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i)  Exposure to currency risk (Continued)
The following table details the Group's
exposure at the end of the reporting period
to currency risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in
RMB, translated using the spot rate at the

year end date.

W,

32. MBEBEERMBIRALZ
AFEE)

(d)

Bk (E)
(i) FE#HZE%EE(E

TRAFJAEER RS
REAEBEERIEES
Aoz B EHEZ EH#R
BESBBMELEZEY
Rk - pE®mmME - Al
SEDUAREIR K
TIRREHB 2 BNEER

mH -

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in RMB)

P #Z 5hE L B (LA R 5IR)

)

2018 2017
“E-0\%E —E—+tF
us$ RMB HK$ us$ RMB HK$
xT AR%® E=n xn AR ABx
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
Fr Frn T Fr Fr Fr
Cash and cash equivalents RekBses
E® 1,102 76 1,982 6 128 714
Trade and other payables B R E ML
e - - (2,254) S - (1,229
Net exposure arising from BREERE
recognised assets and EMEEZ
liabilities -9k & 1,102 76 (272) 6 128 (515)

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis
The following table indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s loss
after taxation (and accumulated losses) that
would arise if foreign exchange rates to
which the Group has significant exposure
at the end of the reporting period had
changed at that date, assuming all other risk
variables remained constant. In this respect,
it is assumed that the pegged rate between
the HK$ and the US$ would be materially
unaffected by any changes in movement in
value of the US$ against other currencies.

32. MBEMERRMBIRLZ

AFEER)
(d) E#E K ()
(ii) &R E B4
TR SR A

SEEEATEZEEXR
ZAHHIRBCE - ER
R A A R B B
TEZBERT  AEEZ
BiEEE(RRAER)
BEELZERES - 5t
HmE - 2eRRAETHE
TR BERE ISR
THEMEEZEMNEE
BEPIMIBNERTE -

2018 2017
ZF-0\E “E—+tF
Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) ~ Decrease/  Decrease/  (decrease) Decrease/ Decrease/
in foreign (increase) (increase) in in foreign  (increase) in  (increase) in
exchange in loss after accumulated exchange loss after  accumulated
rates taxation losses rates taxation losses
Ext#/ RKBGEEE RiEE EXCLA/ BUHAER ZHBR
(T%) BP/(8m KL/ (Em) (T®) ®o/08m) Bo/(Em)
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETR AREFTT ARETR
us$ e 6.6% S S 6.6% = =
(6.6%) - - (6.6%) - -
RVB AEE 6.6% 7 7 6.6% 7 7
(6.6%) 7 7 (6.6%) 7 7
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. MERBREERAEIEZ
AFEEE)

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the group
entities’ loss after tax and equity measured
in the respective functional currencies,
translated into RMB at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange
rates had been applied to re-measure these
financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk at
the end of the reporting period. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2017.

(e) Equity price
The Group is exposed to equity price changes
arising from financial assets designated as at FVTPL.

The Group’s mutual funds and unit trusts are
established in Taiwan, which principal assets consist
of local and foreign currencies bank deposits, bonds
and equity securities listed in Taiwan and other
foreign stock markets.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

™  32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. MEREAKEERMETAZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL AFEE)

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e) Equity price (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the
end of the reporting period.

If the prices of the financial assets designated as
at FVTPL had been 10% (2017: 10%) lower/higher,
loss for the year and accumulated loss would
increase by RMB3,585,000 (2017: RMB3,495,000)
for the Group as a result of the changes in fair value
of financial assets designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

The Group has a team headed by the financial
controller performing valuations for the financial
instruments. The team reports directly to the
Executive Directors and the audit committee. A
valuation report with analysis of changes in fair
value measurement is prepared by the team at
each interim and annual reporting date, and is
reviewed and approved by the Executive Directors.
Discussion of the valuation process and results with
the Executive Directors and the audit committee is
held quarterly, to coincide with the reporting dates.

=S ER (&)

BB E T
NTHEBRESNTIREBRERE
HIRMASZ ZEmERERT
BE -

W FERNFEAABE 2
HEEZERB L IN10%
TE—+F:10%) Bl KE
BrFAEERRFTEIEGE
fn A R #3,585,000C (= & —
+ & AR#¥3,495,0000T) ' Utk
THERETE BEATFETARE
HZUMBEEZAFEESHHN
g(o

HMBEEEREEZRFE
it &
AEBAE-—BFHaYBEES
BHEEK - SR BETAETHE
B - ZEREERARATEER
BERZBEE®RSE - ZBEBRE
THRFERSAMGRRMGE
HE - BRAVEFEZH 2
D BEATEFTEH R
o BFRPTEENEKE
EgRARERFRER B
MEEA®REAE -
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. MEEREERMEIAZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Fair value measurements

AFEE)

()

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2018 categorised into

RZF-AE+-A=+-HH

AN

AVEHE

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2017 categorised into
RZB—+F+-A=+-8H

AFEHERER NTEFENER
Fair value at Fair value at
31 December 31 December
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-F-\%& RZT—+&
+ZA=+-H +ZA=+-8
HATE 5B H-E - | HATE £-F FZE £ZE
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE AREBTR ARETR ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETI ARETR
Asset gE
Financial assets designated EEARATFEMA
as at FVTPL BRZUBAE 33,320 33,320 = = 37,098 37,098 = =

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017, there were no transfer between instrument
in Level 1 and Level 2 or transfers into or out of
Level 3.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between
Levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

Fair value of financial instruments carried
at other than fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at
31 December 2018 and 2017.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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o 33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 33 XEMEFXS
TRANSACTIONS
The Group has entered into the following material related REBECINTEZEBREAIRS
party transactions:

(@) EEBEAEMNE
AEBFTEERASHEBRE
TR FARBEEGHOM ES
FIEEIRET e IEE(H
WK FEOFTH BR) « SRIEBAA T ¢

(@) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as
follows:

2018 2017

) AY: —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETR AR¥ETF T

Short-term employee benefits HHEBRT 3,971 5,195
Post-employment benefits ot B8 142 A 45 31
4,016 5,226

B ARBETATETAAR] -

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”.

(b) Remuneration for close family members of (b) FEEBAEBAF 2ME
key management personnel
Remuneration for close family members of key REBEFEEEABRT 2B
management personnel of the Group is as follows: capUNNE
2018 2017
—E-N\E§ ZE—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTR ARBTT
Short-term employee benefits R B ' T 104 260
Post-employment benefits o B8k 7@ 7 - -
104 260
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

33. MATERIAL

RELATED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Other related parties transactions

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

On 1 January 2012, the Company has entered
into the Trademark Licence Agreement (the
“Trademark Agreement”) with Mr. Liu Tien-
Tsai (“Mr. Liu”). Pursuant to the Trademark
Agreement, Mr. Liu has agreed to grant to the
Group on an exclusive basis a licence to use
a number of trademarks and service marks in
connection with the Group’s funeral services
business at a consideration of HK$1,000 per
year.

On 15 March 2013, a renewal deed of
trust (the “Niao Song Deed”) was entered
into between Bau Shan and Ms. Li Pi Hsia
(“Ms. Li"), spouse of Mr. Liu, in relation to
the land property situated in Taiwan at No.
943 in Section Linnei, Niao Song Township,
Kaohsiung County, Taiwan (the “Niao Song
Property”). Under the Niao Song Deed, Bau
Shan agreed that the Niao Song Property,
which is owned by Bau Shan, shall be
registered under the name of and held on
trust by Ms. Li for Bau Shan for a term of
ten years commencing on 15 March 2013.
Ms. Li has agreed that she shall act in the
interest of Bau Shan in relation to the Niao
Song Property during the term of the Niao
Song Deed.

On 25 March 2016, a deed of trust (the
“Neimen Deed”) was entered into between
BLL and Mr. Liu in relation to a land property
situated in Taiwan at No.0300-00001 in
Section Laizikeng, Neimen District, Kaohsiung
County, Taiwan (the “Neimen Property”).
Under the Neimen Deed, BLL agreed that the
Neimen Property, which is owned by BLL,
shall be registered under the name of and
held on trust by Mr. Liu for BLL. Mr. Liu has
agreed that he shall act in the interest of BLL
in relation to the Neimen Property.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &

PARTY 33 FEFEFIRXS(E)

RELATED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Other

related parties transactions

(Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

Mr. Liu signed a tenancy agreement agreeing
the Group to lawfully use the property
situated at unit 1404 on Level 14, Zhongxing
Garden, No. 1 Heping Road, Chongging City,
the PRC (the “Leased Property”) as the staff
dormitory at a monthly rent of RMB4,000
starting from 1 January 2017 and the
monthly rent is determined annually.

Operating lease commitment of the Group
as lessee at 31 December 2018 amounted to
RMB48,000 (2017: RMB48,000) and as set
out in note 34(a).

Guarantee for an amount of RMB34,394,000
(equivalent to US$5,000,000) (2017:
RMB32,567,000 (equivalent to US$5,000,000))
is given by Mr. Liu to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group during the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017.

On 1 April 2016, BLL was granted by Mr.
Liu Ting-Husan, close family member of Mr.
Liu, on an exclusive basis a licence to use a
number of trademarks in connection with the
elderly care and related consultancy services
of BLL at a consideration of HK$1,000 per
year.

(0 BHMEERz2XZ(HE)

(iv)

(vi)

ELECDETHERZE
RERNSEAEEFERAM
R B E BT RS
FREJEE14B1404E 29
*(HEWMEDERETL
BE BAESAARE
4,000 =& —+F —
A—HEMiE mEAME
TREBFEE -

AEERZZE—NF+=
A=+—B{EREBE AN
REHE FHEEARE
48,0007 (ZF — £ F -
A B #48,0007T) 3 10
B 5E34(a) P -

2l %&£ £ g AR B
34,394,0007t (i & B

5,000,000% t)(= & —
+ F: A R #32,567,000
7T (}8E7#5,000,000% 7T))
CREREER  EAE
EE-N\FEER-_FT—L
F+_AZ+—HULEE
BYAREEBRAQRZIR
TEE ZI|M -

RZE—XR"EMA—1H -
BIFEST R A (B AT
F)RATERELBRET
AJRELAE BN E M
M HB ARSI ES
ZETEZR REAEF
1,000 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

33. MATERIAL

RELATED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(o)

(d)

Other related parties transactions (c)
(Continued)
(vii) Guarantee for the Group’s bank loan of
RMB2,892,000 (2017: RMB3,168,000) is
given by Mr. Liu during the year ended

31 December 2018.

(viii) Funeral related consultancy services were
provided by the Group to a company
which Mr. Liu is a member of the key
management personnel, and the income
from the service amounted to RMB526,706
(2017: RMB500,000) for the year ended

31 December 2018.

Amounts due from directors (d)
Particular of the amounts due from directors, which
are included in trade and other receivables, are

disclosed as follows:

EH

(vii)

(viii)

AN

PARTY 33. SEFEEAFIRXS(E)

tEER 2R 5 (&)

HE_Z—N\F+=ZA=
+—HLEFE B4R
A R #2,892,0007T (= &
—+F: AR¥3,168,000
TTIZAEBRITEFIR
IR -

BEMEZRAER AR
SER#ET B EE
AEEXTBEBABMNAFR
HE-_Z—)/\F+=-A=
+—BIFE - ZREA
B A #E A R%526,706
T(ZE—+EF  ARE
500,0007T) °

FEWESHE
UM ESFHEGIAES K EHA
R B EN T

2018 2017
—®-A\&E Tt
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFRL  ARMTR

Mr. Kim Eun Back SEBLE
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai 20N B 5 &

Maximum amount outstanding during the year is

FARRABESRENFBL

as follows: T
2018 2017
—B-N\E —ET—+F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREFR AREBFT
Mr. Kim Eun Back S EELE - 20
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai BRI R N 34,643

The amounts are unsecured, interest free and

repayable on demand.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZEZ %

PARTY 33 FEFEFIRXS(E)

RELATED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(e)

(f)

—NF+ZA=+—BHLFE

Amounts due from/(to) other related e EW (EMEMEBEESAS
parties MIE
Particular of amounts due from/(to) other related FEUL (FE) Efth BB 3 5 3k 1B
parties, which are included in trade and other (GTAES N HMEKZIESLKE
receivables or in trade and other payables are SRHEMEMNSE)NEERE
disclosed as follows: m
2018 2017
—¥-0\% —T—+F
RMB'000 RMB'000
Relationship 2R ARETR ARBFT
Ms. Chang Hui- RZBZE  Key management FZE
Lan personnel 130 100
Mr. Liu Ting- BIpEE e Close family FTEEBABRH
Hsuan member of key
management
personnel 1 (104)
Maximum amount outstanding during the year is FAGKBAEBEESENFEBEL
as follows: ™
2018 2017
—E-N\E —+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT
Ms. Chang Hui-Lan REHZ T 1,500 273
Mr. Liu Ting-Hsuan BlEsF k& 100 185
The amounts are unsecured, interest free and CHAEEME EEUREAR
repayable on demand. EEEE-
Amount due to a director (f) EN—BESNE

Particular of amount due to a director, which is
included in trade and other payables are disclosed
as follows:

B —BEEXK
H A & 3R IE) 0 55 18
T

BGAES
B m

2018 2017

—E—-N\E —+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARET T

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai 2N A& 723 1,452
TEEGEEERAT —E-NEER

““

')/
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33. MATERIAL

RELATED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(9)

Amount due to ultimate holding company
Particular of amount due to the ultimate holding
company, which is included in trade and other

(9)

W,

PARTY 33. SEFEEAFIRXS(E)

BNEKEZERARFIREE

FE AT Bx A8 42 1

R B 5K IE (5

1FE 5 K H b BB A FRE) K

payables is disclosed as follows: BT
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—LF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTF T
Hong Kong Gaogi Biological EEREEMRE
Technology Company Limited BRAA 4,344 =

The amount is unsecured, interest free and

repayable on demand.

34. OPERATING LEASES

(a)

The Group as lessee

At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases are payable as follows:

TEAEER BEUNRAR

34, BEHE

AEBEEREHEA

RZE—-—NFE+=ZA=+—8H "
1R ¥ T P] BH 4K 2 1 & 2B &
E2ARREBENRAE Y

(a)

FHBERMT

)

2018 2017

—F-N\E —ET—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTFT

Within 1 year —F R 8,627 8,351
After 1 year but within 5 years —FEEREFRA 32,594 32,012
After 5 years hE1% 19,650 27,344
60,871 67,707

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for certain of its sales offices and
hire of funeral parlours and funeral service centres.
Leases are negotiated for terms of 1 to 20 years
(2017: 1 to 20 years) and certain leases include
contingent rentals which are based on certain
percentage of sales and the PRC consumer price
index respectively.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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(b) The Group as lessor
At 31 December 2018, the Group had contracted
with tenants in respect of part of its office and
investment property for the following future

34. EEHE (&)

(b) AEEELZHAAKN
R=ZF-NF+=ZA=+—8H"
AEERERBOIBAERKRE
MEMBEPATHZRERKIE

minimum lease payments: HENRBOT:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR ARKET T
Within 1 year —F R 379 369
After 1 year but within 5 years —FEEEFA 233 227
612 596

Operating lease receivables represent rentals
receivable by the Group for certain of its office
premises and investment property. Leases are
negotiated for terms of 1 to 2 years (2017: 1 to 2
years). None of the lease includes contingent rentals.
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. EFRKiE

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2018
not provided for in the financial statements are as follows:

BlREEHEREDAEAEH
METHMAGRIEEMENRE
WeHe  FHBALERTAIE
2E(ZE—EF 1E29) - I
EANBRESABS -

R BHREARBBZNR_Z—/\F
T-A=+—HRKRBEITZEARKE

LUl
2018 2017
—E-N\E§ —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBF T
Capital expenditure contracted but not % #){E R EEE 2 B
provided for: Fx:

- Property, plant and equipment -ME BEREZE 23 23

- Investment in a joint venture -R—EEERLEL
wE 6,500 6,500
6,523 6,523

. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

36. IFHE

As at 31 December 2018, bank borrowings of the
Group were secured by land and buildings with an
aggregate carrying amount of RMB19,455,000 (2017:
RMB18,877,000).

I o

TELETEEERLAR —E-N\FFER

R-E—N\F+-_A=+—8 &%
EETEEREMERAEmAE
B ARM19,455 000 (ZE—+F:
AFR#£18,877,00070) 2 £ i RIEF1E
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37. SUBSIDIARIES

(@

200 Sino-Life Group Limited

37.

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries, which are
private companies or, if established/incorporated
outside Hong Kong, have substantially the same
characteristic as a Hong Kong private company, as
at 31 December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment

Issued and fully
paid-up share or
registered capital

MEBAT

\

(@ NRIEZE—NER-_ZT—+tF+—
B=+—8  ARaZHERR

(DA BB (R R F B HE I

A3z FEMR L) B R EE B L
ARRRBMERZEFE) ZF1B

B

Attributable
equity interest

Principal activities/place of
operation

gL EERTRARRG
HEASEH RITREREH gEMER FE 1 B TEER/BELY
2018 2018 2017
ZB-0\F Z¥-\E “T-LF
Directly held
EERE
Bau Shan* Taiwan Ordinary 100% 100%  Provision of funeral services, sale
29 December 1998 NTD70,452,000 of funeral services deeds and
investment holding/Taiwan
B+ =) Ef RUEBERY  HERERE
“AANEFZAZTAR HAET0,452,0007 INRREER /A8
Full Spread (China) Limited** Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding/Hong Kong
5 October 2007
B (PB)ERAR BB BT REBRR/BE
“ZZ+ETAER
Allied Smart Development Limited**  Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding/Hong Kong
1 April 2010
RBEBRARDA B 18T REBR/BE
—Z-Z£MA-A
Sino-Life (Hong Kong) Limited** Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of funeral services and
9 August 2010 sale of funeral services deeds/
Hong Kong
mE G (FR)BRAF B 18T RUEEGERBREERERS
—Z-Z£\ANE 2N/ 8%
Dayrise Enterprises Limited** BVI Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding/BVI
13 September 2010 Us$1
ARGERRAR RBERXES 3] REBRR/LBRLHS
—E-ZERATER B3
Jing Run Limited** BVI Ordinary 55% 55%  Inactive/BVI
12 February 2010 US$1,000,000
REBRAF EERLES 3l TER/ABREES
—Z-ZF-AfzH 1,000,000% 7
Timeless Surplus (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive/Hong Kong
Limited** 17 April 2012
BB BT TER/EE
ZZ-Z5MAt+EA
Ban Shan Consulting Limited** Samoa Ordinary 100% 100%  Inactive/Taiwan
14 November 2013 Us$t
BED gl TER/ B
“Z-=Ft+-A1+mA E

Annual Report 2018
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37. B 23 (&)

37. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(@

(Continued) (a) (&)
Place and date Issued and fully
of incorporation/ paid-up share or Attributable Principal activities/place of
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital equity interest operation
BRRL,/ ESARMERY
HEAS&HE RIBERBH HEMEF FE 15 B 1 TEEH/BERY
2018 2018 2017
ZB-\E 8-\ “E-F
Indirectly held
HEss
Chongging Xibao* The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Provision of funeral services and
19 March 2007 Us$8,000,000 investment holding/The PRC
BEREHE" HE BaliE-w REERBERRELR/HE
ZZZLE=ATNE 8,000,000% 7.
Chongging Xizhou** The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Provision of funeral services/The
25 October 2006 RMB300,000 PRC
BEEHA g FMERARE RUBERE/HE
ZEERETAZTRA 300,0007T
Sino-Life Eternities Limited** BVI Ordinary ~ 78.75% 78.75%  Investment holding/BVI
15 April 2010 US$10,000 )
HEFERERDA KERLES gl REBR/RBERLES
“E-ZFEMA+EA 10,000% 7T
Sino-Life Eternities Services Limited**  Hong Kong HK$1  78.75% 78.75%  Not yet commenced business/
20 April 2010 Hong Kong
FEHEGRBARAR B BT HWAEE/BE
“E-TFMAZTH
Jinhao Enterprises Limited** BVI Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding/BVI
N 13 September 2010 Us$1
ERORARRA RBRXHS L REER/RBRAES
“T-TEAATEA 1E5R
Sino-Departures Limited** Hong Kong HK$5 100% 100%  Not yet commenced business/
5 December 2011 Hong Kong
PERTERRAA BE SETT MRRE/BE
“E-——%+-AEH
Bao Son Life** Vietnam Paid up capital 80% 80% Investment holding/Vietnam
20 June 2012 US$200,000 ) )
il = BRBA RERR/HBH
ZE-Z§RAZtH 200,000% 7T
HLV Duc Hoa** (note (b)) Vietnam Paid up capital = - Sale of burial plots and provision
22 June 2012 VND39,750,000,000 of cemetery maintenance
services/Vietnam
HLV Duc Hoa** (Mff £ (b)) MR BrRABEE HERWRREERBERE/
“E-"FXA-TCH 39,750,000,0007C ]
BLL** Taiwan Ordinary 100% 100%  Provision of elderly care and
12 October 2015 NTD15,000,000 related consultancy services/
Taiwan
REM =y . TR RUEZREBZARE A8
—E2-EFtA+ZA #1 & %15,000,0007T
Chongging Shouen Elderly Care The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Not yet commenced business/The
Services Limited** 27 September 2016 RMB1,000,000 PRC
BEERBRERBARDA g o EfER UEGEES VA
ZE-R"EAAZTER A& %1,000,0007T
Chongging Yongxinshuo Enterprises The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Not yet commenced business/The
Management Consultancy 17 January 2016 RMB1,000,000 PRC
Limited**
EEAMPCXEREARRAR~ HE BaliE-w. NRREES,/ HE
ZE-RE-ATtH AR ¥1,000,0007C
FREHEAENR R (BR)BERDA*  The PRC Registered capital 100% —  Research and testing
29 November 2018 RMB10,000,\000 development/The PRC
il O amER FENABRRE /S
ZE-\Ft-AZThE  AEH10,000,0007
E A wholly-foreign-owned enterprise &3 INEBE

*x A limited liability company

»  FREMFERQT

TEETEREERAA

—E-N\EER

ﬁ,)/
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37. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. MBAT(E)

AEE I EFFBHL Duc Hoa
ZAEMETEEESZ - R 1R
7K 8= B 95 DA B ST B2 4 B HLY
Duc HoaZz &R 215Kk « A%
[ Y BR 4 3 2 3R RE A & B HLY
Duc Hoa% %2 B E W & F
BE URBERRNTEHZS
Bl ¥k 5 & A% 2 Z HLV Duc Hoa
ES

(b)  The Group does not hold any ownership interests (b)
in the entity, HLV Duc Hoa. However, based
on the terms of the contract under which HLV
- Duc Hoa was established and controlled by the
Group, the Group receives substantially all of the
variable returns related to the involvement in HLV
Duc Hoa's operations and net assets and has the
ability to direct HLV Duc Hoa's activities that most
significantly affect those returns.

TR AKEEH B LR (F
BEXRFEBREDR)NER - T
XE2HRZMBEERBERERE
TEMARREHHEAZ R -

(0 The following tables list out the information of (c)
the Group’s subsidiaries which has material non-
controlling interest (NCI). The summarised financial
information presented below represents the
amounts before any inter-company elimination.

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Bao Son Life and its subsidiary, B4 REMBAS
HLV Duc Hoa HLV Duc Hoa
NCI percentage FEREZAED L 20% 20% K
Current assets MENE E 13,464 15,063 ‘)/
Non-current assets EMBEE 5,292 -
Current liabilities nEEE (49,597) (43,810)
Non-current liabilities FEmEBEE (197) (149)
Net liabilities BEFE (31,038) (28,896)
Carrying amount of NCI EERERKRAEE (6,200) (5,779)
Revenue EEE 335 462
Loss for the year KEEEE (842) (7,255)
Total comprehensive loss ZHEBERRE (3,094) (5,652)
Loss attributable to NCI RS G 2 B8R (168) (1,451)
Total comprehensive loss RS EL 2
attributable to NCI THEBBAER (618) (1,130)
Net cash (outflows)/inflows from RETFHRS CRd)
operating activities A E R 7,286 (1,678)
Net cash outflows from investing WEZESHRE ML FE
activities (5,292) =

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders
of the Company dated 24 August 2009, a share option
scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) was approved and
adopted. The major terms of the Share Option Scheme
are summarised as follows:

(@) The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to enable the Company to grant options to
eligible participants who have contributed or may
contribute to the Group as incentive or rewards for
their contributions to the Group.

(b) The eligible participants include (i) any employee or
proposed employee of the Company and/or any of
its subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in
which the Group holds an equity interest, including
any executive directors and any non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company, any of such subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity; and (i) any consultants,
advisers, agents, partners or joint-venture partners
of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

(c) The exercise price of a share option under the Share
Option Scheme will not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the offer date of the
particular option, which must be a business day; (ii)
the average of the closing prices of the shares as
shown in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date of that particular option;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share on the offer
date of the particular option.

..s"’ 38. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 38. %g@%ﬁﬂﬁﬁh%ﬁﬁz

REARBDAHAS-_ZTEZTNAFNAC
TOAMBRRE@RZESR  CHER
RaEERERT 8 (TRERERT 8 )) - 1B
RSB T RGEFBMANT

(a) BEEGFEZBENERART
A $f 7< 5% [ 2 ¢ o 3k AT BE 1R i
BERMEERSEERIBR
B ERREFHAKEELE
BREO S Bh sk 22 ) -

(b) AEBR2EERE()ARANR,
s HE MK B AR sk ANEEF
ERAEENEMNERE(RE
ERDNIREENEETREE
BEARE  EEMAKMBAR
HEMEEEBNEAATE
EREMIERTES(BREBEL
FERTES)  R(iNAREI RS
o L n] ffY BB A &) 89 1 7] 35 74
A BB RE-ABAKS
B

() HWREFBIETERENITE
BEITgIRTIEEE - OR
¢ %ﬁ%HQ%E’]EZ’JEHﬁ(JZ\@H

BERBRORBEIMEARE
%iﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬂﬁ’ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂ’]%mﬁ?
(NEEzFTERENEOAR
HA B0 B 2 B R D R B S R
BAHKE %LiﬁEKM$i@H&ﬁ
B RO RITTEREZ
HEEBMEE -
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38. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 38. U BRHEEZSERMKhBER 2
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the shares in issue (“General Scheme Limit").

The total number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme is 74,250,000
representing 10% of the issued shares of the
Company as at the year end date.

Unless approved by the Company’s shareholders,
the total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to any
participants in any twelve-month period must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue at the date of the
grant of the options.

An offer shall be made to eligible participants in
writing and shall remain open for acceptance by the
eligible participants concerned for a period of 30
days from the date upon which it is made provided
that no such offer shall be open for acceptance
after the 10th anniversary of the adoption date
of the Share Option Scheme or the termination
of the scheme. An offer shall be deemed to have
been accepted by the eligible participant concerned
in respect of all shares which are offered to such
participant when the duplicate letter comprising
acceptance of the offer duly signed by the eligible
participant, together with a non-refundable
remittance in favour of the Company of HK$10
by way of consideration for the grant thereof is
received by the Company, within such time as may
be specified in the offer.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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38. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 38. UL ERBEBEHE 2
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(9)

(h)

For the options granted in 2010, they are
exercisable starting half year from the grant date.
The exercisable period should be determined by the
board of directors upon grant of the share option
but in any event should not exceed 10 years from
the date of grant of the share option.

For the options granted in 2012, they are
exercisable starting one year from the grant date.
The exercisable period should be determined by the
board of directors upon grant of the share option
but in any event should not exceed 5 years from
the date of grant of the share option.

An option shall be exercisable in whole or in part
in the circumstances by giving notice in writing to
the Company stating that the option is thereby
exercised and the number of shares in respect of
which it is so exercised. Each such notice must be
accompanied by a non-refundable remittance for
the full amount of the subscription price for shares
in respect of which the notice is given.

X5 (8)

(9) ARZZE—ZEFREZERE
imeE ﬁ ER R BEI AT
FRRFMBAITE - A FIT{EHAHE

(h)

EzHEse N EEEREY
BET HERNMTEEG
BHEREBELI10E -

Wﬁfffii&ﬁ2$%%

CRERR L BHEE —
ié%%h@°7%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
EZHEFERNRHEREZ

RET HEREVFALSES
RHEBRERMERSF -

ERABARAARRZELER
BAHKBERT2AHEITE
RERHE - s BAMATABERE

BB ITERITEERER Y
EHBROER - SE@BIY
ERWAIREER €A
FEHBANTIMTROBER
MREE -
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38. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 38. E&H&*&%E&ﬁ%%ﬁﬁz
XK

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 5 (48)
(i) The terms and conditions of the options granted (i) EBEHBRE GG
are as follows: ™
Number of
shares issuable
under options Contractual life of
granted Life of period options
BRHZERE
TETRBEE FHEY BRESHEY

Options granted in 2010:
RIE-ZFERHZBRE:

Options granted to directors:

BYE=BRE:
-on 11 February 2010 6,420,000 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 10 years
-RZE-ZF_A+-H “Z-ZH5N\R+—-BEZZ-TF-A+—H 105
Options granted to employees:
BYEECBRE:
-on 11 February 2010 11,680,000 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 10 years
-RZE-ZF_A+—-H —T-TFN\A+-HEZZ-TF-At+-H 105
Options granted to consultants:
RYBHEZBERE:
-on 11 February 2010 41,900,000 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 10 years
-RZZ-ZFE_A+-H 22 \A+-BZ2-ZZ-ZF_A+-H 106
Total share options 60,000,000

BRI Y Ny
3

Options granted in 2012:
RIZE-——ERHZBRE:

Options granted to directors:

BYEEZBRE:
- on 16 January 2012 2,000,000 16 January 2013 to 15 January 2017 5 years
-RZE-ZF-A+AXA ZE-=Ff-A+~BEZZ—+tF-At+HH 5%
Options granted to employees:
KTEEBZERE:
- on 16 January 2012 14,920,000 16 January 2013 to 15 January 2017 5 years
-RZE—ZF—-A+H —E-=Zf—-A+ARE-Z-tF-At+RA 56
Total share options 16,920,000
BRELH
The method of settlement for the options granted BEcEREDERAERGE
are by equity. The closing price of the Company’s FR e ARRARDREE=F
shares immediately before 11 February 2010 —ZEF-_A+—HBRZZE—=F
and 16 January 2012, the dates on which the —A+AABAEREERLZ
options were granted, were HK$1.16 and HK$0.24 HED R 2 WM E S Al R1.1678
respectively. JC K 0.247 7T ©

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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o™ 38 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 38 LIBHEZEHBMHAEE®RZ
TRANSACTIONS (Continued) X5 (8)
(j)  The particulars of outstanding options at the end (j) RmEBRRZERITEERE
of the reporting period as follows: HEBEWT
2018 2017
—E-0\E ZE—tEF
Number of Number of
Weighted shares issuable Weighted ~ shares issuable
average  under options average  under options
exercise price granted exercise price granted
MEFYH BRHZERE MEFH L BRE
TEE TETROGBE 1B TEITRHHA
Outstanding at the beginning & #) i K17 £ HK$1.18 49,928,000 HK$1.10 57,808,000
of the year 118 T 110% 7T
Lapsed during the year FRELH HK$1.18 (1,696,000) HK$0.62 (7,880,000)
1.18% T 06287
Outstanding at the end ERHRTR HK$1.18 48,232,000 HK$1.18 49,928,000
of the year 1187 T 118% T
Exercisable at the end FRUTIHR HK$1.18 48,232,000 HK$1.18 49,928,000
of the year 118 T 118% T

TELETEEERLAR —E-N\FFER

““

')/

207



< 1)

208

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R I

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

38. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 38.

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(j)  (Continued)

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Number of shares

UER#ESEROBERZ
X5 (&)

(G &

R R 2 4R B W R 4 R
7165 B8 P E IR 4 T

issuable under Exercise
31 December 2018 options granted Vesting period Exercisable period price
2354 P4: 144
—§-\f+-R=+-H TRTRHYE BEH s fiiE®
Options granted to employees:
BETEEzRRE:
- On 11 February 2010 6,332,000 11 February 2010 to 10 August 2010 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 HK$1.18
-RZE-ZF-A+-H “Z-ZF-A+-AE-Z-SENAtA ZZ-ZENA+-HE-Z-ZF-At+-H 11878 T
Options granted to consultants:
BEYBEzBRE:
- On 11 February 2010 41,900,000 11 February 2010 to 10 August 2010 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 HK$1.18
-RZE-Z4-A+-H ZE-ZF-A+-BEZ-ZEA\ATE ZE-ZE\BT-HEZZZEF-AT-H  wligER
Total share options outstanding 48,232,000
WAITREERELH
Number of shares
issuable under Exercise
31 December 2017 options granted Vesting period Exercisable period price
2354 P4: 144
~§-t#t+-A=t+-H TETRHYE BEY T8 fiiE®
Options granted to employees:
RYEEZBRE:
- on 11 February 2010 8,028,000 11 February 2010 to 10 August 2010 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 HK$1.18
-RZE-ZF-A+-H “Z-ZF-A+-AE-Z-SENAtA ZE-ZENA+-HE-Z-ZF-At+-H 118% T
Options granted to consultants:
RYBRBRE
- on 11 February 2010 41,900,000 11 February 2010 to 10 August 2010 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 HK$1.18
-RZF-24-A+-H —“Z3-ZF-f+-AE-Z-SEN\AtA Z—Z-ZENA+-HE-Z-ZF-At+-H 1188 T

Total share options outstanding

HATRERELH

49,928,000

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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38. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 38. UL ERBEBEHE 2
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(Continued)

The share options outstanding at 31 December
2018 had exercise price of HK$1.18 (2017: HK$1.18)
and a weighted average remaining contractual life
of 1.1 years (2017: 2.1 years).

The options granted on 11 February 2010
expire ten years from the date of grant. As at
31 December 2018, 29,072,000 of 48,232,000
options (2017: 428,000 of 49,928,000 options)
were exercisable in the same year of the date
of grant with 50% each of the options granted
exercisable at six months and at the end of the
year from the date of grant and 19,160,000
of 48,232,000 options (2017: 49,500,000 of
49,928,000 options) are exercisable over five years
from the date of grant, with 20% each of the
options granted exercisable at six months, and first
calendar date of following four years from the date
of grant.

The options granted on 16 January 2012 expire 5
years from the date of grant. As at 31 December
2017 and 2018, all options granted on 16 January
2012 were expired and no option was outstanding.

X5 (&)

0

(&)

RZBE—N\F+-—A=+—A0&
KRITEZEREZITEER1I8
BIL(ZE—+F 1188 L)
MEFHFR B ELFRABINFE
ZE—EF215) -

mWER=—_TE—ZTF_A+—H
BRHzEBRESRLBH+F
BEm R-ZE—N\F+=A
=+ — B8 - 48,232,000 & A%
#h 229,072,000 (ZF—+
F 1 49,928,00017 8 A% #& & 2
428,00017) A XX H B HA 2 @
FiE - ARE BB ANE
ARRFRAZFITHEO0%ZE
B R HE - 48,232,00010 BB
fi% # 71 219,160,0001) (= & —
+ £ : 49,928,000 BEAZ#EF 2
49,500,00017) A] A 1% tH B B #8
ARFEOFE BREABHE
FFNEARRBEERNF EEE
HA[ & 1T{520% 2 B % H B
#E o

RZB-—C—F—-A+RAREHN
BRERKLBEHRATFRER -
RZBE—+tFRZT-NF+=
A=+—H RZF—=F—A
TARERENFMEBRESE
i B 1 R 1T BB AR -

TELETEEERLAR —E-N\FFER

““

')/

209



< 17

210

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R I

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

W,

38. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 38. UIRHELERMBEEZ
X5(E)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(k) Fair value of

assumptions

(i) Granted to director and employees
The fair value of services received in return
for share options granted is measured by
reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimate of the fair value of
the share options granted is measured based
on the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The
contractual life of the share option is used as
an input into this model.

share options and

(k)

BREZAFERRBRR

(i)

7N £5 [ LA o B s T 2
BZRE2 R TFESEZE
BBEREZATEFE -
ERBRE G AFE
IR EEEAG
E-BREZEHNFHRS
AEAZ-HBAZH -

)

2012
—E——F

Fair value of share options RETERMEREZATE HK$0.04
at measurement date 0.04% 7T

Share price iz & HK$0.24

0.24/8 7T

Exercise price TR (E HK$0.60

0.607# 7T

Expected volatility (expressed as weighted T8 HA)& 08 (A — AR HigE T 50.23%
average volatility used in the modelling BERNAKBOMETS
under Binomial Option Pricing Model)

Option life (expressed as weighted average [ % % 4F Hi (JA — 18 =X Hi 4% 5 years
life used in the modelling under the TE {8 18 = A R A A9 0 4 54
Binomial Option Pricing Model) HEH)

Expected dividends TEHI R B =

Risk-free interest rate (based on Exchange % & [ Fl = 0.85%

Fund Notes)

The expected volatility is based on the
historic volatility (calculated based on the
weighted average remaining life of the share
options), adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on
historical dividends. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the
fair value estimate.
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38. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 38. UL ERBEBEHE 2
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

value of share options and

assumptions (Continued)

(i)

Granted to consultants

The fair value for share options granted is
measured using the market-based approach,
by reference to the discounted cash flows
to estimate the fair value of the professional
fees that should have been paid. The value
was developed by discounting future cash
flows from the services to be provided by
the consultants, taking into account the
uniqueness of the services provided by the
consultants, the historical monthly payments
to similar services provided by the consultants
and the service period, along with other out
of pocket expenses.

Up to 31 December 2017 and 2018,
41,900,000 share options under the Share
Option Scheme are granted by the Company
to the consultants of the Group which
entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for an
aggregate of 41,900,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each in the capital of the Company
with an exercise price of HK$1.18 per share
during the exercisable period from 11 August
2010 to 11 February 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE
39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

39. AR MK

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
! Note RMB’000 RMB’000
A W ARETFR ARMT 5T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBHEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHERARHIKE 72,048 72,048
Intangible assets mEEE 2 2
72,050 72,050
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Other receivables H b fE UK BR X 49,641 45,345
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFEY 269 368
49,910 45,713
CURRENT LIABILITIES RE&aE
Other payables H At FE A B 3K 28,605 | | 23,239
(28,605) (23,239)
NET ASSETS FEE 93,355 94,524
EQUITY B
Share capital [N 69,218 69,218
Reserves b 1% 30 24,137 25,306
TOTAL EQUITY IS 93,355 94,524

< 17

212 Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018




-

—

Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt % g 2% BT 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

40. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 40. &5t ¥ 87 & {45t
ESTIMATES

(@) Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group’s accounting policies

(i)

(i)

Consolidation of an entity in which
the Group does not hold any equity
interests

The Group does not hold any ownership
interests in the entity, HLV Duc Hoa. However,
based on the terms of the contract under
which HLV Duc Hoa was established and
controlled by the Group, the Group receives
substantially all of the variable returns
related to involvement in HLV Duc Hoa’'s
operations and net assets and has the ability
to direct HLV Duc Hoa's activities that most
significantly affect those returns. The directors
of the Company considered that the Group
has maintained de facto control in HLV Duc
Hoa and the Group continues to report it as
a subsidiary.

Revenue recognition for sale of burial
plots under instalment plans

The Group enters into contracts with its
customers in Vietnam for sales of burial
plots under which customers are allowed to
settle the contract amount by interest-free
instalments.

The Group recognises revenue from the sale
of burial plots when risks and rewards of
ownership of burial plots transferred, i.e. the
contract is signed by the customers, the burial
plots are delivered, and collectability of the
contract sum is reasonably assured. Before
a significant amount of the contract sum
has been collected and the burial plots are
delivered, the Group does not recognise it as
revenue. At this stage, the Group records all
payments received as “receipts in advance”.
When significant amount of the contract sum
has been collected and the burial plots are
delivered, the Group records the full contract
sum as revenue and any unsettled contract
sum is recognised as receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE
40. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 40. 513 B & {451 (&)

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(@) Critical accounting judgements in

() ERAKEENHRRZERX

applying the Group’s accounting policies 2 5T B (&)
(Continued)
(i) Revenue recognition for sale of (i) FERIKE 7D BT 5

burial plots under instalment plans
(Continued)

The directors exercise significant judgement
in evaluation whether revenue recognition
criteria are met. In their evaluation, the
possibility of terminating such transactions
due to non-payment by customers, are taken
into account after considering the local
industry practice. The directors concluded
that when 20% of the total contract sums
in relation to sales of burial plots is received
and the burial plots were delivered, the
collectability of the remaining contract sum
is reasonably assured, sales is recognised to
profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the amounts of revenue recognised from the
sale of burial plots amounted to RMB242,000
(2017: RMB334,000).

As at 31 December 2018, the receipts in
advance in relation to sale of burial plots before
sales are recognised as revenue amounted to
RMB2,161,000 (2017: RMB2,128,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

40. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 40. st H B R G5 (8)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

(i)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(including property, plant and
equipment, prepaid lease payments,
intangible assets, goodwill, deposits
ad prepayments)

The Group assesses whether there are
any indicators of impairment for all non-
financial assets at the end of each reporting
period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of
an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an
arm'’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in
use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows
from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

(b)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

W,

40. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 40. it H B R G5 (48)

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) EFFTHAAEEZEZEEZRIR
(Continued) (&)
(ii)  Provision of ECL for trade and other (i) B ZEWIE AL E

receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate
ECL for the trade receivables. The provision
rates are based on past experience as
groupings of various debtors that have similar
loss patterns. The provision matrix is based on
the Group's historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information
that is reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered.
In addition, trade receivables with significant
balances and credit impaired are assessed for
ECL individually.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

40. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 40.
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
(iii) Net realisable value of inventories

and development and formation costs
of burial plots

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less estimated cost of completion
and estimated cost to make the sale. These
estimates are based on the current market
conditions and the historical experience of
selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes
in customer preferences and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management reassesses these estimates at
the end of each reporting period.

The Group writes down development and
formation costs of graves to net realisable
value based on assessment of the realisability
of the development and formation costs of
burial plots which takes into account costs
to completion based on management’s
experience and net sales value based on
prevailing market conditions. If there is an
increase in cost to completion or a decrease
in net sales value, the net realisable value will
decrease which may result in writing down
development and formation costs of burial
plots to net realisable value. Write-downs
are recorded where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be realised. The identification of write-
downs requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, the carrying value
of development and formation costs of burial
plots is adjusted in the period in which such
estimate is changed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE

40. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 40. it H B R G5 (48)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(b) HFTHEPERZEEZRR

(Continued) (&)

(iv) Depreciation and amortisation (iv) WER#HE
The management reviews the estimated ERETHEMNEENG
useful lives of the assets regularly in order to A AFRLCAEFE
determine the amount of depreciation and e REHASL -
amortisation charge for the year.
This estimate is based on the historical ZAGET T E RN M E RINEE
experience of the actual useful lives of assets HENEENERAER
of similar nature and functions and taking into FHRRATER L=
account anticipated technological changes. ETEETE R E o 4B
The depreciation and amortisation expenses FMHETHIRERNE -
for future periods are adjusted if there are BI| 2R 2R BA P &0 9 B8 I 8
significant changes from previous estimates. M EERE -

(v) Income tax ) FriE#
The subsidiaries of the Company are subject ZAN/NE RO NN PR E )
to income taxes in Hong Kong, the PRC, BEHE - BEREE
Vietnam and Taiwan. Significant judgement FRBH o FORE FTIS i 8
is required in determining the provision for ERAEEDEARHE - B
income taxes. There are many transactions BEXEKBES  FEF
for which the ultimate tax determination % R IEREFHENTE
is uncertain during the ordinary course of EHEENRS - MxEFE
business. Where the final tax outcome of HHRERBERER
these matters is different from the amounts ABRMNESEIE - A=
that were initially recorded, such differences HEETEBELHZR T
will impact the current tax and deferred tax 745 HA AT A9 B EA AR 18 N2 AiE
provisions in the financial period in which FHRIEEE -
such determination is made.

(vi) Provision on funeral services deeds (vi) 7B 12 IR R 4.2 1% 54

The Group determines the pricing of the
funeral services deeds by adding a margin
to the estimated cost of delivering funeral
services in future, after taking into account
of major factors including the timing of the
instruction of the Deed Holders.
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40. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 40. st H B R G5 (8)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Provision on funeral services deeds
(Continued)

This estimate is based on the sub-contracting
fee payable to the sub-contractor for each
funeral service deed performed, the current
market conditions and the price of deeds from
sub-contractors. Management reassesses
these estimates at the end of each reporting
period to estimate if the receipts in advance
for funeral service deeds can cover the
estimated future costs of delivering funeral
services and determine the need of making
a provision in the consolidated financial
statements.

Fair value measurements and
valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. The
directors of the Company have to determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for fair value measurements. In
estimating the fair value of an asset, the
Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available and appropriate valuation
technique. Where market-observable data
are not available, the Group may adopt
unobservable inputs based on their best
estimate. Management may also engages
third party qualified valuers to perform the
Management work closely with
the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
to the model. The Group uses established the
appropriate valuation techniques that include
inputs that are not based on observable
market data to estimate the fair value of
certain assets. Note 14 and 16 provide
detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used
in the determination of the fair value of
various assets.

valuation.

(b) HEFTHBERZEZRIR

(&
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(vii)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ - —N\F+_HA=+—HILFE
41. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 41. RBEZE-F—-N\E+=-A=

L
Bt

NEW STANDARDS AND +—HLEFESHEMBEX
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET AW 2iER] « HERARRE
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ZURERE
DECEMBER 2018
_‘/
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but ¥ ERGRENCIE = o i ) S E <3 3
not yet effective RIEBIMBREER
The Group has not early applied the following new and AEBEVTERERFEATICHEME
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are MAREB T REIERTB BT
not yet effective: WwEER]:
HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business? BEEUBHRE HIEBHIHOEER?
AR FE35%
HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with BEXEMBRE BEABMHECRE
Negative Compensation’ AR5 BEIEMN
HKFRS 16 Leases' EEMBRE HE
A BN B 1658
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? BEAVBHRE REeR?
R 21757
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income HEE BBV MEREENT
Tax Treatments' WEREZ e M
8g) — 2
T 2358
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of EAVKSHE KEERHBE
and HKAS 28 Assets between an AR 1058 NAREE D
Investor and its Associate rEEGF EZHWEE L
or Joint Venture* AERI| 52858 HEIEAE ,/
(37 ) = -d
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Materials® BEEGIHELN HIEXIHER®
and HKAS 8 FIHRRE B
EEERIES
CACCEHIRY)
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, EXRSEER FESN - HBR
Curtailment or F195 (18 5] R EEE
Settlement! )
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in BEXEGEL REEQRSEE
Associates and Joint EprbiACCH EREHRD
Ventures' ) R
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements BEEUHRE BEUBREE
to HKFRSs 2015-2017 ZR (BT AIR_ZT—HF
Cycle! ) ET—LFA
HrFERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - —N\F+_A=+—HILFE

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019.

c Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2020.
E Effective for business combinations and assets acquisitions

for which the acquisition date is on or after the first
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021.
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date

to be determined.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of all other new and amendments to
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and
leaseback transactions to be determined based on the
requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of
the relevant asset should be accounted as a sale.

HKFRS 16 also includes requirements relating to subleases
and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
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41. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted
for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of
lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification
of cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront
prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows in relation
to leasehold lands for owned use and those classified
as investment properties while other operating lease
payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to
lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an
interest portion which will be presented as financing and
financing/operating cash flows respectively by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an
asset and a related finance lease liability for finance lease
arrangement and prepaid lease payments for leasehold
lands where the Group is a lessee. The application of
HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification
of these assets depending on whether the Group presents
right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item
at which the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to
require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 16.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments as lessee and lessor of
RMB60,871,000 and RMB612,000 respectively. Based on
the definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such
deposits are not payments relating to the right to use
the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts
of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would be
considered as additional lease payments and included in
the carrying amount of right of-use assets.

The application of new requirements may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above. The Group intends to elect the practical
expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease and not apply this standard to contracts
that were not previously identified as containing a lease
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the
Group will not reassess whether the contracts are, or
contain a lease which already existed prior to the date of
initial application. Furthermore, the Group intends to elect
the modified retrospective approach for the application
of HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative
effect of initial application to opening retained profits
without restating comparative information.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 14 December 2018, the Company entered into
the Sale and Purchase Agreement with an individual
(“Vendor”), pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to sell the 40% equity interest of Bau
Shan Life Science Technology Co., Ltd and its subsidiaries,
a company incorporated in Taiwan and a directly wholly
owned subsidiary, the sale shares at the consideration of
NTD62,700,000 (approximately RMB13,996,000). Upon
Completion, the Company’s interests in the shares of
the Target Company (which will be a non—wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company) will be reduced to 60%, and
its financial results will continue to be consolidated into
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Five Year Financial Summary

IFMBENBE

A summary of results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out as follows:

Results

RAEEOHmERIET

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-RA=+-HLEE

AEBRBEREMBRFRE2EE  BE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
8-\ —T—+tF C—ZE-RF —ZT-hHF ZT-QNF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARB®Tn AREFT AREFTT ARETR
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&51) (E3) (231)
Revenue BEE 62,667 60,709 57,342 61,633 69,648
Gross profit EH 27,889 30,598 22,193 30,487 53,796
Loss for the year FEEE (8,523) (20,794) (34,626) (9,765) (11,596)
Loss attributable to equity BAREZEEAEEER
holders of the parent (8,352) (19,334) (31,520) (9,402) (11,142)
Basic loss per share BREFBEBARES)
(RMB cents) (1.12) (2.60) (4.25) (1.27) (1.50)
Assets and liabilities EEREE
As at 31 December
R+ZA=+-H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—B-N\Eg —T—+F FT-R¥ T-0FfF "T-HmF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT AR¥ETRT ARBTR ARETR
Non-current assets ERBEE 43,072 48,004 52,691 59,400 49,013
Current assets mBEE 193,481 184,327 199,879 211,691 234,082
Current liabilities k=N (125,510) (111,022) (109,875) (99,950) (100,839)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (8,234) (9,220) (10,077) (7,058) (7,499)
Net assets BEFE 102,809 112,089 132,618 164,083 174,757
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